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VISION

“To be a catalyst for the socio-economic
upliftment of 5 million households by the year
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MISSION

“To be a preferred choice for the people at
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SOUL OF SATYA
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TRUST

To develop a relationship of Trust & Truthfulness
within the ecosystem of SATYA.

TRANSPARENCY

Aiming to develop a transparent culture
across the organization.

TEAM

To follow the values of “Team Strength”
& promote “coordination & cooperation”
in all verticals.

TECHNOLOGY

Nurturing SATYA through cutting edge
technology in real-time data, reducing
TAT and moving towards paperless.

TRAINING

Capacity Building & social awareness
programs for all stakeholders of SATYA.
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VIVEK TIWARI

MD, CEO & CIO

1

Dear Stakeholders,

It is with great optimism, | present to you, the IV edition of
the Annual Report covering SATYA MicroCapital Ltd.'s
journey over the Financial Year 2019-2020.

As the year 2019-20 was drawing to a close, the world
started to witness the unfolding of a crisis, magnitude of
which has been unseen and unprecedented for several
generations. COVID-19, at the primary level, is a health crisis
but has huge manifestations on the economic activities at a
global scale. The impact of this crisis is likely to be
particularly adverse for the informal sector of the economy,
to whichamajor portion of our clients belong to.

While all our offices needed to be closed on account of the
nation-wide lockdown directions as furnished by the Govt.
of India, we continued to work from home. The most
important imperative of this situation for us was to keep a
constant touch with our clients. To tackle this, we developed
a time schedule for the branch staff for making telephone
calls to the clients in their respective branch areas so that
they are cognizant of the situation in which the clients are
persisting in. We offered a moratorium to our clients, so that
those who were impacted on account of fall in the economic
activities could get some time to repay their loans.
Additionally, we put a halt on our collections for a defined
period so that there was no add-on burden on our clients
during this difficult time.

We are gradually getting back to normal. With relaxation in
the lockdown rules, almost our entire workforce has
reported back to their respective office premises. We are in
constant touch with almost all our clients on a daily basis. By
the end of May 2020, we were able to collect around 50% of
the total scheduled instalments. We expect our repayments
to be back to normal by the end of August 2020. This crisis,
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has all the more, strengthened our resolve to provide
relevant and pertinent products and support to our clients.
Moreover, this is an opportunity for us to demonstrate our
institutional resilience not only in the BFSI sector but also to
the world atlarge!

Continuing in our commitment to become a fully digital
service provider, we are extremely proud to report that
during this financial year, we have collected over INR 500+
Crs.viadigital transactions which is alandmark achievement
in the entire industry! From the first day of our inception, all
our disbursements were already through direct bank
transfers. We expect that by the end of the financial year
2020-21, we will also have over 80% of our total collections
coming to us through digital means. We are already in the
process of developing technological solutions for this and
have been actively educating our clients regarding the
same.

Digital transformation is a business imperative across all
industries, and the BFSI sector is no exception. The
Microfinance industry is on the cusp of a digital
transformation right now and SATYA is moving towards the
same in a vigorous manner and is well on its way to quickly
emerge as a 'Figitech company'. With this idea in mind, we
shall soon be launching our very own online/digital payment
platform, “SATYA Pay” which shall hit the floors soon.

Additionally, as we remain dedicated to offering products
other than standard group loans to our clients, we have
started a business vertical for individual business loans. This
product is being offered through all the existing branches of
SATYA. To amplify the impact of this, we have also opened
five dedicated branches for offering individual business
loans.

With a diversified portfolio, spread out across 22 states of
India, we are delighted to share that during this year, we
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MESSAGE FROM THE MD, CEO & CIO

accomplished the incredible milestone of achieving INR
1000 Cr. Assets under Management. Moreover, we are
pleased to share that we closed the financial year with net
profitable operations of INR 75.29 million!

Our annual event 'Vihangam' saw an enthusiastic
participation of over 1,500 staff members and provided an
opportunity for all the employees to come on a single
platform. A Staff Satisfaction Survey, conducted by us,
provided useful insights about what our employees feel and
the issues which are crucial for them. Taking this into
account, we re-initiated our Employee's Grievance
Redressal Mechanism (EGRM) platform to address any and
all concerns that the employees may have. We also launched
a Toll-free Women's Helpline to specifically redress the
issues faced by our female staff. Both these platforms were
launched on the occasion of International Women's Day,
making these mechanisms even more special and pertinent
for our employees.

It is our pleasure to report that SATYA received an uplift in
the MFI Grading by ICRA as M2+ as well as an uplift in the
Credit Rating by ACUITE of ACUITE BBB+. We raised INR 105
crore in equity funding by Gojo & Company, Inc. This is one of
the first investments in the Microfinance sector after the
nationwide lockdown. The extent of confidence Mr. Sanjay
Gandhi and Mr. Taejun Shin have fostered in our organization
holds paramount significance for us and serves as a clear
indication of our substantial strength, intrinsic values, and
reliability. Yielding capital infusions like this during the
hazardous outbreak of such a pandemic is rare. We are
certain that the capital infusion will serve as adriving force to
SATYA for reinforcing its vision which will enable us to
empower more and more entrepreneurs from the
underserved sections of society”.

On another exciting note, we also launched a 6-month
Internship Programme in collaboration with Shri
Vishwakarma Skill University, Haryana. A batch of twenty-
seven students was selected & currently, they are being
offered comprehensive training in the field of microfinance.
The objective is to facilitate and promote entrepreneurship
development, skill-based education and research in the
burgeoning industry of microfinance. Taking this
collaboration, a step forward, we also supported SVSU in
providing food to 10,000 daily workers under the
University's 2 lakh meals mission.

In the light of the current Covid crisis, as millions of migrant
labourers and their family members stand displaced, we
organised a food distribution programme, SATYA Q@'st
wherein we have been able to feed over 3.8 Lac struggling
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and needy people with the help of our “Rasois” set-up
across 35+ locations all over India. With the timely and able
support of our contributors who donated not only through
fund transfers but also through donations of multiple
quintals of ration by our esteemed clients, team members
and friends, which helped sustain our rasois every day for
two weeks and counting and has further aided in making this
initiative a sustainable one!

During the course of this financial year, we had the good
fortune of having Mrs. Surekha Marandi, former Executive
Director of RBI, accept our request for joining our Board as
an Independent Director. We expect that her experience in
the financial sector will surely help SATYA emerge as one of
the most well governed institutions in the country.

We are thankful to our 50+ lenders for exhibiting a continued
confidence in the company and bolstering our spirit. Over
INR 100 Cr. funding received by us (a relatively young
organisation in the sector) from the investors, even as the
full impact of the COVID-19 still remains to be seen, is a
testament to this.

As | conclude, | would like to pay my tribute to Mrs.
Vijayalakshmi Das, or Madam Viji as | used to fondly call her,
who left for her heavenly abode on February 8, 2020. She
was a towering personality who had committed herself to
the cause of women empowerment and financial inclusion.
It is my strong belief that the commitment of the Indian
financial inclusion sector towards women empowerment
and other social issues is the result of the influence that Viji
Ma'am had on all the institutions working in the financial
inclusion space. Her death is indeed a great loss for the
financial inclusion movement in the country. It is a personal
loss for me. She had agreed to handhold SATYA and become
a Board member when SATYA had just started. It willindeed
be impossible for us tofill the vacuum left by her.

|am optimistic that the current crisis will bring out the best in
us at SATYA and we will continue in our endeavour to fulfil
our missionin the years tocome.

Vivek Tiwari
Managing Director CEO & CIO
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD |-

SUREKHA MARANDI

During the FY 2019-20, SATYA MicroCapital Ltd.
achieved several important milestones pertaining
to business growth and expansion of operations,
thus not only achieving a Rs.1,000 Cr. loan portfolio
but also acquiring a diverse spread to 22 states. It is
heartening to note that the company is also gearing
itself up to operate in these challenging times
through greater digitalisation, which will enable it to
empower more and more entrepreneurs from the
underserved sections of society post lockdown,
keeping into account the new normal for operating
inthese times.”

SANEESH SINGH

| am happy to note that SATYA has crossed a major
milestone during the FY 2020 by having a portfolio
outstanding of more than Rs.1,000 Cr. It is now
serving more than 4.46 Lacs poor households with
diversified financial products across 22 states of
India. SATYA has been recognized as a pioneering
MFI by the financial services sector which s evident
from the various industry recognitions received by
it during this year. Of particular mention, is its
digital finance interventions at the grassroots. |
wish SATYA all the best and hope that it will
continue its work giving more families an
opportunity to come out of poverty. | would also
like to congratulate SATYA's leadership & staff on
the fabulous teamwork and commitment to
helping families free themselves from poverty.
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CHANDANATHIL
PAPPACHAN MOHAN

From the ringside view of anindependent director, |
have witnessed the meteoric, yet sustainable rise
of SATYA MicroCapital Ltd., with great satisfaction
and admiration. The key to its success includes an
astute leadership which leverages frontline
technology to significant advantage keeping itself
ahead of the curve in operational efficiency. The
company is well set on a growth path with its ability
to attract both capital and talent. My special
compliments to Team SATYA for its yeoman's social
work in mitigating the sufferings of fellow beings in
distress and hardship at times of need. | look
forward to SATYA impacting large numbers of rural
lives throughiits proactive operations.

SANJAY GANDHI

With the 3rd year of full operations, | am delighted
to acknowledge that SATYA has fruitfully navigated
the journey so far. Being awarded as the New Age
Fast Moving MFI, SATYA, has grown & emerged asa
young & fast-paced assiduous organization. SATYA
has diligently moved closer towards injecting
capital infusion to those nested at the bottom of
the pyramid. Encompassing credible performance
with technological advancements and the
optimum use of digital infrastructure, it is no
surprise that SATYA was honored as the MFI of the
Year 2019. India is one of the fastest-growing
economies in the world and SATYA, in the capable
hands of Vivek Jiand his expert team, is determined
to benefit from this growth momentum in best of
its efficiency. Kudos to every member of SATYA for
their dedication & working earnestly round the
clock to ensure all the robust protocols are
followed. Gojo wishes all members of SATYA the
very best for their future endeavours.

»
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NAVEEN SURYA

It is heartening to see the progress made by SATYA
in the last fiscal year, full of accolades &
achievements one after another. My heartiest
congratulations to all for their contributions under
the aspiring leadership of Vivek Ji. This creates
more expectations from all stakeholders because
we know how capable & smart you are to deliver
and take SATYA to newer heights. F.Y. 2020-21 is
completely unprecedented & never been dealt with
before, so no past wisdom can be relied upon.
Therefore, this is the time to show our collective
talent, resolve and come out of this current
situation with flying colours. This would need all of
us to work very closely with most innovative and
adaptable strategies, being extremely nimble to
keep re-calibrating with the dynamic external
environment. | personally have full faith and
confidence in SATYA & know that even in this
challenging year, we would come out successful!

RAHUL GUPTA

SATYA MicroCapital, during the financial year
2019-20, has shown steady growth, increased
profitability, and strong risk control. | believe that
SATYA's core strength lies in its usage of advance
technology and human touch. Many of SATYA's
customers who started with tiny businesses with
the support of our group financing schemes have
now become 'AtamNirbhar' and aiming to become
entrepreneurs. During the last year SATYA, has
earned many awards including MicroFinance
Institution of the Year 2019. | wish Team SATYA, its
Customers and shareholders the very best.
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MUKUL JAISWAL

| feel pleased to be a part of this prestigious
Microfinance Institution. SATYA received the
award for Best Micro Lending (NBFC) at
ASSOCHAM’s MSMEs Summit twice-in-a-row
now. This is indicative of adaptability, innovation,
and resilience via which SATYA created a
transparent, ethical, and compliant framework. By
imbibing the advancements made via
digitalization, SATYA's working results for the F.Y.
gone by is spectacular, coming at a time when the
entire industry is facing unprecedented challenges
on multiple fronts. Extending my heartfelt
congratulations to the committed SATYA Team,
who under the visionary CEO and MD, Mr. Tiwari
and his experienced Senior Mgt. Team rose & faced
all the challenges brilliantly. | have no second
thoughts that SATYA shall surely emerge as ‘a one-
stop’ MFI in the nation as there are enough
opportunities at the BoP for SATYA to surmount
henceforth.

<« 4
RATNESH TIWARI

SATYA witnessed impressive growth on both
industrial & institutional front in FY 2019-20 by
creating new norms in the financial inclusion
terrain. SATYA's digital strategy, especially the
cashless model, has served as a catalyst towards
successful loan disbursement worth INR 1800 Cr.+
to over 4.5 Lac entrepreneurs. This benchmark has
paved the way for a new age of microfinance
operations, inculcating the crucial sense of
digitalization & savings among the clients.
Considering the synergistic teamwork, holistic
business approach, and improved sentiments in
the capital markets, SATYA successfully structured
a more efficient operational structure. Our
achievement of INR 1,000Cr. AUM served as a
brave testament for the entire sector. At present,
SATYA is at the leading edge of the microfinance
services industry across the nation. It is precisely
here that SATYA will play a pivotal role in the
upliftment of the unreached section of the society
with good foothold further.
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TRIBUTE TO OUR BOARD MEMBER -
LATE SMT. VIJAYALAKSHMI DAS (1951-2020)

Remembering the noble and gentle soul with profound grief; may Mrs. Vijayalakshmi Das rest
in peace! Forever in our hearts you will stay, loved, and memorialized every day.

Our hearts fill with sorrow as we remember our esteemed Board of Director, Mrs. Vijayalakshmi Das, who left for her
heavenly abode on February 08, 2020. It has been an absolute honour to have known such a great and humble person
whose absence has left a void that can certainly never befilled.

Considered as the "mother of Indian microfinance”, Mrs. Vijayalakshmi Das or " Madam Viji " to us, had been with SATYA right
fromits early days in 2017. She encompassed a vast ocean of knowledge and expertise and had dedicated her entire life for
the upliftment of women through the model of microfinance and financial inclusion. She came forward and handheld not
only SATYA, but also some of the biggest names in the Indian microfinance sector today, right from their antecedent
periods.

We recall the huge impact she has had in incubating and facilitating SATYA at every phase of its institutional journey. It is like
losing a kind-hearted mentor, who invested her concentrated and unwavering belief in people rather than the balance
sheet. She stood out for several things as a human being but as a professional, it was largely for her clear-sighted,
resourceful, and determined approach torisk-taking and the ability to nurture players in the micro-lending space.

Mrs. Das, a postgraduate in economics followed by advanced courses in economics from the Economic Institute, Harvard
Institute for International Development and the Women's World Banking, USA, was featured in Business Today's list of the
"Most Powerful Women" and shall always be remembered for her pivotal & commendable contributions for to the Indian
microfinance industry.

She was passionate about building entrepreneurship among women thereby uplifting them not only monetarily but also
helping them dream big and become self-reliant and self-sufficient. She was the founder CEO of the Friends of Women's
World Banking (FWWB), India. FWWB, India, under her regime, thrived and became the first lender to provide credit
supports to over 200 micro-lending institutions across the states of Ahmedabad, Andhra Pradesh, Tamil Nadu, and
Karnataka.

SATYA has always considered Mrs. Das as a treasured Board of Director, and she shall forever hold this place in our hearts.
SATYA family extends warm thoughts, prayers, and deepest condolences for the saddened demise and immeasurable loss
of Madam Viji. She has left us with many good memories and we know that she continues to live on through her services and
benefactionsin the Indian Microfinance landscape.

Annual Report 2019-20 10
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TRIBUTE TO VIJI MAAM — FROM THE DAS FAMILY

write this on behalf of the entire Das family and would like to start by admitting that | cannot talk about my mother
VijayalakshmiDas in the past tense. Ever.

While our entire family continues to live in disbelief ,including my seven year old son Kabir, | would like to take this opportunity
to attempt keeping my grief aside and say that me and my younger sister Swati Das could not have asked for anythingmorein
life.

Amma has been our foundation, our support, our banker, partner in crime, punching bag and our closest pal.

I remember when|was 12 years old and Amma was in Nairobi for a 15- day trip. | just wanted her to come back after 5 days and
| put up afitand lied whenever she made the ISD calls. And on day 7 she was back home, and | remember curling upto her and
sleeping. She cut down her trip maybe because she felt deeply that | really wanted her back. And | wish that could happen all
over again now. | still think this is a bad dream and | willhave my mother with me advising me and playing with her grandson.

Our Amma was soft yet assertive and made sure me and my sister dealt with our own battles while keeping a close check and
making sure she got our back when needed.

Our Amma the stunning woman from a small town called Cuddalore always believed that if women stood up for each other
the world would be a better place tolivein.

Our Amma whose naughty eyes and wicked sense of humour ensured that we would laugh a lot. Our Amma whose passport
is a testimony of her love for travel and her passion for work.

Our Amma whose contribution to the world is so much that we sisters cannot achieve even half of it together.

A caring wife, a fantastic financial planner, a strong mother and an adorable grandmother who ensured that her grandson
travelled with her and got her flair for numbers and Maths.

Not a single day goes by without thinking of her and that strange feeling in the gut kicks in as areminder about not having her
around .Our entire family was overwhelmed when people came from all over the country to offer prayers for her. We heard
stories about her which were new to us. We met people from all walks of life who told us how she has changed their lives.
People sent usfruits, rice, vegetables, oil and tea with notes saying that today they are ina better place because of her.
Despite her busy schedules she was always there for us. And she and Appa together have ensured that both of us had the
best life ever and grew up to become strongindividuals.

I would like to thank SATYA MicroCapital Ltd. for letting me pen down a few emotions. | could actually write an entire book
about her daring attitude, her passion for women's rights and equality and love for her family.

Thank you all for being such an integral part of Amma'’s life.

- Preeti Das on behalf of the entire Das family which includes Dr. Biswaroop Das, Swati Das and Kabir Das-Thakkar.
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KEY HIGHLIGHTS

During the financial year 2019-2020, SATYA grew in leaps and bounds as it expanded into 8 more
states, including union territories taking the total count of its Branch operations to a whopping 150 in
131 districts!! We are now present locally all across the country, proudly serving our.3,81,788 active
clients through our committed workforce of 1,879 employees.

f

Cumulative

Disbursements Acti
) : ctive Loans
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iece) B 4,46,256

Portfolio
Outstandings
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g
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O U R P RES E N C (AS ON MARCH 31, 2020)
(ALL FIGURES IN INR CR.)
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CASTE-WISE HIGHLIGHTS

(AS ON MARCH 31, 2020) (ALL FIGURES IN INR CR.)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
CRAR
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
REVENUE VS EXPENSE (INR CR.)
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PRODUCTS OF SATYA

MER DURABLE LOANS
INDIVIDUAL MICROLOANS =~ @
EMERGENCY LOANS ol
MICRO BUSINESS LOANS 4
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PRODUCTS OF SATYA

At SATYA, we constantly strive to provide the best of products to our customers. These products are
designed with continuous innovations coupled with appropriate delivery mechanisms so as to cater to the
varying needs of our valued customers. The following product informationis as on March 31,2020.

LIMITED LIABILITY GROUP LOAN
Loan Amount : Rs. 25,000 - Rs. 50,000
Loan Term: 2 years

~ Interest Rate (p.a.) : 22.99% - 23.99%

h-‘-—' . —~=WL S e— -

Processing Fee : 1.18% (Including GST)
Repayment Frequency : Bi-weekly/
Monthly

CONSUMER DURABLE LOAN
Processing Fee : 1.18% (Including GST) Loan Amount : Rs. 1,225 - Rs. 15,500
Repayment Frequency : Bi-weekly & LoanTerm: 1- 2 Years

Monthly Interest Rate (p.a.) : 21.99%

INDIVIDUAL MICRO LOAN
Loan Amount : Rs. 45,000 - Rs. 80,000 | Processing Fee : 1.18% (Including GST)

' Loan Term: 2 years Repayment Frequency : Monthly
i Interest Rate (p.a.) : 22.99%

e ~— —————
N —

EMERGENCY LOAN

Processing Fee : 1.18% (Including GST) | Loan Amount : Rs. 5,000 - Rs. 10,000
Repayment Frequency : Bi-weekly & Loan Term: 1Years

Monthly Interest Rate (p.a.) : 21.75%

MICRO BUSINESS LOAN
Loan Amount : Rs. 25,000 - Rs.2,00,000|Processing Fee : 2.36% (Including GST)

Loan Term: 2 years Repayment Frequency : Monthly
i  Interest Rate (p.a.) : 28%
— T - = — -

BUSINESS LOAN
Loan Amount : Rs. 5 lakhs - Rs. 25 lakhs | Processing Fee : 2.36% (Including GST)
Loan Term: 2 - 5 years Repayment Frequency : Monthly
Interest Rate (p.a.) : 21% - 23%

WATER & SANITATION LOAN Processing Fee : 1.18% (Including
Loan Amount : Rs. 25,000 — Rs. 50,000|GST)

Loan Term: 2 years Repayment Frequency : Bi-Weekly/
| Interest Rate (p.a.):22.99% - 23.99% Monthly
e — —————————

Note: Revised product information has been updated on our website: www.satyamicrocapital.com
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LATEST PRODUCT ADDITION
H OSPI CASH (DAILY HOSPITAL CASH BENEFIT INSURANCE)
%@d w7 ‘_‘. / & : SATYA launched its one-of-a-kind HospiCash Policy

u.-ﬂ'!ff""

with the idea of safeguarding its clients and her co-
applicant in times of unfortunate and exigent
situations. HospiCash is a Health Insurance policy
that provides the members a lump-sum amount in
case of hospitalization due to any disease or
accidental injury and the entire policy amount in case
. of the unfortunate death of the member or her co-
applicant within the stipulated period of the
insurance. Under this policy, the insured member can
avail the benefit of hospitalization at any type of
hospital — Government or Private. The idea behind this Policy is to protect the daily earnings of our woman
entrepreneurs from potential high indebtedness due to sudden hospitalization. Moreover, there should be
no lacking in terms of their treatment at any hospital, therefore, SATYA has provided this facility so that
better and timely support can be received. It also provides maternity benefit to our woman clients to further
facilitate her during this period.

Through this unique policy, SATYA aims to be a 'one-stop solution' for its members during such exigent
situations.

> If the Insured Person is Hospitalized in India or Hospitalized in an Intensive Care Unit (ICU) during the
Policy Period for “Medically Necessary Treatment of an lliness or Injury due to an Accident” that
occurred during the Policy Period, Insurance company will pay the Daily Cash Benefit specified in the
Policy Schedule or Certificate of Insurance for each continuous and completed period of 24 hours of
Hospitalization.

Accidental Death: If the Insured Person suffers an Injury due to an Accident that results in the death of
the Insured Person, Insurance company will pay 100% of the Sum Insured.

v

The HospiCash Policy by SATYA is offered in two ways, i.e., Group Hospital Cash and Group Personal
Accident, the coverage details of which are enclosed below:

Group Hospital Cash & Group Personal Accident

Particulars Benefits

Sum Insured INR 1000 per day

Benefit Days 30 days in 2 years

ICU Hospitalization INR 2000 per day, 30 days in 2 years
Pre-existing Disease Coverage All covered, Maternity is also covered
30 Days waiting period removal No waiting period

1Year waiting period removal No waiting period

Accidental Death INR 1 Lac per insured

Tenure 2 Years

SATYA's HospiCash Policy offers a wide range of daily hospital cash benefits for our clients and co-applicant
atanominal cost. The policy is comprehensive and robust and aimed to provide financial security.
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LATEST PRODUCT ADDITION

»

MICRO BUSINESS LOAN

During the financial year 2019-2020, SATYA
introduced Micro Business Loans (MBL)
which is an Individual Loan Product for the
growing Rural and Urban Entrepreneurs.
Under the aegis of this product, we provide
mature micro finance loans to entrepreneurs
for scaling up their own businesses (new or
existing).

The MBL product was launched with a huge
unmatched demand existing from our rural
and semi-urban markets. SATYA started

piloting the MBL product through few existing branches in January 2019. Encouraged by the market
feedback, SATYA partnered with IDFC First Bank Ltd in a Business Correspondent (BC) relationship and

started disbursing the micro business loan at a wider platform.

This product is targeted to fund entrepreneurs in Micro and Small business segments (Retailors, traders,
small manufacturing units & service providers) for aiding them in their daily working capital needs and for
new asset acquisition. The loan is offered only to individuals or sole proprietorship firms with the objective

that funds would be deployed only for business requirements.

Key Benefits:

> No security/collateral required (only a post-dated cheque required)

» Low processing fees.
» Low Rate of Interest.
» Minimal paperwork

» Comprehensive Insurance coverage of loan available

» Door-step pick-up of documents

Key Product Features:
Loan Amount : INR 50,000 to INR 2,00,000

Rate of Interest : 21% - 28% Interest Rate Reducing

Processing Fee : 2% of loan amount + GST

Loan Tenure : 24 Months payable in equated Monthly Instalment
Prepayment Charges : 5% of outstanding Principal Amount + GST
Insurance Cover : 2% of Loan amount for covering family against unforeseen circumstances during loan

period

Processing of Loan : Every MBL loan is processed within defined bureau checks, credit appraisal
processes, cash flow recognition, residence/business ownership & reference checks

Despite its short stint, MBL team has accomplished the milestone of achieving 100% Repayments through
NACH and has successfully accomplished a portfolio of INR 6.04 Crores by the fiscal year 2019-2020 end.

With the extremely positive response received by this product, SATYA plans to scale up the Micro Business

Loan in the upcoming financial year.
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TECHNOLOGY INFRASTRUCTURE

Technology, being one of the elements of the Soul of SATYA, is a strength and as well as an inspiration to
innovate ease of financial support to our responsible clients and equipping correct reporting for
improving internal and industrial standards of the sector.

At SATYA, we have always believed in augmenting productivity using technology. The use of the same
enables us to continuously improve upon our processes through utilization of real time data for decision
making, reduction in turnaround time of various processes and enabling us to move towards cashless
and less paper operations. During the year, we have incorporated technology into most of our
processes such as client application, credit appraisal, loan sanction, disbursement, loan collection &
utilization for all our new loans, and HR MIS. In the client application and appraisal process, we are
capturing the client details by fetching their data using QR Code from their Aadhaar Card / Election
Card enabling us to conduct de-dupe check and integrated online Credit Bureau check. Location
mapping is being done through Geo-tagging (capturing Latitude & Longitude). This aids in easy
tracking of the center meetings, customer’s house, and their business which results in efficacy and
route mapping with anincrease in operational efficiency.

A brief snapshot of the technical applications being used for our multiple processes:

Loan Sanction Loan Collection

Loan Appraisal A P I
ﬂeﬁgﬂggzrﬁeﬁt" o IML Loan Appraisal

JOURNEY TOWARDS LESS PAPER AND LESS CASH:

. g W |

With the advent of latest and more sophisticated technology, SATYA has been able to facilitate and
smoothen the repayment process for our clients. After having tested the waters for various options
feasible to collect repayment collections digitally through Debit Cards (HDFC-Ezetap); Aadhaar
Enabled Payment System (AEPS)/ Aadhaar Pay, after piloting several options in the market for
cashless digital collections post biometric Authentication, finally we successfully implemented the
Online Integrated Digital Cashless Collection process through Aadhaar Pay in our Business IT
Application.
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We are delighted to report that since inception we have collected INR 500+ Cr. via Digital
Transactions. This is alandmark achievement in the entire micro finance industry and many MFls have
started following our path. This has further encouraged us to develop more robust systems to serve our
clientsinthe most efficient manner.

We are amongst the first few MFls to have implemented National Automated Clearing House
(NACH)-Mandate Management Process to collect monthly instalments from IML/MBL clients
wherein we have overcome the challenge of managing Post-dated-cheques for the entire tenure of the
loan product. This is a faster and more accurate collection system where in each step is designed to
provide ease in the user interface for our clients and adding to that, the corresponding and subsequent
steps provide for acomplete and a thorough process at the field level itself.

LATEST INNOVATIONS :

1) Customer-friendly Android based Client App — SATYA Client Connect

SATYA has launched the SATYA Client Connect Application (on an Android platform for now) for its
esteemed clients to facilitate and additionally support them through an online medium. The Client
Connect App, as the name suggests, is a way to “connect” with the client so that they can get all the
important information & updates about their loans on a single platform in real time. This App can be
accessed anywhere & anytime making the dissemination of vital information much easier.

With this idea in mind, SATYA's wide client base across the country will
have access to the following information:

= Current Outstanding of the Loan: Balance Principal Amount
= Next Centre Meeting due: Date & Time
» Last Payment Details (Cash/ Cashless): Amount with date of
payment
= Total Overdue: Amount overdue and the due date
= Direct Connect on Customer Toll Free No. with Auto dialing
facility
= Request for Next Cycle Loan or additional loan specially for
Emergency Loan.
= Pre-Closure Amount details.

.@'Sn:r_'l'_-‘:-‘u MicroCapital Lid,

red, bar's confirm pour mohlia
,..
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2) Intra-Company Official Communication Platform - Workplace by Facebook

During our third Annual Day Celebration, an intra-office communication platform, i.e., Workplace by
Facebook was launched. This was spearheaded with the idea of on-boarding the entire 1,800+ strong
workforce of SATYA onto the application to ease out the process of official communication within
various teams.

SATYA's Workplace Application and the Workplace Chat aids the users to:

® Group chat & Facebook Office: with unlimited users and complete control mechanism for limited
user access along with validity of usage being linked to company domain.

® |mprovising the Work Culture: Workplace combines next-generation technology and easy-to-use
features to transform communications, culture and workflows inside organization/ department/
committees.

® Two-way Communication within the entire Organisation: thus, bringing everyone on the same page
by seamless top-down communication and knowledge sharing through

v News Feed to break down organisational silos
v" Getreal-time feedback via likes, comments andreactions
v" Use live video for moreimmediate, direct and authentic sharing

® Employee Engagement to drive culture: SATYA gives more focus on its employees and not only
technology. Workplace promotes openness, feedback and diversity to engage employees and drive
the cultural change by:

v" Running Opinion Polls in Groups to get a quick pulse on people's buy-in across the country on
specific company issues

v" Share live videos, webinars and articles for more efficient training; Connect new hires to the team
(and each other) within specific departments or task force.

® Software that gets better with higher usage: Workplace combines the real-time urgency of instant
messaging with more deliberate discussionsin groups:
v’ Getreal-timeresponsesin Workplace Chat
v" Use project groups for more considered conversations for limited period with automatic group
getting dissolved

® |ncrease adoption of existing work tools: as Workplace connects to all of your current apps and its
usage can actually boost the adoption of existing tools:
v" Easy deployment with one-click provisioning and single sign-on
v" Build customintegrations with Workplace service partners.
Over the course of 7-odd months since its launch, Workplace has proven to be a huge success for the
entire team SATYA, with everyone engaging in it proactively & frequently; with effective and efficient
results.
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3) Mobile Data Management (MDM):

SATYA has deployed a combination of on-device applications, configurations and backend
infrastructure, for the purpose of simplifying and enhancing the IT management of end user devices.
The overall role of MDM iis to increase device supportability, security, and corporate functionality while
maintaining user flexibility. SAT YA has implemented the MDM from Scalefusion (formerly Mobilock Pro)
which has enabled us with the following control-mechanisms:

Simplify Kiosk Management: Manage, control and secure company owned Android devices and
securely distribute Applications and content across a wide range of mobile devices from the cloud
by using Scalefusion Enterprise Store.

Remote Control Software for Android Devices with Voice Calling: Solve Android device issues faster
and reduce equipment downtime & travel costs with screen sharing, remote control and inbuilt
voice calling features.

Unified Communication & Call Management for Enterprise: Enable seamless but highly controlled
communication with a single application across your organization.

Get Quick and Deep Insights into the complete Device Inventory: is helping IT admins and decision-
makers to take quick and effective actions as they stay updated and get a 360-degree overview of
the entire device inventory.

Mobile Content Management (MCM): remotely distribute and manage content on company-owned
devices by using Scalefusion FileDock.

Workflows: assists IT admins in automating & scheduling tasks and setting compliance alerts on
managed devices, without complex coding & scripting by selecting a time and frequency for its
execution.

Location tracking: We can locate the device movement which can come handy in case of any theft
incidence being reportedinfield.

Lockdown the Devices in Kiosk Mode in case of device being lost

Lock Android Devices to Business Apps, Prevent Unauthorized Access & Limit Excess Data Costs:
Restricting users to specific websites and prevent access to android device setting and non-
essential apps.
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EMPLOYEE VOICES

ompanies. Here, everyone is allo
e best output Our hard work and& ica ed &

company like SATYA MicroCapital Ltd

Mahatab Ali, Sr. EDO — Modinagar

When | had joined SATYA, | was still a fresher & a complete novice in the field of Microfinance as my
educational background had been in Agriculture. Despite initial apprehensions, | joined SATYA after
completing my training. SATYA disburses loans to families who live below the poverty line in addition
to providing employment opportunities to individuals who are unemployed. It is a highly appreciated
social work that reduces unemployment. Unlike other companies, SATYA does not consider its staff as
justan employee but as a part of its family. We are encouraged to share our happiness and sorrows with
our seniors & sometimes even directly to our beloved MD Sir (Vivek Tiwari sir). This further motivates
me to work diligently and provided a career direction to me to continue to do my service in social work.
lam proud of myself that | am contributing to the society byworkingat SATYA.

I have been associated with SATYA for three years now. | have learnt many things here - A new society,
noble people, new experiences have all helped shape the person | am today. SATYA is an organization
that is dedicated to bringing a new hope in the economic life of the people at the lower sections of the
society, it promotes employment and entrepreneurship. Through the organisation’s efforts we can
reduce the increasing unemployment in the society and help the domestic women engage in micro
businesses like embroidery - weaving, sewing etc. to make them self-sufficient.

SATYA is an organization that takes special care of its customers as well as its employees. Therefore, |
can say that SATYA is a social, safe, all-encompassing institution. | am very happy and safe working
here. Itis the best institution to make our country a successful economy.
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SATYA'S RESPONSE TO COVID-19

( FOR THE PEOPLE AND FOR THE COUNTRY)

Outbreak of COVID-19 in Wuhan, China has engulfed the whole World. Declared a pandemic by the World
Health Organisation, it has been an alarming situation where aftermath of this pandemic is growing
exponentially, and various attempts are being made to develop a vaccine for the same.

Currently, more than 10.8 million cases are recorded in over 204 countries leading to death of more than 5.19
lac people. The message from the World Health Organization is unequivocal — humanity's success in
combating corona virus is heavily dependent on the forthcoming actions that organisations take to downturn
the outbreak and overloading of health care systems.

One crucial challenge is how to execute measures like isolation, quarantine, social distancing and lock-down
amidst these troubling times. To dispel the myths and provide a basic understanding of public health
measures regarding the pandemic, SATYA is stalwartly working towards the safety of their nationwide clients
and employees. Itis an ardent symbol of commitment of an organisation towards their people to ensure that
all service commitments are met conscientiously despite all detriments.

Being a socially responsible MFI, SATYA is integrally committed to provide necessary support for combating
COVID-19. Mr. Vivek Tiwari, MD, CEO & CIO - SATYA, along with the Board of Directors, Sr. Management, and
the entire Team, has taken a set of initiatives, best practices, measures & guidelines for the underserved
clients, employees, and their families.

Such initiatives and practices are integral to minimise the risk of COVID-19. SATYA's approach encircles
abundant caution, with highly appreciated response rate and collective sense of responsibility.

1.) SATYA'S EMPLOYEES' CONTRIBUTION TO PMRF

Team SATYA is pleased to contribute one day's salary to the PM's fund as well as the CM's relief fund
across various states. The total contributed amount was INR 21 lacs apart from INR 5 lacs donated to
District Magistrate, Sultanpur, Lucknow.

2.) FOOD & HEALTH KIT DISTRIBUTION PROGRAMMES

A food distribution programme was organised at Varanasi — Allahabad Highway wherein 1,500 food items
were distributed to students, labours and other coming from different locations viz. Delhi, Punjab,
Rajasthan etc amidst the ongoing lockdown. These people were travelling to their native places in UP East,
Bihar, and Jharkhand.
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Another food distribution programme was organised wherein 900 underprivileged residents of Mirzapur
village were supported with food items. Additionally, 150 people were provided with health kits
contalnlng hand wash soap, and hand sanitizer.

MEMBERS

3.) DIGITAL OPD (FREE MEDICIAL SUPPORT) FOR SATYA EMPOYEES, CLIENTS AND THEIR FAMILY

/.
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. Apart from endangering human lives, the outbreak of the

Corona virus has also induced widespread panic and
rumours regarding the epidemic. It has drastically affected
the marginalised section across the globe. With national
economy encountering a slowdown, underserved
communities living below the poverty line are struggling for
basic essentials services - food, shelter, sanitation, and
health services. Government has made significant efforts
to ensure access to preventive and curative medical
assistance to the large population of the county. However,
those nesting in the countrywide terrains often confronted
with respect to awareness, accessibility, and affordability
toavail timely medical assistance.

SATYA launched this digital platform, a free-of-cost
telephonic medical consultation initiative in collaboration
with HEALTH ASSURE, to provide free telephonic medical
consultation to its 4 Lacs+ underserved clients, 17700+
employees and their family members bestowing the
backing to approximately 25 Lacs+ people in the country.
All clients and concerned people are informed via text
messages to avail services through medical counselling
platform. This was initiated to facilitate easy consultation
froma doctor over calls about any symptoms they might be
experiencing or to gain insight pertaining to virus and the
much-needed precautions. This has fostered awareness
within the large clientele of SATYA and has also reduced the
burden on the domestic medical infrastructure by these
families.

To seek medical consultation via this service, the caller has
had to dial a toll-free Medical Care Number: 022-61676670,
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SATYA employees have played a pivotal role in extending this service to grassroots, where efficient
demonstrations were given to each client on how to access SATYA Free Digital OPD support along with
collecting their feedback on the services.

Voices from the grassroots:

1. Post her delivery, Ms. Fuljahan, a client of SATYA from Bihar was experiencing acute abdominal pain
and due to lockdown, she was unable to visit the district hospital. Due to the absence of a good
gynaecologist in Siwan, she shared her problem with SATYA's EDO. She was informed about SATYA's
Free Digital OPD support. This information served as an immediate relief to her. She immediately
accessed the service and received the telephonic consultation from the gynaecologist with medical
prescription. All the prescribed medicines were available in nearby medical stores and indeed worked
wellfor her.

“My experience with SATYA'’s Free Digital OPD support was really good. | would like to thank
SATYA for providing help when | needed it the most. ” — Ms. Fuljahan, Siwan - Bihar.

2. Ms. Puja Rani, a client of SATYA lives in Gorchhi village of Hisar, Haryana with family. She was quite
worried about her younger daughter Riddhi who was then suffering from intestine infection and
because of lockdown initiated due to COVID, she was unable to visit the doctor. She also tried to
contact the doctor via phone, but was denied telephonic conversation. Upon receiving SATYA's
message regarding its Free Digital OPD support, she was relieved and instantly accessed the service
wherein she could consult the doctor. With the medicines administered, her daughter received timely
supportandrelief.

“Ireally liked SATYA's free digital OPD support, where the doctor consulted me very nicely over
the phone about my daughter iliness. Thank you SATYA for helping my daughter get better even
inthese turbulent times. ” — Ms. Puja Rani, Hisar - Haryana.

3. Ms.Jyotshna RuiDas, 35 years old SATYA's client from Taltor Village, Asansol, West Bengal and her son
were suffering from fever. To ease the fever, they opted for self-medication which did not yield any
relief. During the same time, she got to know about SATYA's Free Digital OPD support. She availed the
service to receive medical consultation. With timely prescribed medicines, she and her son were able
torecover quickly.

“SATYA Free Digital OPD Support is undeniably a good step by the company in the current crisis
because we have limited health services in our village, and we can't go to cities for the
treatment. This platform not only addressed my health problem but also made me aware about
therisks associated with COVID-19.” — Ms. Jyotshna Rui Das, Asansol - West Bengal.

4.) REPAYMENT MORATORIUM FOR SATYA'S CLIENTS

The COVID-19 pandemic has distressed the regular flow of life and day to day chores. People at the
Bottom of the Pyramid have their own share of amplified struggles. For an organisation working with the
underserved & underprivileged population, SATYA is conscious of the magnitude of obstacles our clients
are facing due to COVID-19. SATYA is committed to helping our clients and employees at this
unprecedented time of uncertainty.

Fathoming the limited cashflow available with our clients, and the shock associated with temporary
closing of businesses due to the pandemic, complying with the directions as given by the RBI, SATYA
made a decision to place amoratorium on the loan instalments from March 01,2020 - August 31,2020,
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encouraging the clients to use their savings for meeting their household expenses.Going a step ahead,
SATYA also halted the collections for an intermediate period of 20 days to further show its support for the
clients and their establishments.

Furthermore, financial aid has also been announced for the clients and their families during COVID~19
lockdown.

5.) PREVENTIVEKITS FOREMPLOYEES

Well before the declaration of country-imposed lockdown, SATYA started
delivering the prevention kits for all employees in 151 branches of various states
to curb the transmission of COVID-19 within our workspaces. The Kit includes
Hand Sanitizers, Hand Washes and Face asks. A total of 1,500 plus employees |
have been equipped with preventive kits by SATYA. In line with the same,
Homeopathic Medicines were also distributed to all employees for immunity
boosting.

6.) PERSONAL PROTECTION AND FACILITIES CLEANING, SANITIZING FOREMPOYEES

\%

v

‘7
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geographical locations as directed by the Govt. For the locations, wherein
- normal duties have been resumed, installation of contactless hand sanitizers has
. been done. Proper cleaning & sanitization of the office premises is being done
multiple times a day as well as precautionary measures like usage of face masks
& gloves are being taken to ensure cleanliness & health safety across the
company. Few of the other precautionary measures undertaken by SATYA are
~ enumerated below:
Mr. Vivek Tiwari, MD, CEO & CIO - SATYA, maintained a constant touch with the entire team through his
regular SATYA Samwad. He continued to encourage the staff and provided crucial inputs on the
prevention of the disease and ensured that the operational channels remained active.
From early March'2020 - Employees were instructed to not travel either internationally or domestically.
Practicing social distancing (including non-physical greetings), hand hygiene (especially after
handling cash) during client meeting & communication, in office and field premises; promoting
cashless transactions and engaging in less cash transactions became mandatory.
Use of proper masks and hand sanitizers after every meeting.
Maintenance of proper hygiene in branches and dormitory premises. Instructions to clean various
places of dormitory and branches such as kitchen, bathrooms, under the beds etc. clean beds, wash
bed sheets along with otheritemsregularly.
Paid leaves granted to any staff feeling unwell. Self-Isolation was promoted among employees if
someone suffered from cold or flu-like symptoms.
Abstinence from meetings, conferences, or events of more than 20 people.
Application of alcohol-based hand sanitizers or proper hand washing while entering Branches or
Dormitory
Field employees were directed to connect with customers via phone during their meeting schedule or
as per convenience of clients.
Online training programs were launched on official communication portals for field officers.
SATYA announced to provide financial support for any employee diagnosed with COVID-19.
Team SATYA donated their one-day's salary to the Prime Minister Relief Fund.
Office information and regular updates were timely given by HO through digital platforms.
Disseminated awareness materials through various media channels.

$ = /— Work-From-Home has been allotted to employees at the high-risk
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7.) CAPACITY BUILDING

8.)

8.)

Following the lockdown rigorously and using this period to develop the potentials and skills of the entire
workforce, SATYA focused on capacity building of its staff members across the country. Frequent training
programs are conducted periodically, concerning relevant products, processes, and policies through
video conference applications. Also, through SATYA's training application, training teams are conducting
regular tests of diverse subjects related to organizational operations.

Through these periodical online trainings, interesting activities, videos, quizzes through our intra-
communication platform, a thorough skill building is being initiated so that the staff can use this period to
enhance their knowledge and other professional & personal capacities.

CLIENT TOUCH POINTS

With the onslaught of this pandemic, the poor remain most affected and hence, the rumours and fake
news pertaining the epidemic spikes fear and confusion. At this time, SATYA is maintaining regular
contact with clients, hearing their woes, increasing awareness about the situation, clarifying their doubts,
comforting and ensuring them that SATYA as a family and as an organisation is standing with them and
together we will overcome this predicament. This was done by keeping a constant follow-up with our
clients over telephone (during the lockdown period) and through regular centre visits (post lockdown), to
assure them that SATYA stands with them during these troubled times and they can contact the staff for
any queries an questions they might have regarding theirloans and/or COVID-19.

MARKETING & COMMUNICATION

The Marketing and Communication Team has been actively involved in the dissemination of important
updates, crucial information & preventive tips regarding the COVID-19. Since early March 2020, with
onset of Coronavirus, SATYA ensured that all the employees as well as the general public withan access to
company's social media, is informed about the various aspects of the COVID-19 through creative
illustrations, mailers, news articles (both digital & print), videos (both English & Hindi languages) and the
like.

1.) Creatives shared onSocial Media on Initiatives taken for COVID-19 Awareness:
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As a socially responsible MFl, SATYA is imtegrally committed to provide
necessary support towards various rellef messures announced by the
Governmant ta combat the fallout of COVID-19 crisla. For the same, Team
SATYA has pledged to donats ona-day's salary (and for some even mora) for
role towards safeguarding the health and safety of the humankind dwelling (.\

‘within the country borders. WASH
| balieve that in the face of this unprecedented crisis, we should stand
together & do the best of everything in our individual or civilized capabilities
to support the needy people st the bottom of the pyramid, This is not anly in
tarms of monetary support but In svery aspect concerning to food, clothing,
shefter, medicines & even psychological support - in whatever capacity we

e G ki B 5 s e R e e 8 STEPS TO CLEAN YOUR HANDS

need to comply with what the nation demands from us right now, L.e., to stay
at home, be wall-versed with the preventive measures, practice soclal 4
distancing and kesp curselves & othars safe & healthy! a3 !

Lat's stand togethar to #5topCoronaVirus.

”

= 09ea
For any information regarding SATYA news

Mail us at marksting@satyamicrocapital.com s g e

Tzuching

' - Let's Create 3
.Tm Ml The Healthcare Workers stronger Future
ik Qn The Front Line Of ‘Hn TOGETHER
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Let'’s break the chain & prevent the Spread!
Stay Safe from COVID-19 & Work From Home.

2

L
I

Be Safe! Keep Others Safe!

@ SAT YA MicroCapital Ltd.

wri s e

Novel Corona Virus (COVID-19)

Brief Introduction, Symptoms, Suggestions & Important Infermation

Source; World Health Organisation (WHO)

F.
{

Request You All to Switch Off all the
Lights in your House & Light Up
Diyas, Candles or Mobile Phone Torches

AT 9 PM FOR 9 MINUTES
TONIGHT. o

Let's Stand Together & End the Darkness
of the COVID-19!

#TeamSATYAAgainstCorona ‘ #indiaFightsCorona
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Team @ SAT YA Pledges to

Stay at Home

Your Safely is in your Own
i Hands. Keep your Family,
Society & Nation Safe.

——

2 sazya
JANTA CURFEW

For the People By 1Be Peaple. in the et of B People

o=

Let's Pledge 1o Follow the
slantaCurfew B Practice #SocialDistancing
Stay ot Home From 7:00am to 9:00pm on 22nd March 2020

Please Stay At Home

#Sockilistancing  SSATYAAgainsiCorona  #StaySaleWinhSATYA

MOTE :
Plaasa spare § mirutes st B o tomononsy (22003730200 o sppreciate smd arCouregE the
peopls warking In seserdlsl services by siersding in yoor belconles ard clspping! ringing
bl hangeng ufensi
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2.) Initiatives taken for the Society:

a) INR 21 Lac Donation for COVID-19 to PMCares Relief Fund
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b) INR 5 Lacs Support to Sultanpur, Uttar Pradesh
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c) Distribution of 10k Masks & 10k

oves in Assam State

PPE kits,
masks donated

fore vy o e SR Do

GUWAHATI, April 27: Ma-
harashtra-based Bajaj Health-
care Social Foundation donat-
ed 100 PPE kits and 200 three-
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d) SATYA Launches Digital OPD

to cater 25 Lac+ citizens

Fhe CED Magasing

EATYA MicroOapitad L0l launehie
Fras TelsMatdcsl Comutation
Baryce, cotern 1o 15 Lacss pecple in
GOUnTY
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ply masks to Marwari Hospi-
tals here today. General sec-
retary of Marwari Hospitals RS

Satya Micro Capital donates
10,000 surgical gloves, 10,000
3-layer masks to State Govt

GUWAHATI, APR 25: Satya Micro Capital Ltd, India's
fastest growing NBFC-MFI (licensed by RBI), headquar-
tered in New Delhi and with presence in 10 districts of
Assam, has donated 10,000 surgical gloves and 10,000

3-layer masks to help
support COVID"19 workers in quar-
antine facility at Sarusajai

and other districts of Assam.
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Joshi received the items from
the representative of Bajaj
Healthcare Social Foundation.

Satya MicroCapital Limited
has donated 10,000 surgical
gloves and 10,000 three-layered
misks to the workers at the Sa-
rusajai quarantine facility, be-
sides other districts of Assam,
stated a press note. The organ-
isation has already extended Rs
21 lakh to the PM CARES Fund.

The masks were handed
over to Kamrup (M) Deputy
Commissioner Biswajit Pegu by
the entity's State officials
Babul Hoque and Arghya Pra-
tim Nandy recently. - City
Correspondent
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COMMITTMENT NEVER STOPS

Babul Hoque, State Operations Head, Assam and
Arghya Pratim Nandy, Regional Human Capital Head,
handed over the materials to Biswajit Pegu, DC, Kam-
rup Metro, in presence of Kaustav Talukdar, Project Of-
ficer, District Disaster Management Authority, Kamrup(
Metro).

The company has also donated Rs 21 lakh to PM
Cares Fund, according to a press release.
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Though the lockdown has disrupted the daily lives in ways unlike before, this has not stopped our passion and
desire to work. Wherever we are in the country, we are ensuring that work from home is actively followed by
the SATYA team with same working hours. We punch in our attendance and get down to work from home.
Our enthusiasm is high, and lockdown has not stopped us. Our work culture has made sure; we do what is

needed to keep the wheels turning at our organisation.
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OVERCOMING COVID

Bhagmeti Devi never thought that a situation would
come in the nation where the entire economy would
come to a halt. She is an 8th standard pass, rural
entrepreneur who lives in a small village of Chuhari in
Bettiah, Bihar. She lives in a joint family with her husband
and four children. Because of poor economic conditions,
she could not study further and got married at a very
young age. But, being the fighter she is, she never
stopped dreaming and decided to fulfil the aspirations of
her children.

She learnt tailoring and post course completion; ran a
small business, taking up local work. She had taken a loan
of INR 35,000 from SATYA for further expanding her
tailoring business. With the passage of time, her
business

started running well and she started training other women and girls in the village. This enabled her to
help her husband provide for a better education for their children. Life was going smooth and she
couldearnup toINR 10,000 per month.

Bhagmeti Devi
— Roses in the battlefield

But the sudden nation-wide lockdown devasted her and somewhere, she could see that her dreams
were going to diminish.

After few days, an opportunity knocked at her door where her group members proposed an idea of
stitching face masks and selling it to government bodies or nearby medical shops. So, along with her
group members, she moved forward with this businessidea.

Today, Bhagmeti Devi is making 100 masks a day and can earn more than INR 600 per day
specifically from making and selling masks. She is quite happy and satisfied with her new business
because she says that she is not only fulfilling the dreams of her children but also contributing
towards a noble cause. She also distributes masks free-of-cost to any needy people in her village
and guides themaboutits usage.

Bhagmeti is planning to continue her business even after the lockdown is lifted. Talking about the
significance of masks, Bhagmeti says, “face masks are really important to ensure the safety of
people.I'm glad thatin my own little way, | can help people in my village. I'm very thankful to SATYA for
all the support they are providing to usamidst COVID 19.”
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In a small rural village of Kamrup district of Assam
called Mirzapur, Babita Das, a 35-year-old young
woman entrepreneur, lives with her husband, Mother in
Law and two daughters.

Although she stands unaware about the current
economic situation in the country, she is still running a
cost-effective livelihood to conquer the fight of COVID
19.

Six months back, Babita Das took a loan of INR 29,000 iy ' \
from SATYA for the expansion of her beauty parlour . Fﬁ*\- > \:_r__.vr,.
business. Everything was going well wherein she was SEE L B G K
single-handedly running a full-fledged beauty parlour

along with a small-scale garment business. She was Babita Das

able to earn an income of INR 20,000- 25,000 per PR L SRl

month and was easily supporting the educational aspirations and dreams of her two daughters.

Due to a sudden nation-wide lockdown, she was compelled to closed her businesses and her
husband also became jobless. Their daily cash flow of approx. INR 1,000- 1,200 came to a sudden
halt, which forced them to survive upon their savings. She became extremely worried about the
repayment of loan EMIs due to the lockdown scenario.

A ray of hope entered her life when she got to know about SATYA's moratorium relief for its clients.
Once she was assured by SATYA's staff that she need not pay any EMIs for a period of 3 months, she
invested her energy on finding safe income opportunities within the village. With her resilience and
ingenuity overpowering all odds, she turned the most simple yet essential resources into a business
opportunity!

Babita and her husband procured vegetables from a big vendor in the nearby market and started
supplying vegetables in their village. They have started collecting some of the seasonal vegetables
from their farmland and through a safe & secure distribution mechanism, they are meeting the
demand of their local village folk. In this way, Babita has increased her family's income along with
ensuring that fellow villagers need not visit the local town which may increase therisk of infection.

This small intervention has brought happiness in her life again. She is able to earn INR 500-600 per
day and is able to save money for her household needs in these challenging times. She is also
thankful to SATYA for the timely assistance during the current crisis to her and other clients. Babitais
inspiring many other rural women to grab the untapped opportunities in her village to create a
secure financial backing for themselves.
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SATYA

Meal For Migrants @
S

As the whole nation is hit by the outbreak of COVID - 19, the
government of India announced a nationwide lockdown (during the
latter part of March 2020) to combat the outbreak of this dreaded
virus. Owing to the constant jolts created in national economy, the
migrant population stands dislocated and dismayed at worst. With no ,
jobs and money, public transportation services being shut, thousands g :_g | .
of homeless, daily wage laborers, and side-lined migrants have been - :
forced to travel hundreds of miles back to their villages — with some ::‘“:3\"‘
dying during the journey, while some fighting hard to survive with no N

accessibility tofood and shelter. E,
Amidst these challenging times, SATYA MicroCapital Ltd. started a rj
campaign to feed those inneed. K

SATYA@'st #MealForMigrants is an initiative by SATYA to help the 9
struggling & displaced migrants by providing free meals & other i
required sustenance for an intermediate period of 15 days starting
. fromMay 17,2020 to May 31,2020.

e Throughout the course of 2 weeks of this campaign, SATYARHS

. spread out across 35+ locations in the states of Assam; Bihar,
Chhattisgarh; Haryana; Jharkhand; Madhya Pradesh; Odisha; Punjab;
Rajasthan Uttar Pradesh and West Bengal. With the help rendered by QE
~ avast network of local administrative bodies; cooks and volunteers, &

E fresh meals & relief packets were delivered to more than 4 lac

_ migrants.
- Allthe rellef packets were prepared W|th extreme caution, taking care

|temsI|keWater bottles, Poori-Sabzi, Veg Biryani, Dal-Chawal, Achaar,
Biscuits, Toffees & Frootis.
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nght from DaY'1, i.e., MaY 17, 2020, m
R N

we organised a social media
campaign through our Facebook
portal and kept everyone apprised
about the day-to-day activities of
the 'Rasois'. Daily updates were
shared regarding the locations
covered; relief packets distributed
and experiences and stories of the
migrant labourers.

Our robust teams, throughout the
country, worked tirelessly day & night
to ensure that NO Migrant goes
hungry under their careful watch!!

As Team SATYA collectively came
forward, so came the many
volunteers, peer groups, neighbours,
friends and specially our clients.
Feeling the pain and struggle of
these poor travellers, SATYA clients
opened their kitchens for us as they
supplied multiple quintals of ration
almost daily which consisted of rice,
wheat (gehu), flour (aata), pulses
(daal) and other vegetables
(potatoesetc.)

There was an overwhelming
response of people in coming
forward to help us out with our
initiative. With the timely and able
support of our contributors who
donated not only through fund
transfers but also through donations
of ration (vegetables & other grocery

A ).

SATYATHIS
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items) by our esteemed clients, team members and friends, we were able to sustain our rasois every day.

Through the SATYATHTS, the team also spread awareness regarding hygiene, safe sanitation habits, wearing
face-masks, handwashing and/or using hand sanitizers and practicing social distancing, thereby, educating
the migrants and the public about the importance of keeping oneself sanitised and protected, specially
during the times of the current COVID-19 pandemic.

A world-wide calamity like Coronavirus has underlying repercussions on multiple facets of country and food
security has not been an exception. Through our small initiative, SATYA is aspiring to overcome this crisisina
sustainable and community-based manner - for the community, by the community.
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GLIMPSES OF THE SATYA 39S
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SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
MANAGEMENT

SATYA is committed to bringing a positive change in the life of people at the bottom of the pyramid by
creation & promotion of entrepreneurship through provision of most preferred microcredit solutions.
Financial inclusion not only brings this positive change but also helps in improving their living standard in a
holistic manner.

SATYA has adopted SPM as an approach to put clients at the centre of all strategic and operational decisions
which has led to a transformation in the lives of the underserved. It is a measure of how effectively SATYA's
mission statement translatesinto practice with the accepted social values.

NOTABLE ACHIEVEMENTS & INITIATIVES DURINGTHEYEAR

Client Protection Principles (CPPs):

SATYA has endorsed SMART Certification and is also committed to the seven Client Protection Principles.
CPPs are being adopted, implemented, and monitored through SATYA's social dashboard. They are also
included in our training process in a comprehensive manner so that fair and respectful practices can be
implemented in the organisation. As of now, a total of 1800+ employees are already imparted with training on
CPPs.

Ratings & Grading:

SATYA believes in scalability, sustainability and reliability of internal processes, controls, and governance
structure. Thus, SATYA has conducted the financial and social assessment for the company which was
executed by ICRA & ACUITE most recently. We are delighted to report that SATYA received the COCA
Grading by ICRA of C2 (pronounced as C two) and an uplift in the MFI Grading by ICRA as M2+
(pronounced as M two plus) as well as an uplift in the Credit Rating by ACUITE of ACUITE BBB+
(pronounced as ACUITE triple B plus).

SPI4 Audit:

SATYA's prime focus is to cater its client's needs in the best possible manner and put clients at the centre of all
strategic and operational decisions which lead to transformation in their lives. SPI4 tool is a pragmatic way to
strengthen the client — focused management practices. Considering this, recently SATYA's SP14 Audit was
conducted wherein SATYA received the Audit scoring of 83%.

FEEDBACKLOOPSINACTION

Client feedback and satisfaction is one of the important indicators for any business. MFI industry being
competitive; it is important to ensure minimum client drop out, effective client service and safeguarding
client loyalty. SATYA ensures that employee and client friendly policies are followed up during designing and
disbursement of loan products to the clients. During the year, 95% of the SATYA clients rated staff behaviour
satisfactory and 90% of the clients were satisfied with loan products pricing mechanism. 98% of the clients
rated their engagement with SATYA as satisfactory based on the USPs offered by SATYA. This was also
evident as client loyalty where 95% of the clients reported that they would like to get additional loans from
SATYA incoming future. SATYA also focuses upon providing accessible platforms to the clients to report their
grievances and create awareness within them. It was noted that 95% of the grievances received during the
year were solved within TAT period along with 98% satisfaction rate of clients. Multiple platforms are being
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promoted for grievance registration for which 70% of the clients were aware about multiple channels for
GRM.

DESIGNING PRODUCTSTO ENHANCE QUALITY OF LIFEOF BOP

SATYA's Water and Sanitation loan for the women clients:

Water & Sanitation loans are introduced by SATYA to provide sustainable solutions for the people at the
bottom of the pyramid (BoP) to access affordable financing to access safe drinking and sanitation facilities. It
helps to empower the people to solve theirimmediate need and continues to enrich their life. It also brings a
substantial change specially in the life of women and children in terms of their dignity & safety. SATYA has
designed the Water & Sanitation Loans in such a way that it provides a one stop solution for its clients. Under
the W&S Loans or the WASH Programme as it is preferably known, SATYA has defined five pillars as a Strategy
which are Awareness Programmes, Product Dissemination, Compulsory Group Training, Loan Utilization
CheckandImpact Evaluation to see the change in the life of the people.

SOCIALINITIATIVES

Every revolution begins with a small step. Every small action or thought carries the seed of future's success. It
is by one small action, by one small thought what can put the world upside down, it is the small details what
creates a huge difference and impact on the way human beings live and experience life. SATYA has put a step
forward and taken some social initiatives for the noble cause which are as follows:

PLASTIC FREE CELEBRATION

SATYA has joined the recently launched national campaign to eliminate single use plastic from our daily
working environment. SATYA took a conscious decision of not to use plastic water bottles for our two days'
annual event (Vihangam). The event was attended by more than 1,700 SATYA employees in addition to
around 300+ external attendees which ensured non usage of atleast 15,000 plastic bottles.

Showing further commitment towards this cause, SATYA provided insulated steel bottles to its entire
workforce (Head Office staff plus the field staff) to ensure the ban of plastic bottles in all the official premises.
SATYA s devoted to this cause and shall continue to take steps in future to reduce our plastic footprints.
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IMMEDIATE RELIEF CAMP FORCYCLONE FANIAFFECTED FAMILIES INODISHA

Post the cyclone Fani occurrence, SATYA as a socially committed organization moved into instant action,
designing and initiating a relief operation plan to stand with the aggrieved people of Odisha in their time of
crisis, devastation and loss. Apart from instantly sending the local team to affected areas, the company also
sent a senior level team from the HO to implement and monitor the relief plan with telling effect at the ground
level. In their bid to provide relief to the affected people, SATYA distributed relief packets with 15-days food
provision to the client families across four districts, namely, Puri, Khordha, Jagatsinghpur and Cuttack. This
was enough to sustain them even in absence of any immediate support coming to them, thereby, supporting
the scale up of the relief operation for Odisha, for 2,500 Client's families who are affected by Cyclone Fani.
Apart from the instant relief provisions given to the affected clients at their doorsteps, SATYA team was
actively involved in the restoration work like shifting the house-ravaged families to safe places like
Aanganwadis, schools and temporarily prepared shelter homes in coordination with government and also
facilitating various provisions on ration card provided by government, as well as ensuring delivery of water
tankers to villages in our intervention area. The restoration work was started by the staff of SATYA in different
place of Odishainanimmediate and prompt manner.

DIGITALFINANCIALLITERACY AWARENESS CUMTRAINING 2.0

SATYA developed an advanced structure of content and innovative methodology of communication as part
of its educational strategy to teach its clients about digital financing in an easy-to-understand manner. This
awareness cum digital training included explaining the concepts using pictures and making the content
more engaging and the teaching process more immersive by including the relevantinformation inthe
script of street plays.
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Digital financial literacy training & customer awareness
have been merged into the teaching program to
enhance the impact of the mission after receiving
encouraging response on the use of digital presentation.
In addition, the program also sought to train them in the
use of various mechanisms of digital financial services
such as Debit Cards, IMPS, Paytm Wallets and transfers,
UPI, Bank PoS machines, and so on. The goal behind the
program was to enable the rural stakeholders and clients
to access and use electronic payment systems, to make
them understand the concepts of mobile banking, BHIM
App, Paytm App, ATM Cards, Micro ATM (Aadhar Based
Payment System). SATYA has also worked upon the grassroots with the clients in inculcating saving habits
within themas the first step of their relationship with SATYA.

The digital financial literacy programme was hosted in this financial year where multiple workshops were held
across Shiv Sagar, Tezpur, Golaghat, & Jorhat region of Assam. The aim is to impart digital financial literacy to
more than 1,200 women clients across 50 villagesin Assam..

SPREADINGWARMTHWITHBLANKET DISTRIBUTION DRIVE

>
|
o

A blanket distribution programme was organised in the month of December with an aim to safeguard the
lives of the most vulnerable people during the extreme winter season in our operational areas. A total of more
than 1,150 blankets were distributed in various operational areas of Bihar, Uttar Pradesh, Punjab and Delhi.

SUPPORTTO PRIMARY SCHOOL, KADIPUR, SULTANPUR, UP

SATYA has adopted a primary school Vijuthua (First), Kadipur in Sultanpur district (Uttar Pradesh) to develop
as model schoolin the month of December 2019. It had been inaugurated for the first step of development by
Ms.C. Indumati, District magistrate, Sultanpur (U.P.). DM Sultanpur Madam honoured the Grandfather of Mr.
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Vivek Tiwari, MD, CEO & CIO -SATYA, for his contribution towards society and also handed over the
renovated school with modernfacilities to the children and teachers.

DIGITALOPD FORSATYA'SCLIENTS, EMPLOYEES AND THEIR FAMILY MEMBERS

E‘Fnr ‘the Employees of SATYA
& their Family members

Q SATYA “Tension is more dangerous . masum”

than Covid 19"

Get your queries answered by our Doctors.

Avail Free Telephonic Consultation

Cnntar.:t D22-61ﬁ?66?0

Mote : The service can be availed anly through the Registered
Mobile Numbers/ CUG Numbers provided by SATYA

COVID 19 outbreak, apart from endangering
human lives, has also caused widespread panic
and an onslaught of rumours regarding the nature
and treatment of the disease. To aid its clients and
staff, SATYA launched a free telephonic medical
consultation initiative that would help its clients
and staff to easily consult a doctor over calls
about any symptoms they might be having or just
to gain general knowledge of the virus and the
precautions they can take. This not only helped
create awareness within the large client base of
SATYA but also aimed at facilitating the
government by reducing the burden on local
medical centres and hospitals by these families.

More than 70,000+ clients and their family
members accessed the SATYA Digital Medical

helpline and received consultations and prescriptions through this platform.

CREATING EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES -PUNJAB & ASSAM

T'

Employment Exchange at Punjab
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Rozgaar Mela — Recruitment Drive at Assam

SATYA, in association with the Govt. of Punjab and the Govt. of Assam, ran a state level recruitment drive
where eligible and qualified youths were selected to work with SATYA for state-wide expansion of SATYA's
operationsin these two states. Transparent and equal employment opportunities were promoted for all.

PROVISION OF KITS FORBLIND SCHOOL AND ORPHANAGE

SATYA conducted anin depth need assessment of few blind
school and orphanages. Based on the need assessment
results, the children within these schools and orphanages
were given basic hygiene kits (including toothbrush, paste,
etc.) and stationary kits (including pen, pencils etc.) Some
children who were good in extracurricular activities and
sports were also recognized and provided sports kits.
| Through these initiatives, SATYA aims at empowering and
{ improving the quality of services to children who are
homeless, blind and/or visually impaired.

Initiatives taken to combat the fallout of the COVID-19 are discussed in detail in the “SATAYA's Response to
Covid-19 Section.”

In conclusion, SPM at SATYA, is always envisaging to have a balanced performance on the financial and social
fronts which promote the core components of client and staff well-being while simultaneously achieving
financial sustainability.
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CLIENT SUCCESS STORIES

Dukheswari Narzary is a 26- year-old lady residing in a village named
. Mainashree Gaon in Bishwanath Chariali with her husband, Ajit and
two sons, Bikram & Paresh. As per the village norm, farming had been
the usual occupation for majority of the people living in the village and
¢ Dukheshwari's parents were no exception.

Dukeshwary Narzary Following in their footsteps, Dukheshwari was also involved in the

Success Follows those who Persevere  same line of work. With Ajit working far away in Bangalore, she had

gathered up all her savings and together, with the help of her parents, opened a small vegetable shop.

Since she had to take care of both the children alone, she couldn't give enough time to her shop which

didn't have enough footfall, ultimately suffered and resulted in incurring losses which further deteriorated
their familyincome.

The situation became so difficult that Ajit had to return home to help out Dukheshwari with the shop and
the household chores.

This was when Dukheshwari heard about SATYA MicroCapital from her neighbor and then, with her friend's
push, attended one of the projection meetings held by the company at their village. With the field officer
explaining about microloans and how they helped uplift the women & provide entrepreneurial
opportunities thereby benefitting the society, she got excited at the prospect and after discussion with her
family, agreed to joina group at her village along-with her neighborhood women.

Dukheshwari received the loan amount of Rs. 30,000 in March 2019 and her life started moving towards a
positive direction. With the loan amount in her bank and her husband's support, she carefully thought out
her new business plan and purchased a shop at a marketplace called 120 Bigha Center. She purchased a
bicycle for her daily travels and started buying steel roof, bamboos & fencing for her shop.

When the shop was ready, she purchased grocery items, gas stove, utensils, chairs, tables, fan etc. to cook
food and sell the same. With thisidea in mind, she started a dual business of a Grocery Shop Cum Hoteland
moved beyond simple vegetable selling.

With her husband helping her out with her business, she was free to look after her shop as well as give more
time to her children. The money woes gradually started fading as her income increased from a meagre Rs.
3,000-Rs. 5000 amonth toRs. 10,000 and sometimes Rs. 15,000 per month.

With the money she earned, after setting some apart for her savings & future investments, she was able to
transfer her children to a better vernacular medium school and now the children are happily studying in
class 6" & 3" respectively.

Her standard of living has greatly improved, and she constantly tries to innovate with her menu and
grocery items. Showing her gratitude towards SATYA, Dukheswari says, “I'm truly thankful to SATYA for
transforming mine & my family's life. The loan officer is always polite and treats us well. If I'm able to return
home happily after aday's work, it's only coz of the efforts of the SATYA family”.
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This story is about 55-yr old Rita Devi, a resident of Gonpura village in

Rita Devi Patna, Bihar. Rita and her husband, Sohan Prasad, have been married
together for more than 30 years. They have seen & successfully overcome many thingsin life — the struggles,
the hardships, the good times and the bad ones, all because they had the constant love and support of each
other.

Rita and Sohan Prasad are parents to two sons. With the lifesavings that the elderly couple had earned, they
spent all of it in building up & establishing their son's business start-ups and recently for their weddings as
well. Having fulfilled their parental duties, the couple focused on their small general store. Due to lack of
funds, they could not do much to increase business or keep items at the store which were more popular
among the village folk. Often, they had to depend on their sons for their daily needs which they highly
disliked. One day, onavisit to their friend's place, they shared about their plight. After carefully listening to the
entire story, the lady (Rita's friend and a SATYA client) told Rita about SATYA MicroCapital Ltd. and how with
the help of the microloans offered by the company, she had been able to set up her dairy business. She
recommended that since Rita and her husband had always dreamed of having a successful business, SATYA
would be the right ladder for her to achieve that dream. She informed her that there was another group
forming up at the moment, and how Rita could too be a part of it which would help her, and her husband
occupy themselves while becoming self-reliant too.

With much encouragement and thorough planning about their business idea, Rita Devi applied for a loan of
Rs. 35,000 in 2017 and with the same, expanded their small general store. The enterprising couple bought
more shop space and began keeping more items at the store. Apart from the usual products, Rita Devi also
started keeping home-made biscuits which quickly became highly popular among the village people.
Already having had experience in running a store, the couple was able to run the shop much smoothly now. As
months passed, the number of people coming to their store for everyday things also increased. This not only
ensured the inflow of a steady income every month but also kept them involved and busy which brought a
new sense of achievement and rejuvenationin their lives. Since the business performed so well, Rita Deviand
Sohan Prasad decided to preclose the group loan and in order to further expand the business, applied for an
Individual Micro Loan of Rs. 50,000.

It's been three years now that Rita Devi has been a loyal client of SATYA. In these 3 immensely successful
years, her business has achieved great milestones, the latest one being that she had had to expand and split
her shop in two stores as it was getting difficult to manage one huge store on its own. For the same purpose,
she hadrecently applied for aMicro Business Loan of Rs. 1,50,000.

During a current interaction with Rita Devi, the young-heart said, “At this age when everyone expects older
people to just sit at home, we are glad that we didn't give up. We had a dream and started working towards
achieving the same. Now me and my husband are living an independent life that we had always wanted. We
don't have to keep onrelying on our sons for our needs. It was what we had always wished for..”

SATYA not only helps provide entrepreneurship opportunities to people at the lower segments of the country
but also educates the clients about digital & financial literacy. Keeping the same thought in mind, Rita Devi
plans to opena mobile shop in the coming year. She says, “SATYA has played such animportant partin helping
us reach where we are today. | want to heartily thank the entire team of SATYA for helping poor people like us
reach places, even at this age, which would otherwise have been impossible to even dream of.”
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March 31, 2020 — SATYA
successfully disburses
loans worth INR 1,800

Cr.+ to over 4.5 Lac
microentrepreneurs.

March 07, 2020 — SATYA
celebrates the Landmark
Achievement of INR 1,000
Cr. Assets Under
Management.

— 1100Cr §j— —

August 12, 2019 August 15, 2019 — SATYA
— SATYA cumulatively opens its Circle Office in
disburses loans worth of Chennai and 110th Branch
INR 1,100 Cr. in Kanchipuram, Tamil
Nadu.

Bafya MicroCaphal coflects Rs 100 crore
throwgh cashless tansaciions

D_O o8 L -
¥ - " ;

July 30, 2019 — SATYA
becomes 1st MFI to collect
INR 100 Cr. through
Cashless Transactions.
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January 30, 2020 — SATYA

inaugurates its 135th
Branch at Chandkheda,
Ahmedabad and opens its
doors to its 21st state —
Gujarat

September 19, 2019 —
SATYA accomplishes the
empowerment of its
3,00,000
microentrepreneurs

June 30, 2019 — SATYA
opens its 100th Branch in
Deogarh, Rajasthan.
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January 30, 2020 — SATYA December 19, 2019 — December 18, 2019 — |
reCBelvethtlhe aVI\iarddf_Or the SATYA honoured as the SATYA awarded as the New
est icro Lending MicroFinance Institution of Age Fast Moving MFI at the
(N%EC“%SRA‘ESSSN%%?:‘;\f S the Year 2019 at the Iconic 5th Eastern India
Excellefidd Summit-a Business Summit & Microfinance Summit I
P) & |
5 | V' |— — (Workplace | — — —
DAYS
September 28, 2019 — OCto%g( 1"2, _2019d— SATYA November 13, 2019 —
officially introduces SATYA inaugurates its 125th
SATYA successfully “WORKPLACE by ] thh fyeely
completes “1,000 Days of Facebook” as a universal e B
its Operational Journey” medium for intra-office into its 20th State- Madhya
communication Pradesh

April 11, 2019 — SATYA received the Award
for "Best in Class Credit Underwriting
Solution" at the Treasury, Risk and
Compliance Summit 2019

Annual Report 2019-20 49



»
qa wa=] graT

»

XYY

TRAINING

METHODOLOGY

Digital training at SATYA

OVERVIEW

SATYA attaches greatimportance to training as anintegral part of its ecosystem involving both its staff as well
as clients. The significance of training at SATYA can be understood from the fact that Training constitutes one
of 5Ts that form the pillars of SATYA. SATYA, from the very beginning, has maintained a full-fledged team of
expert trainers with high competence level and now in each of the state offices, there is a training resource
person to take care of training requirements in their respective states. The emphasis on Training in SATYA is
further reflected in the fact that it is mandatory for every new entrant into SATYA to undergo a 5-day
induction training and successfully pass it before he/she is pronounced fit for final deployment.

The Induction training program aims to impart the trainees with an intimate understanding of SATYA as a
Company, its culture and values, also about the various service models, loan products and processes
associated with it apart from the first hand understanding of microfinance as an industry. The staff through
training are also capacitated to create awareness among the clients on matters of financial literacy, financial
discipline and maintaining a good credit history. Working on the model of PIE (Practical, Interactive and
Entertaining) we have tried to make training more collaborative and conducive to learning through
introduction of games, group tasks and group presentations. On the training assessment part, we have
adopted a composite methodology that provides weightage to group tasks and presentations apart from the
written quiz that is conducted at the end of the training. To make training open to improvements, every
training is followed by a feedback on the part of participants based on which necessary modifications are
made wherever deemed fit.

Apart from the induction training, the serving staff are also imparted refresher trainings from time to time to
keep updating their knowledge and help them fully realise their potential, performing to the best of their
capacity. Inthe last one year we have imparted refresher training to Branch Head and ACM level staff who are
more than six -month-old into the system. To constantly keep upgrading the training skills of trainers, a
Training of trainers (TOT) for state office-based training staff is also organised at Head Office (HO) from time
to time. Apart from this, the department in collaboration with M2i keeps posting online quiz periodically to
assess the knowledge level of trained staff.
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INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING LOCKDOWN

During the lockdown, the training team also organised online trainings to new staff through SKYPE, Work
chat and Workplace, which proved to be very useful in providing a hands-on training facility to the entire
staff. Inaddition to the induction trainings, we have provided training to the leaders of various states through
Work Chat groups on a variety of issues ranging from operational topics to motivational stories and
anecdotes to boost & motivate them in addition to preparing them to brave the challenges during the
lockdown period. Also, there's been a continuous flurry of uploads on workplace from the training
department that includes contents related to finance and Microfinance sector. Motivational videos and
stories have also been shared to aid the staff to cope
with stress induced by the Corona bred lockdown as
well as contribute to their knowledge about the sector.

To make the most of time during lockdown, there has 1 5 4
also been regular uploading of learning materials on
SATYA's traning app through which large number of
staff stuck indoors were able to defuse monotony and
also utilise their time in upgrading their knowledge
level.

Induction Trainings held

1,404

Trainees/Participants in the
Induction Trainings

105

Trainees/Participants in Online 1 3
Refresher Training during Lockdown Refresher Trainings held

366 176

Trainees/Participants in Online
Induction Training during Lockdown

Trainees/Participants in the

Refresher Trainings
[Class-Room Refresher Training (CRT)]

1996

Trainees/Participants trained 7 8 5
through Mobile-based Training

Application Trainees/Participants trained

through Mobile-based Training
Application
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NEW INITIATIVES

> Skill Development
> E-Learning Content
> Inside SATYA

SKILL DEVELOPMENT

As a new development, SATYA has got into
collaboration with Sri Vishwakarma Skill University
(SVSU), the first Govt. recognised skill university in

the country as Industrial partner to nurture
university student batches through Microfinance
centric vocational courses for different roles in o %
company in near future post completion of their ¥4
degrees.

E-LEARNING CONTENT : am(

We have also partnered with the best Video ' *N

production agency to develop real time videos on

various processes that aim to make operational i

learning more relatable and practically ~, ;

understanding and also to make it available to them ; :

virtually so that they could look over it whenever > ~ ‘ :

they desire and keep updating their knowledge level

about operational efficiency. 5 STRATEGY ! SUCCESS
: IN— b
i — | |
| ; = (O)
E—— |
. COMMUNICATION |  SOLUTION PARTNERSHIP VISION
Sy S 3=
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INSIDE SATYA

With a view to create an internal employee engagement platform to capture the creative skills of the staff; to
enhance their knowledge and for their entertainment, quarterly magazine 'Inside SATYA' was launched on
February 03,2020 in the presence of Mr. Vivek Tiwari, MD, CEO & CIO-SATYA and Board of Directors.

Training department with support
from Communication team was
instrumental in turning the
brainchild of our revered MD about
the magazine into a reality. The
magazine is designed in such a way
as to encapsulate the essence of
SATYA through kaleidoscopic
presentation of company and its
culture and achievements marked
by different events (like Vihangam,
Pragati Path, etc) and awards that
come its way. It also contains snapshots of company's star performers, microfinance industry and different
motivational articles and current topics apart from interesting bits of news from across the globe. Creative
contributions (such as poetry, drawing, etc) from staff of all levels who intend to showcase their talent to their
colleagues, find a prime place in the magazine.

Upcoming Initiatives //
. SATYAis also working towards developing training centres to be based
SATYA Gurukul : ))) in its different operational areas to train young professionals who are

aspiring to build a career in the Microfinance industry.

Digital Learning Platform : ))) SATYA, since its inception, is a technology driven
organization, whose business model, innovation strategy

and processes aims to add a social touch to lending by

@ 0 P integrating modern technology into the Micro Finance industry. To

S - further lend credence to a tech-centric approach, training is planning to

@ ) LEARNING g 0 move towards technology in a big way. The department is going to install

a digital panel display through which training sessions (both classrooms

and digital) can be made more interactive and meaningful with the help

of 2D-3D images, videos, PPTs and more multimedia based content. This
virtual classroom solutions are technology - leveraged learning system wherein the trainers are empowered
to teach interactively, and trainees are inspired to learn with a quest for excellence. The digital panel will be
integrated with an advanced learning management system, through which we can track progress of skill
development goals by maintaining employee dashboards and training records. This will also maintain
uniformity in training across organization.
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EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT
ACTIVITIES

WOMEN'’S DAY

Celebrating the women of
SATYA, event was also
featured live through the
Workplace App. Special
Women's Helpline (for the
female staff of SATYA) was
also launched.

HEALTH CAMP

Free health camp organised L

on May 03, 2019. 100+
employees signed up for
the service. A free medical
consultation post the
check-up was also
provided.

i

Micy

F
croCapiial Lid.
-

Team SATYA bringing in the
spirit of Earth Day to make a
green impact. Everyone
! dressed in the earthy colours of
: white, blue and green to
celebrate the beautiful Mother
Nature. The team from HO took
a step forward and planted
Ashoka saplings in the office
gardens, making their small
contribution on Earth Day.
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Months of sincere hard work and determination paid
off as SATYA accomplished the incredible milestone
of achieving INR 1,000 Cr. Assets under
Management. The day served as a joyous trifecta as
we celebrated this landmark event with the
International Women's Day and Holi.
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HOLI

This year, Holi was celebrated in a very unique way. Team SATYA
sprinkled flower petals on each other. This festival was also made
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Ganpati Bappa Moriyaaa!!!

Ganesh Chaturthiis celebrated as the birthday of Lord Ganesha, the symbol of wisdom
and remover of obstacles throughout the nation. This pious day turned out to be truly
special at SATYA when everyone clad in traditional attire offered their prayers to Lord
Ganesha.

The bright lights and befitting decoration added to the spirit of the occasion. Special
prayers were offered for the good health, joy and prosperity of our clients as well as our
employees across the country.

Christmas is always a season of joy and merriment and
this year proved to be no less. A SATYA team member,
dressed up as Santa Claus, brought with him the
Christmas spirit and cheer as he came around dancing to
the Christmas tunes and distributing gifts to each staff
member. It was a time of jubilation as everyone joined in

on the enjoyment and fun of the festival.
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OF OPERATIONAL JOURNEY
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12" & 13™ OCTOBER 2019
HYATT REGENCY, MANESAR




With much pomp and enthusiasm, SATYA MicroCapital Ltd. celebrated its third Annual Day Function -
Vihangam on 12th and 13th October 2019. Vihangam, which represents 'a panoramic bird's eye-view', is
anannual event hosted by SATYA which gives an opportunity to all SATYA team members to come together at
one platform and revisit the vision and mission of SATYA. The third edition of the Annual function was more
special also because SATYA had recently completed “1,000 Days of its Operational Journey™!

The grand 2-day celebration was held at Hyatt Regency, Manesar and was attended by thousands of people
from across the country. Encompassing the audience were many eminent and distinguished stalwarts from
the BFSI and the Microfinance sector whose captivating speeches motivated and inspired the 1500+ strong
workforce of SATYA who came from across the regions of North, South, East, West and Central India. The
guests of honour also congratulated SATYA for its accomplishments of the year.

Commencing the programme with the ceremonial lighting of
the lamp, Shri Sahibji Satguru Madhu Paramhans ji
additionally enchanted the audience with his illuminating
speech, retelling the stories from his childhood and further
encouraging everyone to give their best, be it in their
personal or professional capacities.

The key highlights of the event consisted the launch of the
new SATYA Brand logo by Guruji, release of the SATYA Geet
- “3man HET-ﬁ, ﬁ'ﬂT FI?IT&...” - in eight vernacular
languages (i.e., English, Punjabi, Bengali, Assamese, Oriya,
Kannad, Tamil and Malayalam), the SATYA Client Connect
App (an Android-based Application to facilitate the clients
around their loan processes — details of which are discussed
more in the technology section of the Annual Report) and
Workplace - an intra-office communication platform for all >
official communication. It also included the state-wise

cultural performances prepared by the respective team

f*hl‘h_-h_* E 3 .
. a1
SR R WL e
members.

. (Shri Sahibji Satguru Madhu Paramhans ji)
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Release of the SATYA
Geet — “3(T3{t g,
feorSam...” - in
eight vernacular
languages (i.e.,
English, Punjabi,
Bengali, Assamese,
Oriya, Kannad, Tamil
and Malayalam).

With SATYA, being a socially committed and responsible
organisation, the theme of this year's Vihangam was to
promote a “Plastic-free environment and Go-Green”.
To further honour this commitment, all the guests and
speakers were felicitated with a Terrarium. Additionally, it
was ensured that there were no single use plastic bottles
in the entire event. Everyone was provided a 'steel
drinking water bottle' and glasses so that the use of
plastic bottles and/or cups could be avoided.

P, Samjoay
Mominoae

nilor arad Cliie
Trmrtmessal Seceo
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Weeks of diligent practice and perfection in the acts was
evident through the magical and entertaining activities. Be it
the cultural dance routines (individual and group), plays,
tableau, mime acts or singing — every single presentation
stole the show and made the spectators spell bound.
1 Furthermore, special programmes in the form of “Haasya
Kavi Sammelan” and Motivational Presentations also took
1 place wherein the special guests uplifted everyone's spirits
through their performances as they brought humour to key
learning aspects and motivated the audience.
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To add value & acknowledge the
employee's efforts, rewards and
recognitions were also
conducted to appreciate the
note-worthy performances and
encourage the staff. Continuing
with the tradition, this year the
Navratna Awards were
felicitated to five exceptionally
dedicated and passionate
. Senior Management Team
Members:

Ajay Kumar
Head — Human Capital

Gambheer Chaudhry Ashutosh Mishra:
State Head - Punjab VP - Operations

FSAT!'Q : @ SAT YA MicroCapital Led.
) J e welcomes o T -
2819 lhar‘ﬂam 2019

;r‘ ‘ i“tl”hhﬂ ‘u l.i 1 lliii hi

| ]
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e = - QEA'I"‘ For SATYA, its people Qeir’
lsATYA ﬂﬁgmﬂiﬁ ~ teams are the most impo ;aht\
| E AR resource. This year, not one, but
D EPA R MENT 0 F - E y two departments, i.e., Finance &
oo . Information“technology”/(IT)
" ‘ o . - shared the prestigious award for
" the Department of the Year. The
‘ awards were received by the
§ department heads, ‘Mr. Sanjay
Goel (Head - Finance) & Mr.

= Ashutosh Srivastava (Chief
TechnicalOfficer & Head - IT).

N

e T f- ; @ SAOAT YA
£D AT YA Wﬂﬁﬁriﬁ_i Z01 9

[URE LEADERS OF SATYA

To honour the employees who
display exceptional leadership
qualities and their zeal to
collectively work towards observing
the company's vision, SATYA
felicitated them with the Future
Leaders of SATYA Award.

E SATYA has always focused
towards providing a work culture
and an environment wherein its
! employees can develop their
potential and further expand their
personal and professional
= capacities. Recognizing the
d individual and team efforts for
their brilliant work performance
and loyalty they have exhibited towards the company, SATYA rewarded the staff members for the categories:
Best Team Awards, State Head, Zonal Business Head & Branch Head Overall Performance, Assistant Credit
Managers, IML Top Performers, MBL Top Performers, Self-Driven Employees, EDO Overall Performance,
Cashless Collections, CDL Top Performers, Best Documentation & Filing, Sales Officers - MBL, Sales Officers -
IML, Top 101 EDO Performances, MD Special Recognition, Overall Winner, Best Performance, Special
Recognition — Audit andSpecial Recognition — Credit.

To bring these two days of learning, enjoyment and
engagement to a close, Mr. Vivek Tiwari, MD, CEO & CIO -
SATYA, addressed the audience, underlining the key
achievements of the company over the years, reinforcing
the holistic values upheld by SATYA and boosted the team
morale and esprit de corps.
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SATYA Mu:roCapltal raises INR 105 crore equity
fundinz from Ianan based Goijo & Company Inc.
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Satya Micro Capital donates

10,000 surgical gloves, 10,000

3-layer masks to Assam Govt

GUWAHATI, APR 25: Satya Micro Capital Lid, India’s
fastest growing NBFC-MFI (licensed by REI), headquar-
tered in New Delhi and with presence in 10 districts of
Assam, has donated 10,000 surgical gloves and 10,000

I-layer masks te help
support COVID-"IQ workers in quar-
antine facility at Sarusajal

and other disiricts of Assam.

Babul Hogue, State Operations Head, Assam and
Arghya Praten Mandy, Regional Human Capital Head,
handed over the materials to Biswajit Pegu, DC, Kam-
rup Metre, n presence of Kaustay Talukdar, Project Of
ficer, District Disaster Management Authority, Kamrupi
Matro).

The company has alse donated Rs 21 lakh to PM
Cares Fund, according te a press release.

PPE kits,
masks donated

GUWAFATY, Aprd o7 bia-
harasatm ancd B Healta-
vitre Sovmal Frasdation donal
100 PPE s -ad 300w
ply sk te Marwon Flosps
tals barw b Cemweral -
Slazwusi Hosgatals K5
wivpd the o Fom
e representative of Najs
HNealibeare Saool Ksandanan
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Delhi FinTechs: Lending more,
rising higher
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by Amol Dethe & Samiksha fsdn

Deelhi..Dibwalon kee. (People with big bearts)

Sumidlle- aped man wearing an old and aliirt anl tpcuser look: far ks

v TEcdm 1l eedal i i

WA o i
ragnaehe

i b 14N Pheons Preahuy|

w hileyrhe and
peddals the cycle. He pours all his e ishees thee pedal in full force in
the middle of the road. In the a #1, Metro, carpool and E

rickshawes, which quickly crosses him, be fnds his way.
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= e e e ]

Satya MicroCapital Announces Chairman of
Fintech Convergence Council (FCC)

(=]
Satya MicreCapital announced appolntment of Navin Surya, Chalrman of
v Fintech Convergence Couneil (FCC) 1o its company boand
EROomo
- @ Satya MicroCapital Ltd.
1 3 Erp e e gEEnry rees B e deosds. Hinn hes bl rereooas sede el ks el Hes el e
b 1t farr o R 1 bl g e bt e b N i e

et T T T |
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Charraan. Lisbe i sspe ol iclerast o

W B Sinelgeran

Thae MSME secor is corsigered o5 the backbone of Endian soonoomy. The gosvernment is alsa
larnirg to ralse che coptrbut ion ol the sectar 1o the cauntry's GOV 1o S0 gercer from the
oresere XY percent, and ensure that (@ creates employment apportunizies ta at least 15

crore people against the 111 crore an present.
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How India's fintech platforms are becoming a beacon
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Satya MicraCapital
raises 150 cr via NCDs
Microfinance startup Satya
MicroCapital Limited on
Thursday announced that it
has raised Rs 50 crore in
debt funding, by issuing
non-convertible debentures
(NCD=) to Mauritius-based
Aviator Global Investment
Fund, in a joint venture
with Northern Arc Capital,
for three years, The start-up
will utilise the firesh funds to
process lending 1o MSMEs
in India, largely for ineome
penerating activities under
taken by women borrowers.
In debt funding, a foreign
portfolio investor jointly in-
vests with a domestle lender
in tandem with the RBI's re-
guirement of an FPI invest-
ment not exceeding 50% ina
corporate bond issuance,

TSN

Businéssline
|

L L R T s )

Satya MicroCapital raises INR 500 mn via NCDs to Aviator Global
Investment Fund, Northern Arc Capital

Whewk Timari. WD, Satps
M ala i
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Ex-RBI ED Surekha Marandi joins SATYA MicroCapital
Board as Independent Director

=
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BENE‘H TATUA Murvfaged Loy b i Vet Alarwad Cersnlle e B
. Eibets Ko 15 Lakie Syogie i Sy

SAT YA Meralapital Limded b lssrchad 1 digisl plsitorn

in provics fres-al-coa 24T ssepherse medicsl conslision
“Dsgdue Showilown, Growih 0F Micrs Tinane: Secior = i
T Remin Strang™ Vivel Tivard, Managiog Director,

SATYA Macrnlapital

Bimectndis | Fammer Fes=ne Back of ndis Bescut ve Dirscior Surekha Marand Fas joimed

Ltpi Missnsapital bwcd m an bdepeilan] Qibcioe ®AR & wod muitilee o eparens &
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armid tha cenromic skivdown, it curmest sl abes, the ndusiey s sspecind 1o
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ihe undersenved o Firsl Rousehelis, where the affects of scanamic changes ek
Tims in mach rglned R Wiek Tiwarl, Menariae Diector of SATYA MicroCaptsd
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With Rs.1000 crore loan outstanding
portfolio SATYA MicroCapital adds anothe
win
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BE i nPAY  MARRETS  [CVERMES  IDOndiME  SWC-TRCH | G Al [ R Private Equity ‘Vesdurs Capal Anicormm covioia Feopls Floern
CATaP e ] By | Al tee | ek Al | e | s [ty | voxis FER L
) v India Dealbook: Yelo, Satya MicroCapital,
Maney & Banking : Mobikwik in funding news

Satya MicroCapital raises Rs 28.5 crore
through NCDs

i | Lpdabed on beptember 00 3017 | Bubligted on September 03, 2019

Satva MicroCapital ig
an NBFC-MF] that
offers collateral-free
credit (o micro
enterprises

i fin
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[Funding Alert] 5atya MicraCapital raises Rs 50 Cr by
Issuing NCDs to Aviator Global and Morthern Arc

Satya MicroCapital collects Rs 100 crore through
cashless transactions

DELHI: Satya MicroCapital Limited
[SATYA]J an RBI registered NBFC-MFI,

has recently crossed Rs 100 Crores o Az 4 MSHES Ve

Wil

sairier s Capiod, Toe tes

s M3
worth of cashless collections in less St o nd
than two and half yvears since its 301 PRI Irweskiomat e
l'\rlﬁ'.b'.]"i.l:ln'l'\-'

inception, [t claims to be the first MFI Wtfiatb AL Casiiad, b

£B

in the country to cross this amount. It ksl anre bl

WTewi T hvwar

has also crossed a portfolio of Rs 650

A Peneno Called Wicofinasrs

crore with over 2.85 lakh active clients.

aYoek Thears, MO and CEDL Sy MkrsCapind s,

D Gk icd st o1 10 D30+ williches F 100+ c3ideha in ower

dad- el DT yeEars

Satya MicroCapital carries out its o aih. i roni. Tha nar ab i

sl Pl e U ST s el

Bk L e L T OF i, Wikl coonti sy B devedog fUither Mnoytee redt 0% icgs el

cashless transactions by using biometric-based authentication through
Aadhaar Enabled Payment Services (AEPS). It transfers the amount directly

SRETInGg oo bete Erdaneasd digealy conimaben hipira pracessaa baing depioped

ot formge fmaertors pars Akt e e spprcprinte e paly

i, T addid

from the savings account of clients to Satya's account, This cashless ]

e of fore ign et furd; mamaged by

P b e niiulen

transaction process fulfils the objective of financial inclusion, prevention of S
o Baee coBecred As

frauds and enabling improved accessibility of efficient credit to micro- Semeer Al Fonaier

Tha HEI fridss ha

VHfazaaed invnement henk asded. thal sasng

WA (el FPES TG At [0 S0CEsS [P 05 SO sl (e imathe b

entrepreneurs.
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Voo T 1 Lk SR8 BT1E Eieschorn B Anncichi ot st et rviyinbien Micro women entrepreneurs power Satya MicroCapital turn
first MFI to collect this much in cashless transactions

Llninn BLIdgEt ZD‘IB ExPEEtat iﬂns & REHCtiDI'IS By FE Cnbinn | Publishod. July 30, 2049 B:30 PM
uf diﬁe re “t tech indus‘t ries Satya MoCapital, which casess 1o micra Wamen enfrapreneurs, saw dase 1o 37 par cenf of

i= {olsl collesiable insisbmans of loans

i through cashisss sollsctions in he (aet hres

15 oparational

#r Vivek Tiwari, MD & CEC. Satya MicroCapital, e

et witarng

Todey, as India = keaving no stone uniemed n erms of digital adoption, the Govermment is taking
all the ight measunes 10 furbar calalyze (hs devalopment L is enhancing tha rual inlraetuchine
while alzn makng it aasiar for Indian MSMES w0 increasa their digital faotprnt. Tha creation of &
sngla-window platform far end-to-end bl poyments of MEMES is ore of thess oteps and will
augment tigilsd edopuon of Indan MSMEs, The Covemment has also pronvesd 1o extend loans of
up 1o Rs 1 orore o MSWES, perfecity in lme with the vision of fmancial indusion. Bath of thesa
developments, Le. digilal ersblems ol and Enancal incusion, wil make || considarably eesiar o
W 1 1ha sagmaent and unick tha tnie potantial of this growih engine

Starmp Indis

Budget 2019: SME e-payment, free digital transactions,
online credit in fintech push to drive financial inclusion

By Basrwhins Savetl | Lipsdenied) Jui ;2019 309 Phi
Burget 2018 India: The lirance minister siressed on the sasy credil access o MSMESs for
which op 1o Ris 1 crode loan:is introduced within 58 minutes through a dedicated online portal

Union Budget 201% India; Financial techrnalogy {fniech) has no mare ramaned as simphy-an
enabler i the financal servioes ecosystem, Fintech has got embedded m it fo b axterd thad
its role has evolved from dipkal products and sereces n e inanciadl serices and banking
segment (o a much more strabepc ane of inancial inclusion and digial payments. And some
of the announcements made by financs minsler Nirmaa Sitharaman in her maiden budgel
speach on FI'iIh:'l:.I qi\'E’B Turhar draction to thal finandal inckusion

Himmala Sitharaman, for inslanca, aid 1hat & r;a:.-menl platformy for small buginessed will be
created Tor fikng 1helr bels 1o s over thair dalaysd paymant [Bswe from the gowamment and
ewariually saiving for her cagh fows prabkam, “The Governmeant i\ @nfancng (ha miral
Infrashructung whits-alep making A easier Tor Indian MSKES 10 mcrease heir digital footpnt.
Tha craation of a single-window platform for enc-is-end bE payments of MEMES t5 one of
ez stops and will sugment digital adapdon of ndian MSMES * sald Vivek Tiwan, MO &
CEQ, Satya Moroapital

EEA-  WEELD - CDHRSSED - FERIDHAL FRRSRCE =

MBFCs facilitate income regulation of MSMEs, help in

shaping economy : Vivek Tiwari, CEQ, Satya
MicroCapital Ltd

How Mew Age Digital Lenders are strengthening the
backbone of economy "MSMEs'
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After the marathon seven-phase ganeral elections which concluded yastanday with the

Expﬂctaﬁﬂns 2.0 frﬂm Mlﬂdl 2.0: lﬁustaiﬂahility‘ ruling party. the Bharativa lanata Party come roanng in, crossing the 300 seat mark
= ' i Boliri i Modi i & Tar his sscond berms ity the cilizesns ¢

mhustness ar‘d more Effﬂl"ts in Staﬂupﬁ Frime Mirber Marendra Modi is all set for his 2acond bernure. with the cilizens of the

courtry placing ther hoges in the miling govermnment. Among the policies and

A It { MALICIFLA i | s petn conbibubed Lo e udding programs that Modi came up with in his Last tenure was tha Startup India, to fual the

L f ulariup groadh of the entrepreneur and stardup sector of the counlry Wilh  -MADE prograr

m n m and WUDRA Bank's scheme under the Pradhan Mantri Mudra Yojana, Modi under his
reagn contrituted to this budding ecosystern With Modi 2 0 underway, several stafup

ZmpBiz WebTeam ouwner and entreprenewrs have raged the bar of espectatiors, woicing why the

ket T iy 34, 2814 government needs Lo pour mong atlention in the slartug sector

S Teelhiz Wehllnk Stating his exgectaton from the BJP govemment. Sanjay Sharma. Founder & Managing
Diractor, Aye Finance, said “The Govemmant Policies nesd to focus on creating a
supportve  esoodystern which ermpowed  micro enbenrises o ceabe  globally
compatitive products mther than granting boan wabers which only leads o

dapendency and inadequacy in tha sectar Whils & It of work has basn dona by SIDE

& RE, we need mone efforts in this direction to develop a more sustainable and robust

sactor”

“Start-up enlerprises anre gaing 1o play a vital role 0 the success af the counbry. To
bt the start-up ventures in India. Sovernment should aim at facilitating ease of
business to start ups which can be dona through easy compliance and tae holidays
cormmerted Vivek Traarn, MO and CEC, Satya MooCapital

Ha further adds “In addition bo this Government should tanget to arange easy and low
oosl funds’ acoess 1o starl ups through specially Tocused funds as well a8 neladed
guigislinas for FOI for start-ups. Snce Start-ups will play an irmgortant ole in genarating

amploymant in tha country a5 wall, Gowernmant should also frame ncantive schames

for start-ups for providing Subsidies in vamous forms
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Here is how technelogy is boosting the Fintech
startups

B T T e e —

Satya MicroCapital becomes the first MFl to collect I3
Rs 100cr through cashless transactions

32% of Satya's total collectable instalments of loans came
through cashless collections in the last three months,

Moneycontrol News dmoneycontrelcom “ nm n

Uitkmate plan Tor Gife's whpredictable swents
Gt 4 plan options with HIFCLIfe ClickIProtect Plus

Listen to this artbcle now
mnd Pomseerad by Trinmy A

Leanunned

Technolagy tBnds o accelerats sven the simplest of things. The sama & the case with
the ermérging . fintech Slarlups Thése staflups  have incorparsled and absorbed
technology and smart programming which ensures that ¥

thi fina

chstomes o cllent gets all

cial ald witholt any hassies and tedous documentation In traditional systems
the firancial procedunes N serices swech as laans iake time. Bad credit history, negative
CHIL seons adds (o e wons of ik sppiicanl Howsver aten il cames 1o smeas sach
a5 joans and. adyanced and efcent techmological sysbems scrulinige the profile well
and offer the best loan plan L also belps fo minimize the chances of the loan cases

Satya MicroCapital. an KBl registered NBFC-MFL has recently become the falling i the red mgon and uplift tham i gél 1o the geein region ie this applicant gels
15t MFI to cross a whopping INR1OO crores worth of cashless collections this [owars gagity and has<le-fres additionally, lechnolady bas made Lhe sysbem for e
in less thin tweo and hall years since its inception, Tt has also crossed a startups faster. efficient and responsible; which in tum helps the startup gain trafc

porifolio of INR&S0er with over 2,85 lakh active clients.— making its eniry

Ir e top 20 miceo Onance insdoutions i India
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors (the “Board”) take pleasure in presenting the 25th Annual Report of SATYA
MicroCapital Limited (the “Company”) together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended
March 31,2020.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Audited) (Audited)*
In Millions In Millions

Total Revenue 2,086.13 1,017.07
Total expenditure 1,975.16 1,020.49
Profit (Loss) Before Tax 110.97 (3.42)
Tax Expense 35.68 (0.79)
Prior Period Adjustment 0.00 0.00
Profit (Loss) after Tax 75.29 (2.63)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve Fund 15.06 6.47
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 2.48 (0.12)
Diluted EPS 2.43 (0.12)

* March'19 IGAAP comparative figures are replaced by INDAS published results in March-20.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

SATYA has undertaken initiatives with an objective to enhance customer reach and improve operating
efficiencies by implementing cashless system in all branches of SATYA, therefore, Operational performance
for the financial year 2019-20 is summarized below:

Duringthe FY 2019-20:

» the Company's Gross Loan Portfolio as on March 31,2020 stood Rs. 1,007.85 Crores;

» asonMarch 31,2020, Company has distributed loans to 3,81,788 Clients;
» total 150 Branches are operational at the end of March 31,2020.

RAISING OF FUNDS

A. ChangeinCapital Structure
During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company hasincreased from Rs. 50 Crores
toRs. 70 Crores vide Shareholders' approval on July 26, 2019.

During the year, the Company received FDI via issuance of 27,22,222 non-cumulative, participating,
compulsorily convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10/- each to “Gojo & Company, Inc.” (Gojo),

existing equity investor of the Company, in terms of the relevant transaction documents executed in March
2020.

Further, considering the need for business expansion and to meet the capital requirements, during the FY
2019-20, the paid-up share capital of the Company increased from Rs. 26,40,98,300 to Rs. 31,44,67,280
through following means:
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» During thefirst quarter: There was no allotment of shares.
» During the second quarter:
-onJuly 26,2019, the Company has issued 25,00,000 partly paid-up Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each on
private placement basis, out of which Re. 1/- has been paid.
-on July 26, 2019, the Company has issued 5,33,333 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each on private placement
basis;
-onSep 04,2019, hasissued 13,62,950 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each on private placement basis.
-on Sep 04, 2019, the company has received Rs. 1.5/- each on 25,00,000 partly paid up Equity shares
whichwereissued onJuly 26,2020.

» During the third quarter:
-on October 18, 2019, the Company has issued 25,15,615 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each on right issue
basis;

» During thefourth quarter:
-on March 31, 2020, the Company has issued 27,22,222 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of
Rs.10/-eachon Preferential basis.

B. Non-Convertible Debentures, Bank Lines & Commercial Papers

Apart from long-term loans, for diversification of the sources of funds and smooth operations-the
Company raised a sum of Rs. 302.49 Crores by way of issue of Non-Convertible Debentures, Securitization &
Assignments, External Commercial Borrowing and Commercial Papers.

INCREASE IN BORROWING POWERS

During the year under purview, the borrowing powers of the Company increased fromINR 1,500 Crore to INR
3,000 Crore on the recommendation of the Board of Directors & duly approved by the members of the
Company inits AGM dated July 26, 2019.

DIVIDEND

The Directors of the Company feel that it is prudent to plough back the profits for future growth of the
Company, hence, do not recommend any dividend for the year to the equity shareholders.

Interim Dividend
The Company paid semi-annual dividend to the Preference Shareholders holding 20 Lac Non-Convertible,
Redeemable, Cumulative, Preference Shares (“NCRCPS”) under NCRCPS 2018 Series — | on August 16, 2019.

REDEMPTION

On August 16, 2019, the Company redeemed 20 Lac Non-Convertible, Redeemable, Cumulative, Preference
Shares (“NCRCPS”) under NCRCPS 2018 Series.

On September 23, 2019, the Company redeemed 500 Unsecured, Redeemable, Unlisted, Optionally
Convertible Debentures having a face value of Rs. 1,00,000/- each.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

The Company continues to fulfill all the norms and standards laid down by the RBI pertaining to
non—performing assets, capital adequacy, etc. SATYA has been able to maintain a capital-to-risk weighted
assetsratio (CRAR) of 25.47% as on March 31,2020, which is well above the RBl mandated norm of 15%.
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RATINGS

During the year under review, ICRA Limited and CARE Ratings Limited, rated the securities of the Company
as follows:

m m Rating agency | As per final rating letter | Rating assigned | Valid up to

Long-term bank facilities CARE 3-Feb-20 CARE BBB-; Stable Refer Note 1 500.00
2. Long-term bank facilities ICRA 4-Feb-20 [ICRAIBBB-; Stable Refer Note 1 3500.00
3. Securitization ICRA 13-Mar-20 [ICRAJA-(SO)  17-Dec-21 212.07
4. Securitization ICRA 5-Mar-20 [ICRAJA(SO) 13-Nov-21 235.13
5. Securitization ICRA 25-Feb-20 [ICRA]A-(SO) 17-Jul-21 358.46
6. Securitization ICRA 27-Dec-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 17-Jul-21 224.75
7. Securitization ICRA 6-Dec-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 17-Jul-21 224.74
8. Securitization ICRA 6-Dec-19 [ICRAJA-(SO) 27-Jun-21 241.65
9. Securitization ICRA 30-Aug-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 17-Apr-21 277.09
10. Securitization ICRA 5-Aug-19 [ICRA]JA+(SO) 27-Feb-21 132.70
11. Securitization ICRA 6-Jun-19 [ICRAJA-(SO) 14-Jan-21 102.97
12. Securitization ICRA 24-May-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 12-Dec-20 97.74
13. Securitization ICRA 6-May-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 17-Nov-20 235.29
14, Securitization ICRA 27-Mar-19 [ICRAJA-(SO) 21-Jan-21 344.04
15. Securitization ICRA 26-Feb-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 12-Dec-20 412.40
16. Securitization ICRA 15-Jan-19 [ICRAJA-(SO) 22-Nov-20 111.29

Note 1: The rating is subject to annual surveillance till final repayment/redemption of rated facilities.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loan or guarantee to any person or any body corporate under the provisions
of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

RESERVE BANK OF INDIA (RBI) DIRECTIONS

The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India as a NBFC vide Registration No. 14.01513. The
Company continues to comply with the requirements prescribed by the RBlas applicable toit.

LISTING

During the year, the Company has issued Non-Convertible Debentures, and the said Debentures are listed on
the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

m Debenture Holders m Date of Listing

Unifi AIF 20 Crore April 26, 2019
2. Karvy Capital Limited Demeter Portfolio 10 Crore July 18, 2019
3% Karvy Capital Limited Demeter Portfolio 15 Crore August 09, 2019
4. UTI International Wealth Creator 4 28.5 Crore September 04, 2019

SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company has neither any subsidiary, associate Company nor any Joint Venture during the financial year
2019-20.

Annual Report 2019-20 73



»

[ e

= o -
9 HA] ld€:

»
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 12 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the annual return in form MGT-9 is attached to
thisreportasan Annexure-|.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The report on corporate governance is annexed as Annexure-ll and forms part of annual report. The
Company is committed to maintain the high standards of corporate governance and is continuously striving
toimplement several best corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (KMP)

All the Directors have varied experience and specialized knowledge in various areas of relevance to the
Company. The Board consists of directors appointed as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

i. Changeinthe composition of Board of Directors:

» Mr. Naveen Surya (DIN: 00094514), was appointed as the Additional Director (Independent Director)
onAugust 29,2019.

» Mrs. Vijayalakshmi Das (DIN:00624128), Independent Director of the Company, ceased to be the
director of the company due to her sad sudden demise. The Board wish to place on record its
appreciation for the valuable contribution of Mrs. Vijayalakshmi Das.

» Mrs. Surekha Marandi (DIN: 06952573), was appointed as an Additional Director (Independent
Director) on February 28, 2020.

ii. Details of the whole-time key managerial personnel (“KMP”’) of the Company as on the date of
this report are as under:

1. VivekTiwari Managing Director, CEO &CIO
2. Sudhindra Sharma Chief Financial Officer
3. RachnaKhantwal Company Secretary

BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year 2019-20, the Board of Directors of the Company met 11 (Eleven) times. The details of
the Board meetings and the attendance of the directors are provided in the Corporate Governance report.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the reporting financial year, the Independent Directors of the Company met on February 28, 2020
wherein the following items as enumerated under Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 were discussed:

a) Review of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as awhole.

b) Taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors; and

c) Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company
management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their
duties.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

SATYA gives paramount importance to its employees. Your Directors place on record their appreciation for
the significant contribution made by all employees, who through their competence, dedication, hard work,
co-operation and support have enabled the Company to achieve new milestones on a continual basis.
As of March 31, 2020, SATYA had 1,879 employees on its roll. The Company has fair and transparent
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recruitment and other policies which safeguard the interest of its employees.

ESOP

During the year under review, there was no change in SATYA Employee Stock Option Plan, 2018 (SATYAESOP
2018). The Company granted 9,95,200 options at an exercise price of INR 45 per share to the certain
employees of the Company under SATYA ESOP 2018. Details of ESOP disclosure pursuant to Rule 12 of
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of Section 62 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read withrules framed thereunderis asunder:

1. options granted 9,95,200
2. options vested 1,92,750
3. options exercised Nil
4, the total no. of shares arising as a result of exercise of option Nil
5, options lapsed’ 2,24,200
6. the exercise price INR 45 per share
7. variation of terms of options NA
8. money realized by exercise of options NA
9. total number of options in force 7,71,000
10. employee wise details of options granted to
i. key managerial personnel; 86,400
ii. any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of Nil

option amounting to five percent or more of options granted during that year

ii. identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to
or exceeding one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants Nil
and conversions) of the company at the time of grant

*Note: 2,24,200 options lapsed as eligible employees are no longer part of the company.

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIALPERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

| s.No | parTICULARS DISCLOSURES

. 1 . . . .
1 the ratio’ of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of Managing Director, CEO & CIO : 222.10:1

the employees of the company for the financial year;

Increase in Remuneration: Managing

the percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Director, CEO’ & CIO: 232.88% Chief

% Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year; Financial Officer: 18%
Company Secretary: 18%
the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the
3. . . 8.00%
financial year;
4 the number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 1879

March 31, 2020;

average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the

5. percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration;

The average increase in the salaries of
employees was 7.76% and the average
increase in the managerial
remuneration was 123.72°%

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company Yes

Note: 1. Average percentage of employees' remuneration is calculated on incremental salary whereas of managerial remuneration is calculated on base value;
2. The hike in remuneration of MD, CEO & CIO as compared to previous year is without considering 8.5 lacs sweat equity shares issued to him in the
FY 2018-19. There were no sweat shares issued in FY 2019-20 and therefore, the increase in remuneration was made considering effective salary of
previous financial year after considering the sweat shares.
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NAMES OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION DRAWN AND NAME OF EVERY
EMPLOYEE OF THECOMPANYWHO -

a. If employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the
aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees.

b. If employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, atarate
which, inthe aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month- None.

c. If employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year
which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at arate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn
by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his
spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company- None.

Employee Vivek Sudhindra |Gaurangini] Vasudha Sanjay Avishek ipi Ajay Indra Mani
Name Tiwari Sharma NET Goel Goel Kumar Verma

Managing Chief Head - _ N _ . Head - Head -
DESNENGY  Director, Financial D(e:'Euoty Internal I!.il:::ce ger:gi + OF|>-| (:}Zfi S Bll.l_ls;r;zss Human Business
CEO &CIO Office Audit & Risk Capital Development
PGDRM CA MBA PGDIM B.Com MBA PGDBM MBA PGDPM PGDM
Remunera-
5 tion ¥ 1,59,96,499  57,62,136 51,88,886 32,57,169 29,18,500  28,93,500  28,23,400 24,73900 20,44,000 19,54,150
eceive

Nature of
emg}gyﬁ%nt Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent

1-Nov-16 21-Apr-17 1-Aug-18 6-Feb-19 1-Nov-16 1-Nov-16 1-Nov-16 27-Apr-17 1-Nov-16 19-Apr-18

m 42 44 46 45 51 38 38 a a4 51

E(’:ﬁ?,'e'::‘s‘;e 18 20 19 20 20 15 15 15 18 23

iLegigr]al Sr. Manager Sl Zonal Zonal
ead in . i i
Last COO - Satin  CFO & Vice Rural & Dy. Vice (Finance) (OP r:?ftg:s) Prz;i\cg::t _ Manager %IEIRI\;I ?r?z?cier: Manager
SOV ERd  Creditcare President Inclusive President - Satin Fi Sati SV Creditli - Satin Credit - Satin
P ETER Network Ltd - Intec Capital — Banking - HDFC Creditcare atin reditine - Creditcare recitcare - creditcare
Group at Creditcare Pvt. Ltd Network Ltd
Ltd P Network Ltd Network Ltd Network Ltd
ICICI Bank Network Ltd
Whether Brother of
[ EUEE i Dr. Ratnesh
any Tiwari, None None None None None None None None None
director Director
AuchElH8 of Company
Percentage
of equity
shares held
by the 29.38% 0.29% 0.13% 0.01% 0.08% 0.44% 0.36% 0.16% 0.18% 0.02%

employee
in the
company

* Mr. Avishek Sarkar is not associated with the company w.e.f. March 31, 2020;
** Mr. Subhash Acharya is not associated with the company w.e.f. December 31, 2019
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DECLARATIONBY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)

The Company has received necessary declarations of independence from each of its Independent Directors
under section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/ she meets the criteria of Independent Director
envisaged in section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm:

1. That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

2. That the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

3. That the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. That the directors have prepared the annual accounts for the FY March 31,2020 on a going concern
basis;

5. That the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
suchinternal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

6. That the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INFORMATION ON MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS ORCOURTS ORTRIBUNAL

There are no material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status and Company's operationsinfuture.

Material changes after the balance sheet date
During the year, there is no material change in the nature of business of the Company which have occurred
subsequent to the close of the financial year of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All the related party transactions pursuant to Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) that were
entered into by your Company during the year under review were on an arm's length basis and were in the
ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant related party transactions made by your
Company with its promoters, directors, key managerial personnel or other designated persons, which might
have any conflict with the interest of the Company. Accordingly, there are no transactions that are required to
be reported in AOC-2 and as such does not form part of this report. Details of related party transactions may
be referred toin Note 31of the Financial Statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS

Statutory Auditor’s Report

M/s S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP (LLP Identity No. AAB-4295), Chartered Accountants (Firm No. FRN
101049W / E300004) were appointed in the Annual General Meeting held on June 03, 2017 as statutory
auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of five years until the conclusion of the AGM to be held in
2022. They have confirmed their eligibility for FY 2019-20 under section 141 of the Companies Act 2013
(includes amendments thereto), and the said appointment is in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Actandrules framed thereunder.

Your Directors do not observe any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the
statutory auditorin hisreport.

The Board has placed on record its sincere appreciation for the services rendered by M/s S.R. Batliboi &
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants.

Secretarial Auditors & their Report

In terms of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder and on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s
Bhupesh Kumar & Associates, Company Secretaries (ICSI Registration No. FCS 9688 & CP No. 12004) as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2019-20. Secretarial audit report as provided by M/s
Bhupesh Kumar & Associates s also annexed to this Report, in the prescribed Form MR-3, as Annexure-IV

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.
Any member interested in hard copy of the Secretarial Audit Report may inspect the same at the registered
office of the Company or write to the Company Secretary for a copy.

POLICIES

During the year, the Board approved and adopted the following Policies vide its board meetings held during
theyear:

m Name of Policy Date of Board Meeting

1. Social Performance Management September 11, 2019
23 Whistle Blower Policy September 11, 2019
St Provisioning and Loan Loss Policy September 11, 2019
4. Customer Grievance & Redressal Mechanism Policy September 11, 2019
5. Fit & Proper Policy November 29, 2019
6. Social Media Policy November 29, 2019
7. Anti-Fraud Policy/Fraud Risk Policy November 29, 2019
8. Demand & Call on Loan Policy November 29, 2019
9. Related Party Transactions Policy November 29, 2019
10. Outsourcing Policy November 29, 2019
1. Cyber Security Policy February 28, 2020
12. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy February 28, 2020

Sexual Harassment

Your Company has a policy for employees to report sexual harassment cases at workplace. This process
ensures complete anonymity and confidentiality of information. Adequate workshops and awareness
programs against sexual harassment are conducted across the organization. No complaints were received
during the financial year 2019-20.
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Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy for Directors and Employees

Your Company has an effective Vigil Mechanism system/ Whistle Blower Policy for directors and employees
to report their genuine concern or grievance and to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and
legal conduct of business operations. No complaint was received during the financial year 2019-20.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As per the requirement of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of
the Company has formed a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in the FY 2019-20. There was no
requirement to incur expenditure on CSR as per applicable guildelines, though company has incurred
expenditure on below listed CSR activities-

Education Initiatives:

» adoption of a Govt. Primary school in Sultanpur, U.P. by providing requested funds
amounting Rs. 6,00,000.
Initiatives during Disasters:

» immediate relief camps for cyclone "Fani" affected families in Odisha and monetary
assistance of Rs. 13,32,850.

Health and Sanitation Initiatives during COVID-19 situation:

» digital OPD for SATYA's clients, employees and family members.
» health Check-up Camp
» sanitizers and Mask distribution

Other CSR Initiatives :

» blanket distribution to the needful people
» donated Rs. 5,00,000 as relief fund during COVID-19.

Company expended Rs. 17,19,756 for above health, sanitation & other CSR initiatives.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A detailed discussion on the Company's operational and financial performance are given in the Management
Discussionand Analysis Report which is annexed to this Report as Annexure-|

DEPOSITS

The Reserve Bank of India in exercise of its powers under The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, has granted
NBFC status to the Company and the Company has no public deposit. The Board of Directors of the
Company have passed aresolution that the Company will not accept public deposit during 2019-20.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
ANDOUTGO

Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption:
Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, hence, the particulars related to conservation
of energy & technology absorption are not applicable.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

Further Information pursuant to Rule 8(3) (c) of the above said rule is mentioned below:

FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Expenditure/Remittances (Outward) in Foreign Exchange 1,66,39,490

Travelling Expenses = -
Fees and Subscription - -
Professional Fee 35,61,751 =
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Interest Payment — External Commercial Borrowing 41,16,261 =
Sitting Fees - -
I Earning/Remittances (Inward) in Foreign Exchange - -
Share Application Money/Share Capital Received - -
External Commercial Borrowing Received - -
Reimbursement of Expenditure - -
DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO ISSUANCE OF COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE
PREFERENCE SHARES
1 Date of Issue March 27, 2020
’ Date of Allotment March 31, 2020

Method of Allotment (QIP, FPO, ADRs, GDRs, rights issue, bonus issue, preferential

= issue, private placement, conversion of securities Preferential issue
3. Issue Price Rs. 135/~ per share
. . Not less than Rs. 135/~ per share

4, Conversion Price (i.e. Issue Price)
5 Number of shares allotted or to be allotted in case the right or option is exercised 2792992

: by all the holders of such securitiesn Price ee
6 Number of shares or securities allotted to the promoter group (including shares Nil

: represented by depository receipts); '
Z Allottee Gojo & Company, Inc.

.. 0.01% (zero point zero one percent)
8. Dividend per annum
9. Conversion period e at the option of the holder of the
Preference Shares;

e upon the earlier of (i) 1 (one) day
prior to the expiry of 20 (twenty)
years from the date of allotment
of such Preference Shares; or (ii)
in connection with an initial public
offering, prior to the filing of a
prospectus (or equivalent
document, by whatever name
called) by the Company with the
competent authority or such later
date as may be permitted under
Applicable Law.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There were no such changes occurred in the nature of business during the financial year under review.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide letter No. 1/3/2014-CL.| dated June 14, 2017 has
approved the revised Secretarial Standards — | on Meeting of Board of Directors and Secretarial Standards - 2
on General Meetings. The revised SS-l and SS-2 have been made applicable w.e.f. October 01, 2017 and
supersedes the previous version of SS-land SS-2. Your Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards
atalltimes.

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD

A formal evaluation of the performance of the Board was carried out for the financial year under review led by
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee. As part of the evaluation process, the performance evaluation
of Board as a whole was done by the Directors of the Board. The performance evaluation of the Promoter
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Directors, Nominee Directors and Non-Independent directors was done by every other Director. The
performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was done by the Board excluding the Director being
evaluated. The Directors expressed satisfaction with the evaluation process.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS BY THE COMPANY

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government as provisions
of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable on the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company maintains an adequate and effective internal control system, commensurate with its size and
complexity. The Company believes that these internal control systems provide a reasonable assurance that
the Company's transactions are executed with management authorization and that they are recorded in all
material respects to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with established accounting
principles and that the assets of the Company are adequately safeguarded against significant misuse or loss.

CHANGE IN DIRECTOR'S DISCLOSURE

Directors have disclosed their interest of shareholdings and Directorship in other Companies at the
beginning of the financial year 2019-20 and interest changed during the year.

EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

During the financial year 2019-20, 4 (Four) Extra-Ordinary General meetings were held on June 26, 2019,
August 29,2019, November 11,2019 and March 28, 2020.

CHANGE IN NAME OF THE COMPANY

The Company has not changed the name during the period under review.

FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY

The financial year of the Company is kept uniform so as to begin from April 01 and to the end on March 31
everyyear.

FRAUD REPORTING

No material fraud has been found during the period under review and no reporting of the same has been
done by any Auditor and any other Employee of the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors would like to place on record their gratitude for the cooperation received from lenders, our
valued customers and shareholders. The Board, in specific, wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation
of the contribution made by all the employees towards growth of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Delhi Vivek Tiwari Ratnesh Tiwari
Date: July 31, 2020 Managing Director, CEO & CIO Director

DIN: 02174160 DIN: 07131331
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ANNEXURE-I

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OVERVIEW

SATYA Micro Capital Ltd provides financial services to low income clients through JLG and individual banking
methodologies. It has been licensed by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to operate as an NBFC-MFI.

Financial Year 2019 - 20 has been a remarkable year for SATYA; as of 31st March 2020, the organization had
4,46,256 active loans spread across 150 branches in 22 states with a gross loan portfolio of Rs. 1007.85 Cr.
Total staff strength of the company was 1,879 employees.

During the year, SATYA has achieved a significant landmark of Rs. 1,000+ Cr. in Assets Under Management
with total Loan Amounts disbursed of Rs 1,800+ Cr.

COVID-19 PANDEMIC

As the year 2019-20 was drawing to a close, the entire world was struck with the global pandemic of the
COVID-19. Lives, livelihoods, and economies all around the world were severely impacted across various
sectors. With the Indian economic infrastructure also taking a blow, the microfinance industry faced the
brunt as well. Though, at the initial stage, SATYA's operations were impacted by the unfolding impact of
COVID-19, we were quick to realize the severity of the situation for our staff and the clients and hence took a
proactive approach towards the same. All our staff continued to work from home while keeping a constant
touch with the clients through the medium of telephones. To combat the on-going crisis, SATYA undertook
several relief measures for the clients, employees, and others in the community. Few of those initiatives are
enumerated below:

1. SATYARHTS - #MealForMigrants, a food relief campaign, was organized for the displaced migrant
population who faced issues related to food security. Our team from various branches coordinated the
operations from 35+ locations across India and distributed food to the peoplein need.

2. SATYA Clients are being provided moratorium as per the directions of the RBI.

3. We initiated a Digital OPD, a free of cost medical tele-consultation service, for our clients, staff, and their
respective family members. The service aimed at provision of free medical consultation over the
telephone from various experienced doctors and medical professionals.

While the things are slowly getting back to normal, major impact of the crisis on the business operations of
SATYA shall be visible only in the Financial Year 2020-21.

INDUSTRY SCENARIO

As per MFIN Micrometer, the microfinance industry has a total loan portfolio of Rs. 2,31,788 Cr. as on 31st
March 2020. Banks hold the largest share (39.8%) of portfolio in micro-credit with total loan outstanding of
Rs. 92,281 Cr. whereas, NBFC-MFIs the second largest provider of micro-credit with a loan amount
outstanding of Rs. 73,792 Cr. accounting for 31.8% of the total industry portfolio. Small Finance Banks (SFBs)
have a total loan amount outstanding of Rs. 40,556 Cr. with total share of 17.5%. NBFCs account for another
9.8% and the non-profit/other MFIs account for 1.1% of the total industry portfolio.

The NBFC-MFIs work through a network of 599 districts of 36 states and union territories providing doorstep
credit to low-income clients. The client base of the industry consists of 3.84 Cr. Loan accounts. During the
financial year 2019-20, PAR >30 was reported to be 1.88%.

BUSINESS GROWTH

In Financial Year 2019 - 20, SATYA strengthened its operations by expanding in 8 more states, making us
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profitably operational in 22 states now. The number of branches increased from 84 in March 2019 to 150 in
March 2020. The organization closed the year with a loan portfolio of Rs. 1,007.85 Cr., registering an
impressive growth vis-a-vis last fiscal. The PAR30 stood at 1.85% as on 31st March 2020. Our human capital
strength also grew tremendously from 1,026 in March 2019 to 1,879 employees in March 2020 signifying a
diversified yet unified strength of the company.

REGULATIONS AND COMPLIANCE

SATYA s registered as an NBFC-MFI with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The organization complies with the
requirements as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India as applicable to it. Other major legislations
applicable to the company are the Indian Companies Act and taxations related laws. SATYA complies with all
theregulationsinaproactive manner.

FINANCIALS

The total revenue generated by the organization was Rs. 208.61Cr. as on March 31, 2020 as compared to Rs.
101.71Cr. as on March 31, 2019. Despite the unstable economy and considerable sectoral challenges, SATYA
performed par-excellence andis proud to report a post tax profit of Rs. 7.53 Crin the financial year 2019-20.

As per INDAS, shareholders' funds increased from Rs. 86.50 Crore in the financial year 2018-19 to Rs. 171.77
Crores in the financial year 2019-20. The details of the shareholders holding more than 5% of the ordinary
shares of the organization are as under:

Mr. Vivek Tiwari 97,89,700 29.38%
Gojo & Company, Inc. 81,35,537 24.42%
Dia Vikas Capital Pvt. Ltd 67,73,475 20.33%
Ms. Maneesha Gupta 17,55,500 5.27%

During the Financial Year 2019-20, SATYA raised total funds amounting to Rs. 698.02 Cr. which includes Rs.
417.32 Cr. through term loans, sub debts, NCD, ECB and CP and Rs.270.70 Cr. through Securitization and
Business Correspondent and Rs. 10 Cr. through Overdraft Limit.

[ siNo. | Top Five Lenders of SATYA

IDFC FIRST Bank Limited
Northern Arc Capital Limited

1
2
3 ResponsAbility India Business Advisors Pvt. Ltd.
4 MAS Financial Services Limited

5

Bandhan Bank Limited

FUNDING MIX

Public Sector Banks 0.11%

*Private Sector banks including Small Finance Banks 26.78%
NBFCs and Foreign Lenders 48.07%
Others (Off Balance Sheet) 25.04%

*includes Cash credit, OD against FD & receivables, sub debt and term Loan
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RISK MANAGEMENT

SATYA has adopted a proactive approach to Risk Management. During the financial year 2019-21, the Risk
Management Framework was formalized under the overall supervision of the Board Risk Management
Committee. The Risk Management Committee, consisting of the senior staff members of the SATYA,
monitorsrisks on a monthly basis through a formal reporting mechanism.

The Risk Management department undertakes regular analysis of data to identify risks within the
organisation. [dentified and approved risk limits are monitored closely by the Risk Management department.
It also provides feedback to various functional departments so that the risks are identified early, and requisite
action canbe taken.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

As mentioned earlier, total staff strength of the company augmented from 1,026 as of March 2019 to 1,879 as
on March 2020. We are committed to provide a positive and beneficial working environment to our staff
members. Our Human Capital department is well staffed with able support team available in every state. The
online HR MIS enables data to be maintained in a systematic electronic form. We have a dedicated Employee
Grievance Redressal Mechanism for the entire SATYA team as well as a special Women's Toll-free Helpline for
our female staff members which we launched on International Women's Day 2020.

During this year, we conducted a Staff Satisfaction survey which provided insights about the staff perception
about SATYA. We are delighted to report that overall, the staff were found to be highly satisfied with various
aspects of their work! Additionally, we have also launched a dedicated web and mobile based platform -
“Workplace” for all our intra-office communications and employee engagement. We also offer several
training courses to the staff members using the training application of SATYA.

TECHNOLOGY

SATYA is committed to embracing a human touch and technology in all aspects of its operations. We believe
that technology enables us to enhance efficiency in our operations, reduce operating expenses and optimize
our risks. As more and more processes at SATYA are beginning to get nested under the digitisation canopy,
our services are becoming more efficient with our accuracy levels reaching newer heights to satisfy the
clients' needs and demands. With all our disbursements already being cashless since Day-1, we aim to
achieve cashless and paperless operations at all levels. Giving momentum to this idea, a significant
proportion of our collections are also cashless with SATYA achieving a record-breaking INR 500+ Cr. digital
transactions during this financial year.

We are constantly training our clients and partnering with appropriate technology/banking service providers
to further enhance the proportion of digital collections. We are also making appropriate interventions to
ensure that all our offices become paperless to a great extent. Delivering able support to our clients, we
developed an android based Application. The major technology related initiatives have been discussed in
detailin technology infrastructure section of the report.
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ANNEXURE-II

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31/03/2020
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 Corporate Identification Number (CIN) U74899DL1995PLC068688
2 Registration Date May 18, 1995
5 Name of the Company SATYA MicroCapital Limited
4  Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Limited Company/Limited by Shares
519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime Towers, Okhla Industrial Area,
5 Address of the Registered Office & contact details Phase-1, Delhi-110020, India,
Phone: +91-11-49724000
6 Whether listed company Unlisted Company
Izli‘r:kcl:ntime In.diacl?vt. Lthh  Near PVR Naraina Ind
7 'I,\'lrzrr?:fyeéig::z & gg;tact details of the Registrar & Aréa,?\lne]wllggm-11eggzeé ase-], Near FVK, Naraina Ind.

Phone: +91 1141410592
Website: www.linkintime.co.in

. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
(All'the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Name and Descrlptlon of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
products / services Product/service the company

Non-Banking Financial activities /
Microfinance activities

64990 100%

lll. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies

m Name & Address of the Company | CIN/GLN | Holding/ Subsidiary/ Associate | % of Shares held Applicable Section

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i) Category-wise Shareholding:

No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of

the year [As on O1st April, 2019] the year [As on 31st March, 2020]

Category of % Change during

Shareholders o the year
. % of total : % of total

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF 68,07500 21,47500 89,55,000 33.91 92,30,200 25,00,000 1,17,30,200 35.20 1.30
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp. (0] (] (] 0 13,08,333 (] 13,08,333 3.93 3.93
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 (0} (0} 0
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) Any other

(2) Foreign

a) NRI-Individuals 0 (] (o} 0 0 0 (] 0 0
b) Other-Individuals 0 0 0 0 (] 0 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corp. (o} 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (o}
d) Banks/FlI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (0]
e) Any other 0 (o] (o} (o} (o] (o] (o] 0 0

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 (0] 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks / FI 0 (0] (0] (0] (0] (0] (] (0] 0
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 (0] 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
g) Flls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (0] 0
h E‘;r;g,‘ penture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
I) Others (Foreign 0

Portfolio Investors)

(2) Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian (0] 65,08,901 65,08,901 24.65 72,77,202 6,000 72,83,202 21.86 (2.79)
ii) Overseas (0] 67,17,949 67,17,949 25.44 81,35,537 0 81,35,537 24.42 (1.02)
b) Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (o] (0}
i) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital 23,502 4,26,068 4,49,570 1.70 2,71,230 2,28,704 4,99,934 1.50 -0.20
upto Rs. 1lakh
i) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital 6,79,550 23,2310 30,02,660 11.37 23,17,605 9,26,917 32,44,522 9.74 (1.63)
in excess of Rs 1lakh
c) Qualified Foreign ) ) ) )
Investor
d-i)Trust 0 6,55,750  6,55,750 2.48 (o] 10,00,000 10,00,000 3.00 0.52
d-ii) Non Resident 0 0 0 0
Indian
d-iii) Hindu Undivided 0 0 0 0
Family
d-iv) Directors & their 120,000 120,000  0.45 0 120,000 120,000 036 (0.09)
Relatives
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters:

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
beginning of the year end of the year

% change in

Shareholder's

Name % of total | %of Shares % of total | %ofShares | shareholding
Sharesof | Pledged / No. of Sharesof | Pledged/ [ during theyear*
the encumbered Shares the encumbered
company |[to total shares company [to total shares
1. Vivek Tiwari 70,14,500 26.56 22.81 97,89,700 29.38 16.34 2.82
2. Maneesha Gupta 17,55,500 6.65 0.00 17,55,500 5.27 0.00 (1.38)
3. Ratnesh Tiwari 51,500 0.20 0.00 51,500 0.15 0.00 (0.04)
Koshish
4.  Marketing Solutions 0 0 0.00 13,08,333 3.93 0.00 3.93
Private Limited
5, Sadhna Tiwari 20,000 0.08 0.00 20,000 0.06 0.00 (0.02)
Vandna Tiwari 1,13,500 0.43 0.00 1,13,500 0.34 0.00 (0.09)

Note - Names of Koshish Marketing Solutions Private Limited has been added to promoter category through Board Resolution dated February 05, 2019
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding

Shareholding at the Transactions during Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of year the year at the end of year

% of total % of total
No of

Name & Type of
Transaction

Shares of Date of No. of Shares of
the Transaction Shares the
company company
1. Vivek Tiwari 70,14,500 70,14,500
Transfer 21-May-19 12,000 70,26,500 26.61
Transfer 21-May-19 20,000 70,46,500 26.68
Transfer 21-May-19 37,000 70,83,500 26.82
Transfer 03-Jul-19 1,000 70,84,500 26.83
Transfer 03-Jul-19 2,200 70,86,700 26.83
Transfer 26-Jul-19 1,85,000 72,71,700 27.53
Transfer 26-Jul-19 4,000 72,75,700 27.55
Allotment 26-Jul-19 25,00,000 97,75,700 33.20
Transfer 06-Feb-20 14,000 97,89,700 29.38
| AttheendofYear __ 9789700 2938
- Ratnesh Tiwari 51,500 0.20 51,500 0.15
- | AttheendofYear __ Ss1s00 015
3. Maneesha Gupta 17,55,500 6.65 17,55,500 5.27
© AttheendofYear __ __
4. Sadhna Tiwari 20,000 0.08 20,000 0.0

Koshish Marketing Solutions
Private Limited

Allotment 26-Jul-19 5,33,333 5,33,333 1.81
Right Issue 18-Oct-19 7,75,000 13,08,333 3.93
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: (Other than Directors and Promoters)

: Transactions during Cumulative shareholding
For each of

the Top 10 % of total No of % of total
Shareholders Shares of Date of O Shares of
the Transaction the

Name of
Shareholder

company company

At the beginning

of the year 67,17,949 25.44

Increase in
Sharsholding dus to 04.092019 642126  73,60,075 23.89
Allotment of Equity

Gojo & Company, Shares on 04.09.2019

Inc Increase in
Shareholding due to
Allotment of Equity 18.10.2019 7,75,462 81,35,537 24.42
Shares by way of Right
Issue on 18.10.2019

At the beginning
of the year 63,96,901 25.44

DIA Vikas Increase ir)

5 5 Shareholding due to
Cap&:!i:;g/ate Allotment of Equity 04.09.2019 3,76,574 67,73,475 20.33

Shares on 04.09.2019

At the beginning
of the year

6,55,750

SATYA Employee Increase in

Shareholding due to
Welfare Trust Allotment of Equity 04.09.2019 3,44,250 10,00,000 3.00

Shares on 04.09.2019

At the beginning
of the year 3,00,000

Increase in
. Shareholding due
Shekhar Mahajan  allotment of Equity 18.10.2019 39,090 3,39,090 1.02

shares by way of Right
Issue on 18-10-2019

At the beginning
of the year

Koshish Increase in
Sustainable Shareholding due
Shares by way of & 1810.2019 272,727 272,727 0.82

Solutions Private .
. shares by way of Right
Limited Issue on 18-10-2019
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At the beginning
) of the year LSOOl
Neeraj
At the beginning
1,45,000
Avishek of the year
At the beginning _ _
of the year
Increase in
Shareholding due
Mahaba) Metals " liotment of Equity 1810.2019 1,225,000 1,25,000 0.38
[RANSS HIATIES shares by way of Right

Issue on 18-10-2019

At the beginning
1,19,000
Subhash of the year
o - -- -- --
At the beginning
Prime M2i of the year 1,06,000

Consulting

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

: Cumulative Shareholding
SO during the year

% of total % of total

Shareholding of

Name of Directors Each Directors and

and Key Managerial

each Key Managerial

Personnel No of Shares of No of Shares of
RS Shares the Shares the
company company
At the beginning
of the year 70,14,500 26.56%
21-May-19 12,000 70,26,500 26.61
21-May-19 20,000 70,46,500 26.68
Vivek Tiwari
Managing Director, 21-May-19 37,000 70,83,500 26.82
CEO&CIO 03-Jul-19 1,000 70,84,500 26.83
03-Jul-19 2,200 70,86,700 26.83
26-Jul-19 185,000 72,71,700 27.53
26-Jul-19 4,000 72,75,700 27.55
26-Jul-19 25,00,000 97,75,700 33.20
06-Feb-20 14,000 97,89,700 29.38
At the beginning
Ratnesh Tiwari of the year Sl 0
Director
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At the beginning
Rahul Gupta of the year e 022
Director
At the end of the year 1,10,000 0.33
At the beginning
of the year
Rachna Khantwal
Company Secretary  18-Oct-2019 1,000 0.003
At the end of the year 1,000 0.003
At the beginning
98,000 0.37
Sudhindra Sharma  ©f the year
Chief Financial
Officer At the end of the year 98,000 0.29

V. INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not
due for payment (31 March, 2020)

(In Crores)

B Y

Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year 01.04.2019

i) Principal Amount 521.02 62.50 - 583.52

ii) Interest due but not paid = - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 2.96 1.04 - 4.00

Total (i+ii-+iii) 523.98 63.54 = 587.52

Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year

Addition 398.32 44.00 = 442.32
Reduction 236.12 31.89 = 268.01
Net Change 162.20 121 = 174.31

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year 31.03.2020

i) Principal Amount 683.21 74.61 - 757.82
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 6.55 0.87 - 7.42
Total (i+ii-+iii) 689.77 75.48 = 765.24

Note:- Above working is based on I-GAAP Financial as on March 31, 2020 & doesn't include any IND-AS Adjustment & reclassification.

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

m Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Vivek Tiwari
L (Managing Director, CEO & CIO)

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 1,59.96,499 e s

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income- tax Act, 1961
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2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
Commission
4 - as % of profit
- others, specify...
5 Provident Fund 5,04,000 5,04,000

Total (A)

Remuneration is being paid as per Schedule V of the

Ceiling as per the Act Companies Act, 2013

B. Remuneration to Other Directors

m Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director Total Amount

Mukul Rahul C.P.  Vijayalakshmi  Naveen Surekha
. Jaiswal Gupta  Mohan Das Surya Marandi
Independent Directors appointed appointed
w.e.f Aug 29, w.e.fFeb 28,
2019 2020
Sitting Fee (Board /
1 Committee meetings) 3,69,000 3,78,000 289333 36,000 1,72,800 0 12,45,133
Commission
Others, please specify
Total (1) 3,69,000 3,78,000 289333 36,000 1,72,800 (] 12,45,133
. Ratnesh  Saneesh  Sanjay
Other Non-Executive Directors e Singh Gandhi Total Amount
Fee for attending board
committee meetings 2,43,000 4,23,000 4,223,000 10,89,000
2
Commission Nil
Others, please specify Nil
Total (1) 2,43,000 4,23,000 4,23,000 10,89,000
Total (B)=(1+2) 6,12,000 8,01,000 712,333 36,000 1,72,800 (o] 23,34,133

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act Remuneration is being paid as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than Managing Director:

RET I MELLGEMNAE] Sudhindra Sharma,

Particulars of Remuneration Company Secretary Chief Financial

(appointed w.e.f Officer
19.09.2018)

Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 RLALIE) SR el

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income- tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity
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Commission
4 - as % of profit
- others, specify...
Provident Fund 33,370 3,05,454 3,38,824

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

No penalties, punishments & Compounding of offence were imposed on the Company during
Financial year 2019-20.
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ANNEXURE-III

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Mission of SATYA MicroCapital Limited is to be a preferred choice for the people at the bottom of pyramidiin
creation of their enterprise and livelihood through holistic approach. For achieving this, the organization
strives to adopt best practices and policies on corporate governance through transparency in business
ethics and accountability to customers and stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (“BOARD”)

The Board's actions and decisions are aligned with the Company's best interests. It is committed to the goal
of sustainably elevating the Company's value creation. The Company has defined guidelines and an
established framework for the meetings of the Board and committees. These guidelines seek to systematize
the decision-making process at the meetings of the Board and committees in an informed and efficient
manner.

a. Board Compositionas on March 31,2020:

Executive Director
Vivek Tiwari Managing Director, CEO & CIO 02174160 18/02/2016

Non-Executive Director

Ratnesh Tiwari Director 07131331 28/10/2016
Non-Executive Director and Independent Director

Rahul Gupta Independent Director 07478822 20/10/2016
Mukul Jaiswal Independent Director 02696656 12/01/2017

C. P. Mohan Independent Director 02661757 11/08/2017
Naveen Surya Independent Director 00094514 29/08/2019
Surekha Marandi Independent Director 06952573 28/02/2020
Saneesh Singh Nominee Director 02254868 26/10/2017
Sanjay Gandhi Nominee Director 02234298 01/08/2018

During the year, the Board has approved the appointment of Mr. Naveen Surya (DIN: 00094514) as
Independent Director with effect from August 29, 2019 and Mrs. Surekha Marandi (DIN: 06952573) as
Independent Director with effect from February 28, 2020.

BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE

The primary role of the Board is that of trusteeship to protect and enhance shareholder value through
strategic direction to the Company. The Board has fiduciary responsibility to ensure that the Company has
clear goals aligned to shareholder value and its growth. It sets strategic goals and seeks accountability for
their fulfillment. It also directs and exercises appropriate control to ensure that the Company is managedina
manner that fulfills stakeholder's aspiration and societal expectations. In order to meet out the
responsibilities, the Company holds a minimum of Four Board Meetings every year complying with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Secretarial Standard for conduct of Board Meetings.
Additional Board Meetings are held by the Company to address specific needs, as and whenrequired. In case
of urgency or business exigencies, matters are also approved by way of resolution by circulation as per the
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provisions of Companies Act, 2013, and subsequently noted in the next Board Meeting. The Company
circulates the agenda and related notes/ documents well in advance through its e-mail to the Board and its
Committee Members on their registered mail ids.

The functional heads of the Company periodically give presentations to the Board covering their respective
operations, performance, plans and strategies and discuss upon the areas of improvement and prospective
opportunities.

As a practice, the Company Secretary communicates all important decisions taken by the Board Members/
Committee Members to the functional head of the concerned departments.

b. Number & Dates of board Meeting:

The Board met 11 (Eleven) times on May 21, 2019; July 03, 2019; July 26, 2019; August 29, 2019; September 11,
2019; September 17, 2019; October 18, 2019; November 29, 2019; February 06, 2020; February 28, 2020 &
March 27,2020.

Attendance of directors at board meetings and their directorships in other companies as on March 31,2020,
are given below:

Number gf Board
Name of the Nature of Meetings Whether attended Directorships in other
Directors Directorship Held durin last AGM companies

- Koshish Sustainable Solutions
. — Managing Private Limited
Vivek Tiwari Director, CEO & CIO m m Yes - Association for Social Sustainability
through Education Research & Training

Rahul Gupta Independent Director 1 1 Yes NA

- Koshish Sustainable Solutions Private
Limited

- Koshish Marketing Solutions Private
Limited

Ratnesh Tiwari Director 1 1 Yes

- Cashpor Micro Credit

- Cashpor Financial And Technical
Services Private Limited

- Aayushya Foundation

- Jeevanshree Inclusive Finance India
Private Limited

Mukul Jaiswal Independent Director 11 5 Yes

- Light Microfinance Private Limited

- Ananya Finance For Inclusive Growth
Private Limited

No - Arriba Inclusive Finance Private Limited

- Grameen Foundation For Social Impact

- Nanayasurabhi Affordable Housing
Finance Limited

- Nabkisan Finance Limited

Vijayalakshmi Das Independent Director 1 2

- Kamal Fincap Private Limited

C. P. Mohan Independent Director 1 7 No - Cedar Retail Private Limited
- Prachodhan Development Services
- JRK Marketing Private Limited

- ESAF Small Finance Bank Limited

- Ml India Capital Consultants Private
Limited

- Samhita Community Development
Services

- Growing Opportunity Finance (India)

Saneesh Singh Independent Director n n Yes - qu/\xla\];ﬁal's'rgzﬁal Private Limited

- Cashpor Micro Credit

- Margdarshak Financial
Services Limited

- ESAF Financial Holdings Private
Limited

- Ml India Capital & Investment Private
Limited
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) . - Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth
Sanjay Gandhi Nominee Director 1 1 Yes Private Limited
- LF Financial Services Private Limited

- Epilepsy Foundation

REREETE lieleaneaniliceier i S No - Vyoman Tradelink India Private Limited

Surekha Marandi Independent Director 11 - No NA

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors of the Company are individuals of eminence & repute in their respective fields
and helps in bringing an independent judgment to bear on the Board's deliberations especially on issues of
strategy, performance, risk management, resources, key appointments, corporate governance and
standards of conduct. In accordance with the criteria set for selection of Independent Directors and for
determining their independence, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC') of the Board, inter
alia, consider the qualifications, positive attributes, area(s) of expertise and Directorships/Committee
memberships held by these individuals in other companies. The Board considers the NRC's
recommendation and takes appropriate decisions in appointment of the Independent Directors.

PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP

There is no pecuniary relationship or transaction of Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company, apart
from the sitting fees received by them for attending the Meetings of the Board and Committee(s) thereof.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

As on March 31, 2020, the company has 7 (Seven) statutory committees of the Board, constituted in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and RBI Guidelines and Directions issued to companies from time
totimeviz,,

1. AuditCommittee

2. Nominationand Remuneration Committee

3. RiskManagement Committee

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

5. Asset Liability Management Committee

6. IT Strategy Committee

7. Working Committee

The Board fixes the terms of reference of Committees and also delegates powers from time to time. The
Minutes of the Meetings of the Committees are circulated to the Members and placed before the Board for
itsinformation.

1. AUDITCOMMITTEEOFTHE BOARD
As a measure of good Corporate Governance and also to meet the statutory provisions of the NBFC
Regulations and Companies Act, 2013, the audit committee is made with the primary objective to monitor
and provide an effective supervision of the management's financial reporting process, to ensure accurate
and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting.
Majority of the members of the Committee are Independent Directors. The Company Secretary acts as
Secretary to this Committee.
Allthe Members of the Audit Committee have the required qualification and expertise for appointment on
the Committee and possess requisite knowledge of accounting and financialmanagement.

COMPOSITION
The Audit Committee of the Board was constituted on October 26,2017 comprised of 5 (Five) Directors as
onMarch 31,2020:
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Mukul Jaiswal
C.P.Mohan
SaneeshSingh
Sanjay Gandhi
Rahul Gupta

SN NI NRE

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
4 (Four) meetings of Audit Committee held during the year on May 21, 2019; September 11, 2019;
November 29,2019 & February 28, 2020.

Number of Meetings
| Hed | Awended
4

Mukul Jaiswal
C. P.Mohan
Saneesh Singh
Sanjay Gandhi

O O N N N
R N YY)

Rahul Gupta

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Audit Committee has the following responsibilities:

» To take cognizance of the internal Audit Reports, independence of auditors and effectiveness of the
auditreport

» To review the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure
coverage, scope of audit and frequency of internal audit

» Torecommend appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors

» Toensure adequacy of whistle blower policy

» Tolookinto cases of defaults, frauds done to or done by the organization

» Toperiodically interact with the statutory auditor and approval of payment to statutory auditors for any
other servicesrendered by the statutory auditors

» Toensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficientand credible

» To review, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the Board for approval, with reference to:

a. Any matter required to be included in the director's responsibility statement to be included in the
Board's reportinterms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

. Any change inaccounting policy

Any significant transaction or financial irregularity

. Loanwrite-offs

Related party transaction

Capital expenditure

. Any significant accounting adjustment

Any significantincreaseinliabilities

Contingent liabilities

» Carrying out any other function asis mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.

» The Audit Committee ensures the rotation of partner/Chartered account firm in conducting the audit.
The Audit firm need to be replaced after carrying out three consecutive audits and can be eligible for
company audit after aninterval of three years.
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» The Audit Committee mandatorily reviews the following information:

a. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

b. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted
by management;

c. Management letters/ letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

. Internal auditreports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

e. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor is subject to
review by the audit committee.

o

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Pursuant to the regulations framed by Reserve Bank of India, the Company being a Non-Deposit taking
Non-Banking Finance Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee for the appointment of
Directors of the Company. The committee shall also carry out evaluation of every director's performance
and support the Board and Independent Directors in evaluation of the performance of the Board and its
directors.

COMPOSITION
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board, which was constituted on October 26, 2017
comprised of Six (6) directors as on March 31,2020:

1. VivekTiwari
2. C.P.Mohan
3. SaneeshSingh
4. MukulJaiswal
5. Sanjay Gandhi
6. RahulGupta

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
The committee held Four (4) meetings during the year on May 21, 2019; August 29, 2019; November 28,
2019 &February 28,2020.

Number of Meetings
I B

Vivek Tiwari 4
C. P.Mohan
Saneesh Singh
Mukul Jaiswal

Sanjay Gandhi

B - S - N

8
4
8
4
Rahul Gupta 4

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has the following responsibilities:

» Thisincludes qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director

» Ensure 'fitand proper' status of proposed/ existing Directors

» Torecommend the Board the appointment, extension or removal of Directors/Senior Management in
accordance with criteria laid down or on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of Directors
/ Senior Management.

Annual Report 2019-20 97



»
qa wa=] e

»

» Torecommend to the Boardon
a. Policy relating to remuneration for Directors, key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, and
b. Executive Directors remunerationand incentive.

» To make recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office
of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director
asan employee of the Company subject to the provisions.

» Toalsoadminister the ESOP Scheme/Plan of the Company.

-RISKMANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The Risk Management Committee is an independent committee of the Board of Directors that has, as its
sole and exclusive function, responsibility for the oversight of the risk management policies and practices
of the Corporation's global operations and oversight of the operation of the Corporation's global risk
management framework.

The Committee will assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with regard to the
risk appetite of the Corporation, the Corporation's risk management and compliance framework, and the
governance structure that supportsit.

COMPOSITION
The Risk Management Committee of the Board, which was constituted on May 21, 2019 comprised of Five
(5) members as on March 31,2020:

1. VivekTiwari

2. MukulJaiswal

3. SaneeshSingh

4. Sanjay Gandhi

5. SudhindraSharma

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
The committee held Two (2) meetings during the year on November 28,2019 & February 28, 2020.

Number of Meetings
| Hed | Atended

Vivek Tiwari 2 2

Mukul Jaiswal 2 2

Saneesh Singh 2 2

Sanjay Gandhi 2 2

Sudhindra Sharma 2 2
TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Risk Management Committee has the following responsibilities:

» Tomonitor and review the risk management plan.

» To review operational risk (including sub risk for operational risk), credit risk, market risk, interest rate
riskand other risks associated with the business of the organization.

» Totake Strategic actions to mitigate the risk associated with the nature of the business.

» To appraise the Board of directors at regular intervals regarding the process of putting in place a
progressive risk management system, risk management policy and strategy.

» Todo such other acts, deeds and things as may be directed by the Board and required to comply with
the applicable laws, and
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» To lay down procedure to inform Board members about the risk assessment and minimization
procedures.

4.CORPORATE SOCIALRESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is constituted by the Board of Directors to promote a
culture that emphasizes and sets high standards for corporate social responsibility and reviews corporate
performance against those standards.

The Committee will consider the impact of the Corporation's businesses, operations and programs froma
social responsibility perspective, taking into account the interests of shareholders, clients, employees,
communities and regulators.

COMPOSITION
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board, which was constituted on May 21, 2019
comprised of Three (3) directors as on March 31,2020:

1. MukulJaiswal
2. RatneshTiwari
3. RahulGupta

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
The committee held 1(One) meeting during the year on February 28,2020

Number of Meetings
e T —

Mukul Jaiswal 1 1

Ratnesh Tiwari 1 1

Rahul Gupta 1 1
TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has the following responsibilities:

» Torecommend CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company.

» Torecommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities.

» Toformulate the CSR Budget based on the CSR activities planned for the year.

» To create an effective supervision and monitoring mechanism for implementation of the approved
CSRactivities.

» Tosubmitreports to the Board of Directors in respect of the CSR activities undertaken by SATYA Micro
Capitaland

» Todecide onthelocations for the CSR activities.

5.ASSETLIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Asset Liability Management Committee is a comprehensive and dynamic framework of assessing various
types of risks and altering the asset-liability portfolio in a dynamic way in order to manage risks.

It is focused on a long-term perspective rather than mitigating immediate risks and is a process of
maximizing assets to meet complex liabilities that may increase profitability.

COMPOSITION
The Asset Liability Management Committee of the Board, which was constituted on May 21, 2019
comprised of Five (5) members as on March 31, 2020:
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Vivek Tiwari

Mukul Jaiswal
SaneeshSingh
Sanjay Gandhi

5. SudhindraSharma

AN S

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
The committee held 2 (Two) meetings during the year on November 28,2019 & February 28,2020.

Number of Meetings
| Hed | Atended

Vivek Tiwari 2
Mukul Jaiswal

Saneesh Singh
Sanjay Gandhi

Sudhindra Sharma

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Asset Liability Management Committee has the following responsibilities:

N N M NN
N N NN

» Addressing concernsregarding asset liability mismatches.

» Achieving optimal return on capital employed while maintaining acceptable levels of risk relating to
liquidity.

» Addressing concernsregarding interest rate risk exposure.

» Todo such other acts, deeds and things as may be directed by the Board and required to comply with
the applicable laws.

» Todecide oninvesting the funds of the company.

.ITSTRATEGY COMMITTEE
Pursuant to RBI Master Direction DNBS.PPD.N0.04/66.15.001/2016-17 dated June 08, 2017, (‘Master
Direction' the Board has constituted an IT Strategy Committee to carry out review and amend the IT
strategies in line with the corporate strategies, Board Policy reviews, cyber security arrangements and
any other matter related to IT Governance. The Roles and Responsibilities of IT Strategy Committee are:

Approving IT strategy and policy documents and ensuring that the management has put an effective
strategic planning processin place;

a. Ascertaining that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the IT
delivers value to the business;

b. Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are acceptable;

c. Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed to achieve
strategic goals and provide high-level direction for sourcingand use of IT resources;

d. Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining NBFC's growth and becoming aware about
exposure towards IT risks and controls.

e. Ensuring that Committee should meet at an appropriate frequency but not more than six months
should elapse between two meetings.

COMPOSITION
The IT Strategy Committee of the Board, which was constituted on February 28, 2020 comprised of 4
(Four) members as on March 31,2020:

1. Mr.VivekTiwari
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2. Mr.NaveenSurya
3. Dr.Ratnesh Tiwari
4. Mr. Ashutosh Kumar Srivastava

There was nomeeting held in FY 2019-20.

7. Working Committee of Directors

The Working Committee comprises of Mr. Vivek Tiwari, Dr. Ratnesh Tiwari as members and Ms. Rachna
Khantwal as its secretary. The Working Committee deals with routine matters of the Company on day to
day basis and the matters relating to borrowing, investment of surplus funds, opening and closure of Bank
accounts, allotment, transfer, transmission, issue of new/duplicate share certificates, allotment of NCDs,
Commercial Papers and all other matters as prescribed and delegated to the Committee by the Board
fromtime to time.

This Committee generally meets as and when required. During the year under review, 34 (thirty four)
meetings of the Committee of Directors were held.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Details of the Annual General Meetings held during the financial year 2019-20 are given below:

No. of special

519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime
2019 July 26, 2019 11:30 AM Towers, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-1, Delhi-110020

EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Details of the Extra-ordinary General Meetings held during the financial year 2019-20 are given below:

No. of special

519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime
2019 July 26, 2019 03:00 PM Towers, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-1, Delhi-110020

519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime
2019 August 29, 2019 03:30PM Towers, Okhla Industrial Area, 02
Phase-1, Delhi-110020

519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime
2019 November 11, 2019 1:00 AM Towers, Okhla Industrial Area, 01
Phase-1, Delhi-110020

Flat No. A-406 Gaur Grandeur,
2020 March 28, 2020 10:30AM Sector-119, Parthala Khanjarpur, 01
Gautam Buddha Nagar, UP- 201304
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DEBENTURE HOLDER DETAILS

»

The detailsregarding the Debenture Holders as on March 31,2020 are given as under:

IFMR - (2018)

Blue Orchard (2018)

» JAPAN Asean Women Empowerment
Fund (JAWEF)

» Microfinance Initiative for Asia
(MIFA), Debt Fund

Microfinance Enhancement Facility,
SICAV SA-SIF

UTI International Wealth Creator 4

Axis Trustee Services Limited acting in
its capacity as the trustee of the IFMR
Finance for Freedom Fund IV with IFMR
Fimpact Income Builder Fund as its
scheme

Axis Trustee Services Limited acting in
its capacity as the trustee of the IFMR
Finance for Freedom Fund Il with [FMR
Fimpact Long Term Credit Fund as its
scheme

Unifi AIF

Karvy Capital Limited Demeter Portfolio

Karvy Capital Limited Demeter Portfolio

UTI International Wealth Creator 4

Aviator Global Investment Fund

Northern Arc Capital Limited

Annual Report 2019-20

IIT Madras Research Park,
10th Floor, Phase-1, Kanagam Village,
Taramani, Chennal 600113

28-32 Place de la Gare, 1616,
Luxembourg

5, Rue Jean Monnet, L- 2180
Luxembourg

4th Floor, 19, Bank Street, Cybercity,
Ebene 72201, Republic of Muaritius

IIT Madras Research Park, 10th Floor,
Phase-1, Kanagam Village, Taramani,
Chennai-600113

IIT Madras Research Park, 10th Floor,
Phase-1, Kanagam Village, Taramani,
Chennai-600113

IL & FS Securities Services Ltd., Custodial
Services Division, Plot No. 14, Raheja
Vihar, Chandivali, Andheri (E), Mumbai-
400072

702 Hallmark Business Plaza, Sant
Dnyaneshwar Marg, Off. Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai-
400051

702 Hallmark Business Plaza, Sant
Dnyaneshwar Marg, Off. Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai-
400051

4th Floor, 19, Bank Street, Cybercity,
Ebene 722071, Republic of Muaritius

4th Floor, 19 Bank Street Cybercity,
Ebene-72201, Mauritius

10th Floor, Phase-1, [IT Madras Research
Park, Kanagam Village, Taramani,
Chennai-600113

17
17

20

20

15

20

20

10

15

28.5

24.98

24.98

Secured, Rated, Transferable,
Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures

Secured, Rated, Listed,
Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures

Secured, Rated, Listed,
Redeemable, Transferable,
Non- Covertible Debentures

Secured, Rated, Listed,
Redeemable, Transferable,
Non- Convertible Debentures

Rated, Subordinated, Unsecured,
Transferable, Redeemable,
Non-Convertible Debentures

Rated, Subordinated, Unsecured,
Transferable, Redeemable,
Non-Convertible Debentures

Rated, Listed, Senior, Unsecured,
Redeemable, Taxable,
Non-Convertible Debentures

Rated, Listed, Unsecured,
Subordinated, Redeemable, Taxable,
Non-Convertible Debentures

Rated, Listed, Unsecured,
Subordinated, Redeemable, Taxable,
Non-Convertible Debentures

Rated, Listed, Secured,
Redeemable Transferable
Non-Convertible Debentures

Unlisted, Unsubordinated,
Secured, Transferable, Redeemable,
Non-Convertible Debentures

Unlisted, Unsubordinated,

Secured, Transferable, Redeemable,
Non-Convertible Debentures
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REDEMPTION DURING FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20

» On August 16, 2019, the Company redeemed 20 Lac Non-Convertible, Redeemable, Cumulative,
Preference Shares (“NCRCPS”) under NCRCPS 2018 Series.

» On September 23, 2019, the Company redeemed 500 Unsecured, redeemable, unlisted, optionally
convertible debentures having aface value of Rs. 1,00,000/- each.

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

In pursuance of Regulation 7(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, all activities related to Share Registry and Non-convertible debentures (NCDs) facility (in electronic
form) are maintained by our Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA) i.e. Link Intime India Private limited having SEBI
Registration No.INROOO004058. Further, the Company has also availed electronic facility from the RTA with
respect to dematerialisation of its equity shares.

» In case, NCDs held in electronic form, the transfers are processed by National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) through their respective
Depository Participants.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a. Results
The Company publishes limited reviewed un-audited standalone financial results on a half yearly basis. In
respect of the last half year, the Company published the audited financial results for the complete
financial year.

b. Website, where displayed
The Company has an operational website www.satyamicrocapital.com wherein inter alia annual financials
are placed.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a. Company Registration details:
The Company is registered in New Delhi, India. The Corporate Identification Number (CIN) allotted by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs is U74899DL1995PLC068688. Registration number allotted by RBI is
14.01513.

b. Ensuing Annual General Meeting -
Date: August 27,2020
Time: 02:00PM
Venue: 519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime Towers, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi-110020

c. Financial Year:
1% Aprilto 31" March

d. Listing Fees:
The Debentures of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and the listing fees payable
to the stock exchange for the financial year 2019-20 has been paidin full.

e. Dematerialization of Shares:
As per the notification dated September 10, 2018 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the
requests for effecting transfer of securities in physical mode shall not be processed by the Company on or
after October 02, 2018 unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository. It is
mandatory for every shareholder to get their shares dematerialized before the transfer or subscribes to
any securities of an unlisted public company. As on March 31, 2020, 29660107 (89.01%) of the Equity
Shares were held in dematerialized form with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
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f. Demat ISIN Number of sharesin NSDL & CDSL:
For Equity Shares (fully paid-up shares) INE982X01013
For Non-Convertible, Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares INE982X04017
For Equity Shares (partly paid-up shares) IN9982X01011
Demat ISIN Number for Non- Convertible Debentures (NCDs) (INRCr.)
Y T
INE982X07010
2. INE982X07028 340 34
& INE982X07036 400 40
4. INE982X07051 1500 15
&, INE982X08018 200 20
6. INE982X08026 200 20
7. INE982X08034 1Cr 10
8. INE982X08042 1.5Cr 15
9. INE982X08069 285 28.5
10. INE982X07077 4,996 49.96
For Commercial papers (CP) (INRCr.)
e T
Axis Bank Limited INE982X14024 6,00,00,000/-
2. Axis Bank Limited INE982X14032 140 7,00,00,000/-
3. Axis Bank Limited INE982X14040 120 6,00,00,000/-

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

Shareholding of the Company as on March 31,2020 is as follows:

m Name of Shareholder % of Shareholding

1. Vivek Tiwari* 97,89,700 29.38
2 Other Promoters 32,48,833 9.75
3 Dia Vikas Capital Private Limited 67,73,475 20.33
4. Gojo & Company, Inc. 81,35,537 24.42
5 Others 43,74,183 13.12
6 SATYA Employee Welfare Trust 10,00,000 3.00
Total Shares 3,33,21,728 100

*includes 25,00,000 partly paid-up equity shares.

PREFERENCE SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

m Name of Shareholder % of Shareholding

1. Gojo & Company, Inc. 27,22,222
Total Shares 27,22,222 100

Update your Correspondence address / Email Id:

To ensure all communications, all shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to notify to
the Company, change in their address / email Id instantly by written request under the signatures of sole/
first joint holder. Shareholder(s) holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to notify change in
bank details / address / email Id directly with their respective DPs.
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Quote FolioNo./DPID No.:

Shareholders/Beneficial Owners are requested to quote their Folio Nos./DP ID Nos. as the case may be, in
all correspondence with the Company. Shareholders are also requested to quote their Email IDs, Contact
numbers (landline/ Mobile phone) for prompt reply to their correspondence.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Mrs. Surekha Marandi
Mr. C. P. Mohan

Mr. Naveen Surya

Mr. Mukul Jaiswal

Mr. Rahul Gupta

Mr. Vivek Tiwari

Mr. Saneesh Singh
Mr. Sanjay Gandhi

Dr.Ratnesh Tiwari

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Managing Director, CEO & CIO
Nominee Director
Nominee Director

Director

Key Managerial Persons

Mr. Vivek Tiwari
Mr. Sudhindra Sharma

Ms. Rachna Khantwal

Registered Office
SATYA MicroCapital Limited

519,5th Floor, DLF Prime Towers, Okhla Industrial Area,

Phase-1, New Delhi-110020
Emailid: investors@satyamicrocapital.com

Phone: +911149724000
Website: www.satyamicrocapital.com

Statutory Auditors

S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP

Golf View Corporate Tower-B
Sector-42,Sector Road, Gurugram,
Haryana-HR-122002

Managing Director, CEO & CIO
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Debenture Trustees Details

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

(formerly knownas GDA)

Office No. 83 — 87, 8th floor, Mittal Tower,
'B'Wing, Nariman Point, Mumbai — 400021
Tel.Nos.: 022-49220542

Website: www.catalysttrustee.com

Link Intime India Private Limited

C 101, 247 Park, C 101 1st Floor, LBS Marg,
Vikhroli (W), Mumbai—- 400083

Tel.No.: +9122 2594 6970;

FaxNo.: +9122 2594 6969

E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime.co.in

Any query on Annual Report: Members can write an email on cs@satyamicrocapital.com or send query on
annual report on below mentioned address: 519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime Towers, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1,
New Delhi-110020, India, addressed to Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.
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ANNEXURE-IV

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED

519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime Towers, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-1, Delhi-110020, India

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my Opinion thereon. Based on my
verification of SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended March 31, 2020,
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
(“SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED”) for the financial year ended March 31, 2020, according to the provisions
of:

(i) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) TheSecurities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial borrowings.

(v). The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (‘'SEBIAct’):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(vi) Employees' Provident Funds & Misc. Provisions Act, 1952;
(vii) Employees'State Insurance Act, 1948;
(viii) Maternity Benefit Act, 1961;
(ix) MinimumWagesAct, 1948
(x) Shopsand EstablishmentsAct, 1954
(xi) RBIAct,1934relatingtoNBFC's
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(xii) Otherlawsas may be applicable specifically to the company namely:

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following (i) Secretarial Standard Issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. (ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting. As per the minutes duly recorded by Company, the decisions of the Board were unanimous, and
no dissenting view was found therein

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period the company has following specific events/actions having a
major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc:
(i) Issueandallotment of 25,15,615 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- per share onrightissue basis;
(i) Issue and allotment of 43,96,283 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- per share on private placement
basis;
(iii) Issue andallotment of 2,722,222 Compulsory convertible Preference Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- per
share on private placement basis;
(iv) Issue and allotment of 285 Secured Rated Listed Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of the face
value of Rs. 10,00,000/- each on private placement basis;
(v) Issue and allotment of 1,00,00,000 Unsecured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Subordinated, Non-
convertible Debentures of face value of Rs. 10/- each, on private placement basis;
(vi) Issue and allotment of 1,50,00,000 Unsecured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Subordinated, Non-
convertible Debentures of face value of Rs. 10/- each, on private placement basis;
(vii) Issue and allotment of 49,996 Unlisted, Unsubordinated, Secured, Transferable, Redeemable, Non-
convertible debenture of face value of Rs. 10,000/- each on private placement basis;

Place: Delhi For Bhupesh Kumar & Associates
Date:July 15,2020 Company Secretaries

Bhupesh Kumar

Company Secretary in Practice
FCS No. 9688

CP No.12004

UDIN: FO09688B000474834
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of SATYA MicroCapital Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of SATYA MicroCapital Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements' section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Ind AS financial statements.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

We draw attention to Note 46 of the financial statement which describes the extent to which CoVID-19
Pandemic impacts the Company's operations and financial results will depend on future developments,
which are highly uncertain. Our opinionis not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Ind
AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
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procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

How Our Audit Addressed The Key Audit Matter

a) Impairment of financial instruments (including provision for expected credit losses)
(as described in note 3(e) of the Ind AS financial statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide for
impairment of its loan receivables (financial assets)
using the expected credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL
involves an estimation of probability-weighted loss
on financial assets over their life, considering
reasonable and supportable information about past
events, current conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions which could impact the credit
quality of the Company'sloans and advances.

In this process, a significant degree of judgement
has been applied by the management for:

= Defining qualitative/ quantitative thresholds for
'significant increase in credit risk' (“SICR”) and
‘default’.

= Grouping of loan portfolio under homogenous
pools to determine probability of default on a
collective basis.

= Determining effect of less frequent past events
onfuture probability of default.

Additional considerations onaccount of CoVID-19

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India circular dated
March 27, 2020 (“RBI circular”) allowing lending
institutions to offer a moratorium to customers on
payment of instalments falling due between March
1, 2020 and May 31, 2020 read with advisory issued
by the Microfinance Institutions Network dated
March 30, 2020 (“MFIN advisory”), the Company
has _extended a moratorium to its borrower in
accordance with its Board approved policy as
describedin Note 7.1.

As per the guidance from ICAI, extension of the
moratorium to borrowers by itself is not considered
toresultinaSICR for a borrower, however the entity
needs to evaluate whether the borrowers to which
moratorium is granted will remain regular once the
moratorium period gets over. The Company has
recorded amacroeconomic overlay of Rs.25.51Mn

«Our audit procedures included considering the
Company's accounting policies for impairment of
loan receivables and assessing compliance with
the policiesinterms of Ind AS 109.

«Tested the assumptions used by the Company for
grouping and staging of loan portfolio into various
categories and default buckets for determining the
PDandLGDrates.

- Tested the operating effectiveness of the controls
for staging of loans based on their past-due status.
Tested a sample of performing (stage 1) loans to
assess whether any loss indicators were present
requiring them to be classified under stage 2 or 3.

«Tested the input data used for determining the PD
and LGD rates and agreed the data with the
underlying books of accounts and records.

*Performed inquiries with the Company's
management and its risk management function to
assess the impact of lock-down on the business
activities of the Company.

«Assessed the Company's policy with respect to
moratorium pursuant to the RBI circular and MFIN
advisory and tested the implementation of such
policy onasample basis.

+Assessed the additional considerations applied by
the management for staging of loans as SICR/
defaultin view of Company's policy on moratorium.

+Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic
factors (including CoVID-19 pandemic) in
accordance with the governance framework
approved by the Board of Directors pursuant to
Reserve Bank of India guidelines issued on March
13,2020.

+Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation
of ECL provision performed by the Company in
spreadsheets.

Annual Report 2019-20

110




»

[ e

= o -
9 HA] ld€:

»

as part of its ECL, to reflect among other things an
increased risk of deterioration in macro-economic
factors caused by Novel Coronavirus (CoVID-19)
pandemic. Given the unique nature and scale of the
economic impact of this pandemic, its timing being
close to the year-end, and no reliable data being
available regarding the impact of various regulatory
packages, the macroeconomic overlay estimate is
based on various highly uncertain and unobservable
factors. In accordance with the guidance in Ind AS
109, the macroecnomic overlay estimate takes into
account reasonably and supportable information
without incurring significant cost. The actual credit
losses for the next 12 months could be significantly
different than the ECL estimates prepared by the
Company depending upon the impact and duration
of the pandemic and various regulatory and policy
measures announced by the Government.

Given the high degree of management's judgement
involved in estimation of ECL, accentuated by the
considerations for CoVID-19 related developments,
it is an area of material uncertainty and a key audit
matter.

* Compared the disclosures included in the Ind AS
financial statements in respect of expected credit
losses with the requirements of Ind AS 107 and
109. Reviewed specific disclosures made in the Ind
AS financial statements with regards to the impact
of CoVID-19 on ECL estimation.

b) Transition to Ind AS accounting framework
(as described in note 35 of the Ind AS financial statements)

Inaccordance with the roadmap for implementation
of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) for non-
banking financial companies, as announced by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has
adopted Ind AS from April 1, 2019 with an effective
date of April 1, 2018 for such transition. For periods
up to and including the year ended March 31, 2019,
the Company had prepared and presented its
financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards notified under the section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“Indian GAAP”
or “previous GAAP”). In order to give effect of the
transition to Ind AS, these financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2020, together with the
comparative financial information for the previous
year ended March 31, 2019 and the transition date
balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 have been prepared
under Ind AS.

The transition has involved significant changes in
the Company's financial reporting policies and

* Read the Ind AS impact assessment performed by
the management and the resultant changes made
to the accounting policies considering the
requirements of the new framework.

* Assessed the judgement exercised by the
management in applying the first-time adoption
principles of Ind AS 101 especially in respect of fair
valuation of assets and liabilities existing as at
transition date.

* Read changes made to accounting policies in light
of the requirements of the new framework.

* We understood the financial statement closure
process and the additional controls (including IT
controls) established by the Company for
transitiontoInd AS.

* Assessed the judgement applied by the Company
in determining its business model for
classification of financial assets.

* Tested the accounting adjustments posted as at
the transition date and in respect of the previous
year to convert the financial information reported
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processes, including generation of reliable and
supportable financial information. Further, the
management has exercised significant judgement
for giving an appropriate effect of the first-time
adoption principles of Ind AS 101, as at transition
date and to determine the impact of the new
accounting framework on certain accounting and
disclosure requirements prescribed under Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) directions, to the extent
applicable.

In view of the material impact and complexities and
significant judgement involved in implementing Ind
AS, we have focused on this areain our audit.

under erstwhile Indian GAAP to Ind AS.

* Assessed the judgements applied by the
Company in respect of areas where the
accounting treatment adopted or the disclosures
made under the new accounting framework were
inconsistent with the extant RBI Directions.

* Assessed disclosures prescribed under Ind AS

c) IT systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting systems of
the Company are fundamentally reliant on IT
systems and IT controls to process significant
transaction volumes. Automated accounting
procedures and IT environment controls, which
include IT governance, general IT controls over
program development and changes, access to
programs and data and IT operations, are required
to be designed and to operate effectively to ensure
accurate financial reporting.

Any gaps in the IT control environment could result
in a material misstatement of the financial
accounting and reporting records.

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the assessment
of the general IT controls and the application
controls specific to the accounting and preparation
of the financial information is considered to be a key
audit matter

We performed the following procedures assisted by
specialized IT auditors on the IT infrastructure and
applications relevant to financial reporting:

* Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
IT access controls over the information systems.

» Tested IT general controls (logical access,
changes management and aspects of IT
operational controls). This included testing that
requests for access to systems were
appropriately reviewed and authorized.

* Tested the Company's periodic review of access
rights. We also inspected requests of changes to
systems for appropriate approval and
authorization.

* Inaddition to the above, we tested the design and
operating effectiveness of certain automated and
IT dependent manual controls that were
considered as key internal controls over financial
reporting.

» Where deficiencies were noted, we tested the
design and operating effectiveness
compensating controls and, where necessary,
extended the scope of our substantive audit
procedures.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Board's Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Annual Report 2019-20

112




»

[ e

= o -
9 HA] ld€:

»

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other
information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and to comply with the relevant
applicable requirements of the standard on auditing for auditor's responsibility in relation to other
information in documents containing audited financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has norealistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtainan understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
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are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for

expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to

financial statementsin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates andrelated disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
eventsinamanner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March

31,2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor's report unless law

or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specifiedin paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b)In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d)In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015,asamended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointedasadirectorin terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Reportin “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g)In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
ScheduleV to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given tous:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Sd/-

per Amit Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 094533

UDIN: 20094533AAAACV3303
Gurugram
May 20,2020
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ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1UNDER THE HEADING 'REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS' OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Re: SATYA MicroCapital Limited

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Allfixed assets were physically verified by the management in the previous year in accordance with a
planned programme of verifying them once in two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed
onsuch verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under clause 3
(i) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services of the
Company.

(vii) (@) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there
hasbeenaslightdelayinafew cases.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or dues to
debenture holders.
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(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for which
those were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilization were
gainfully invested inliquid assets payable on demand.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration
has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been
disclosedin the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has complied
with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential allotment or
private placement of shares during the year. According to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds
wereraised.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section
192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has registered
asrequired, under section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For S.R.Batliboi & AssociatesLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Sd/-

per Amit Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 094533

UDIN: 20094533AAAACV3303
Gurugram
May 20,2020
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ANNEXURE-2 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 (f) UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SATYA MicroCapital Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statementsis
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
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accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Sd/-

per Amit Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 094533

UDIN:20094533AAAACV3303
Gurugram
May 20,2020
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SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED

(Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020)
(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

| Particulars | Notes | AsatMarch31,2020 | AsatMarch 31,2019 As at April 1, 2018

Cash and cash equivalents 4 471.83 362.20 413.40
Bank balances other than cash 5 981.78 1,830.94 507.19
and cash equivalents

Trade receivables 6 22.29 13.55 11.94
Loan portfolio 7 9,172.52 6,054.91 2,142.06
Investments 8 = = 1.88
Other financial assets 9 113.70 107.42 53.51

Current tax assets (net) 62.92 12.84 7.58
Deferred tax assets (net) 11 45.31 42.02 27.75
Property, plant and equipment 12 43.76 26.02 19.17
Intangible assets 12 0.75 0.61 0.79
Other non-financial assets 120.34 22.79 9.37

Debt securities 2,425.84 1,624.32 249.97
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 14 6,678.97 5,674.52 2,571.80
Subordinated liabilities 14 125.72 125.50 100.57
Other financial liabilities 60.54 152.02 12.39

Provisions 13.40 6.22 3.42
Other non-financial liabilities 13.04 25.73 25.78

Equity share capital 304.47 257.54 128.08
Other equity 1,413.22 607.45 102.63

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of SATYA MicroCapital Limited

As per our report of even date Sd/- Sd/-

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP Vivek Tiwari EE—
Chart'ered Ac‘coun't ants Managing Director, CEO & CIO Director
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g::tn: - Rachna Khantwal SudhindraSharma
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M. No. : A43785
Place: New Delhi
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lace: Gurugram Date: May 20, 2020
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SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020)

(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated

. For year ended For year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Interest income 1,973.52 977.93
Fee and commission income 21 14.96 11.29
Net gain on derecognition of financials instruments 22 96.56 15.60

under amortised cost category

Other income 12.25

Finance cost 1,159.04 602.47
Impairment on financial instruments 25 99.27 41.87
Employee benefits expense 26 473.16 234.18
Depreciation and amortization expense 12 26.43 16.00
Other expenses 217.26 125.97

Current year tax 44.78 13.56
Earlier year tax 0.32 -
Deferred tax (9.42) (14.35)

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
Income tax effect

(1.26) 0.30
0.37 (0.08)

Computed on the basis of total profit for the year

Basic (Rs.) (EPS) 29 2.48 (0.12)
Diluted (Rs.) (DPS) 29 2.43 (0.12)
Nominal value 10.00 10.00
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of SATYA MicroCapital Limited

Chartered Accountants Sd/- Sd/-

ICAI Firm registration number : 101049W/E300004 Vivek Tiwari Ratnesh Tiwari
Managing Director, CEO & CIO Director

Sd/- DIN: 02174160 DIN: 07131331

per

Amit Kabra

Partner Sd/- Sd/-

Membership No.094533 Rachna Khantwal Sudhindra Sharma
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. : A43785

Place: Gurugram Place: New Delhi

Date: May 20, 2020 Date: May 20, 2020
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SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED

(Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020)

(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 110.97 (3.42)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 26.43 16.00
Share based payment to employees 11.43 0.22
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment 718 2.80
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (1.26) 0.30
Impairment of financial instruments 90.50 40.22
Net gain on derecognition of financials instruments under amortised cost category (96.56) (15.60)
Interest income (1,973.52) (977.93)
Interest expense 1,139.44 598.14
(685.39) (339.27)
Operating cash flows on account of:
Interest income 1,776.29 882.88
Interest expense (1,174.65) (603.20)
Lease rental reversed upon implementaion of Ind AS 116 (5.37) (4.07)
Operating profit before working capital changes (89.12) (63.66)
Movements in working capital:
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities (91.48) 139.63
Increase/(decreases) in other non-financial liabilities (12.69) (0.05)
(Increase)/decrease in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 849.16 (1,323.75)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (8.74) (1.61)
(Increase)/decrease in loan portfolio (2,967.92) (3,849.85)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (6.28) (53.91)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-financial assets (43.94) (6.01)
Cash used in operations (2,371.01) (5,159.21)
Income-tax paid (88.67) (18.82)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (2,459.68) (5,178.03)
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (40.39) (21.58)
Purchase of intangible assets (0.57) (0.38)
Proceeds from derecognition of property, plant and equipment = 1.19
Proceeds from sale of investments - 1.88
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (40.96) (18.89)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securities premium)* 399.37 636.47
Issue of compulsorily convertible preference shares (including securities premium) 367.50 -
Net proceeds from borrowings# 1,843.40 4,509.25
Net cash from financing activities (C) 2,610.27 5,145.72
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 109.63 (51.20)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 362.20 413.40
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 4) 471.83 362.20

Components of cash and cash equivalents as at the end of period

Cash on hand 8.81 7.86
Balance with banks - on current account 460.52 351.83
Deposits with original maturity of less than or equal to 3 months 2.50 2.51
Total cash and cash equivalents 471.83 362.20

* Net of amount recoverable from SATYA Employee Welfare Trust.
# Represents net proceeds from debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.
For disclosure of investing and financing activities that do not require the use of cash and cash equivalents, refer note 42.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Notesno.) : 3 . . . .
N Mot are an integral part of the financial statements., For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of SATYA MicroCapital Limited

As per our report of even date Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

- . . Vivek Tiwari RatneshTiwari Rachna Khantwal SudhindraSharma
Chartered Accountants, ICAI Firm registration number : 101049W/E300004 Managing Director, CEO & CIO Director Company Secretary ~Chief Financial Officer
Sd/- DIN: 02174160 DIN: 07131331 M. No. : A43785
per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership No.094533
Place: Gurugram, Date: May 20, 2020 Place: New Delhi, Date: May 20, 2020
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SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for year ended on March 31, 2020

A. E qUity Shares (Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)
Equity Share of Rs. 10 eachissued

Equity share capital issued during the year ended March 31, 2019 (refer note 18) 12,751,600 127.52
Equity share capital issued during the year ended March 31, 2020 (refer note 18) 6,911,898 69.12

Equity Share of Rs. 10 eachissued

Equity share capital subscribed during the year ended March 31, 2019 (refer note 18) 13,601,600 136.02
Equity share capital subscribed during the year ended March 31, 2020 (refer note 18) 6,911,898 69.12

Equity Share of Rs. 10 eachissued

Equity share capital raised during the year ended March 31, 2019* (refer note 18) 13,601,600 129.46
Equity share capital raised during the year ended March 31, 2020* (refer note 18) 6,911,898 46.93

* Net of amount recoverable from SATYA Employee Welfare Trust amounting to Rs.10 mn as at March 31, 2020 and Rs.6.56 mn as at March, 2019.

B. Other equity

Particulars Notes Reserves & Surplus .
Convertible 5
Securities | Retained | General | statutory Reserve (as Share Plererence gogvertlble
Premium | Earnings [ Reserve | required by Section Options Shares ebentures
45-IC of the Reserve Outstanding
Bank of India Act, Resare
1934)

Profit for the year ended March 31, 2019 - (2.63) - - (2.63) (2.63)

Other comprehensive income (net of
income-tax effect)

Transfer to Statutory Reserve* - (6.47)

f:;r ;/:;t:e of stock option-charge for _ _ _ _ 0.22 0.22 _ _ 0.22
Premium on issue of equity share capital 585.25 _ _ _ 585.25 _ _ 585.25
made during the year ended Mar 31, 2019 - - . .
C\/n;Icf’:rn; _Fﬁ::s?(verabe from SATYA Employee (33.44) _ _ _ - (33.44) _ _ (33.44)
Conversion of Compulsorily Convertible
Debentures into equity

- (44.80) (44.80)
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(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

Convertible

Particulars Reserves & Surplus
Securities | Retained | General | statutory Reserve (as Preference | Convertible
Premium | Earnings | Reserve | required by Section Osphc?;ﬁs Shares Debentures
45-1C of the Reserve Outstanding
Bank of India Act, Raserye
1934)

Profit for the year ended March 31, 2020 - 75.29 - - - 75.29 - - 75.29
Other comprehensive income (net of
income-tax effect) - (0.89) - - (0.89) - (0.89)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - (15.06) - 15.06
Fair value of stock option - charge
for the year - - = = 11.43 11.43 = = 11.43
Premium on issue of equity share capital 370.00 _ _ _ B 370.00 B _ s
made during the year ended Mar 31, 2020 . : .
Amount recoverabe from SATYA
Employee Welfare Trust (17.56) - - - - (17.56) - - (17.56)
Issue of Compulsorily Convertible 34028 B 340.28 2792 B o

Preference Shares

* As determined on the basis of profit calculated under previous GAAP.

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of SATYA MicroCapital Limited
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number : 101049W/E300004

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

per Amit Kabra Vivek Tiwari Ratnesh Tiwari

Partner Managing Director, CEO & CIO Director

Membership No.094533 DIN: 02174160 DIN: 07131331
Sd/- Sd/-
Rachna Khantwal Sudhindra Sharma
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. : A43785

Place: Gurugram Place: New Delhi

Date: May 20, 2020 Date: May 20, 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020)
1. Corporate information

SATYA MicroCapital Limited (‘'SATYA' or the '‘Company') is a public Company domiciled in India/and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on May 18, 1995. The Company was registered
as a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC-ND-SI') with the Reserve Bank of India
('RBI) and got classified as Non-Banking Financial Company - Micro Finance Institution (NBFC — MFI)
effective February 2,2018.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of micro finance providing small value unsecured loans to
low-income customers in urban, semi-urban and rural areas. The tenure of these loans is generally spread
over one totwo years.

2. Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance in preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time). The financial statement has been prepared on a going concern basis.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP) notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the Master Direction
- Non-Banking Financial Company — Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (‘the NBFC Master Directions') issued by RBI.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 are the first, the Company has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. The Company has applied Ind AS 101 - First time adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards, for transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS. An explanation of how transition to Ind AS has
affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company
is provided in Note No.35.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments
which have been measured at fair value. Further, the carrying values of recognized assets and liabilities
that are hedged items in fair value hedges, and otherwise carried at amortized cost, are adjusted to record
changesin fair value attributable to the risks that are being hedged. The financial statements are presented
inIndian Rupees (INR).
b) Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when Ind AS
specifically permits the same or it has an unconditionally legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts without being contingent on a future event. Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and
expenses and reports the same on a net basis when permitted by Ind AS specifically.

3. Significant accounting policies

a) Use of estimates, judgments and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
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and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods
are affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized
in the financial statements isincluded in the following notes:

i) Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

ii) Fair value measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

iii) Impairment of loan portfolio

Judgment is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
when determining an impairment allowance for loans and advances. In estimating these cash flows, the
Company makes judgments about the borrower's financial situation. These estimates are based on
assumptions about a number of factors such as credit quality, level of arrears etc. and actual results may
differ, resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance. Refer note 46 for further details of the
increased uncertainty relating to the estimation of impairment of loan portfolio due to the impact of the
pandemic as at Mach 31,2020.

iv) Provisions other thanimpairment on loan portfolio

Provisions are held in respect of a range of future obligations such as employee entitlements and litigation
provisions. Some of the provisions involve significant judgment about the likely outcome of various events
and estimated future cash flows. The measurement of these provisions involves the exercise of
management judgments about the ultimate outcomes of the transactions. Payments that are expected to
be incurred after more than one year are discounted at arate which reflects both current interest rates and
the risks specific to that provision.

v) Share Based Payment

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determining of the most appropriate
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the
share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

vi) Other estimates
Theseinclude contingentliabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible assets etc.
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b) Recognition ofincome and expense

(i) Interestincome
The Company earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent that itis
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Interest revenue is recognized using the effective interest method (EIR). The effective interest method
calculates the amortized cost of a financial instrument and allocates the interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that
aredirectly attributable to the instrument and are anintegral part of the EIR, but not future creditlosses.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is,
therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3', the Company calculates interest income to the extent recoverable. If the
financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interestincome
onagross basis.

(ii) Interestexpense

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the
financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include
fees and commissions payable to arrangers and other expenses such as external legal costs, provided
these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

(iii) Dividendincome
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

(iv) Otherincomeand expense
AllOtherincome and expense are recognized on an accrual basis in the period they occur.

c) Property, plantand equipment (PPE) and intangible asset

PPE

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured
reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off asand whenincurred.

Anitem of property, plantand equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected fromits use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Intangible Asset
Intangible assets represent capital expenditure towards software which is stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
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d) Depreciationand Amortization
Depreciation
i. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment provided on a written down value method at the rates
arrived based on useful life of the assets, prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, which
alsorepresents the estimate of the usefullife of the assets by the management.

ii. Property, plant and equipment costing up to Rs.5,000 individually are fully depreciated in the year of
purchase.

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and
equipment:

Asset Category Useful Life (In Years)

(i) Furniture and fittings 10

(i) Computers and data processing units

(a) Servers and networks 6
(b) End user devices, such as, desktops, laptops, etc. 3
(iii) Office equipment 5

(iv) Motor vehicles

(a) Motor cars 8

Amortization
Intangible assets are amortized on the basis of Straight-Line Method over a period of 4 years.

e) Impairment

i) Overview of principles for measuring expected creditloss ('ECL’) on financial assets.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company is required to measure expected credit losses on its financial
instruments designated at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive income.
Accordingly, the Company is required to determine lifetime losses on financial instruments where credit
risk has increased significantly since its origination. For other instruments, the Company is required to
recognize credit losses over next 12 months period. The Company has an option to determine such losses
on individual basis or collectively depending upon the nature of underlying portfolio. The Company has a
process to assess creditrisk of allexposures at each year end as follows:

Stage |

These represent exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date. The Company has assessed that all standard
exposures (i.e. exposures with no overdues) and exposure upto 30 days overdues fall under this category.
Inaccordance with Ind AS 109, the Company measures ECL on such assets over next 12 months.

Stagell

Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classified
under this stage. Based on empirical evidence, significant increase in credit risk is witnessed after the
overdues on an exposure exceed for a period more than 30 days. Accordingly, the Company classifies all
exposures with overdues exceeding 30 days at each reporting date under this Stage. The Company
measures lifetime ECL onstage Il loans.
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Stagelll

Allexposures having overdue balances for a period exceeding 90 days are considered to be defaultsand are
classified under this stage. Accordingly, the Company measures lifetime losses on such exposure. Interest
revenue on such contracts is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost (netof
impairment allowance) instead of the gross carrying amount. The method is similar to Stage Il assets, with
the probability of default set at 100%.

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Company applies the same
principles for assessing whether there has been a significantincrease in creditrisk since initial recognition.

Methodology for calculating ECL
The mechanics of the ECL calculation involve the use of following key elements:

Probability of default (PD) - The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given
time horizon (12-month or lifetime, depending upon the stage of the asset). PD estimation is done based on
historical internal data available with the Company. For credit impaired assets, a PD of 100% has been
applied.

Exposure at default (EAD) — It represents an estimate of the exposure of the Company at a future date after
considering repayments by the counterparty before the default event occurs. The outstanding balance as
at reporting date is considered as EAS by the Company. Considering the PD determined above factors in
amount at default, there is no separate requirement to estimate EAD.

Loss given default (LGD) - It represents an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event of
default occurs. The Company uses historical loss data/external agency LGD for identified pools for the
purpose of calculating LGD.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments
occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is
any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the
Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its
internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of
such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic
trendsreasonably.

Definition of defaultand cure

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage Il (credit-impaired) for
ECL calculations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments. The
Company may also classify a loan in Stage Il if there is significant deterioration in the financial condition of
the borrower or an assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately detrimental
effect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of whether an instrument is in
default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in or non-repayment of
the loan. When such events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in
treating the borrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage lll for ECL calculations or whether Stage
llis appropriate.

Classification of accounts into Stage Il is done when there is a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, typically when contractual repayments are more than 30 days past due.

It is the Company's policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured' and therefore re-classified out of
Stage lll or Stage [l when none of the default criteria which resulted in their downgrade are present.
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Write-offs

Loans are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. All such
write-offs are charged to the statement of profit and loss. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans
are credited to the statement of profitandloss.

ii) Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets,
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions
are takeninto account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model
is used. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining usefullife.

f) Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Where the Companyislessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments
andright-of-use assetsrepresenting the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The right-of-use assets are also
subject toimpairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (d) Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii)Lease Liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interestand
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in anindex or rate used to determine such lease payments).

iii) Shorttermlease
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption toits short-termleases (i.e., those
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leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognized as and when due.

g) Foreign currency transactions

» Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which are the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

» Transactionandbalance

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the spot rate of
exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated into the functional currency at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCl or
profit orloss are also recognized in OCl or profit or loss, respectively).

h) Retirement and Employee benefits

Post-employment benefits are classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans.
Under a defined contribution plan, the Company's only obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee
benefits. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the employee. The expenditure for defined
contribution plans is recognized as expense during the period when the employee provides service.
Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company's obligation to provide agreed benefits to the employees.
The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Company. The present value of the defined benefit
obligations s calculated using the projected unit credit method.

The Company operates following employee benefit plans:

i) Employee Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure when an employee renders the related
service.

ii) Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to
eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years
of employment with the Company. The Company's obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a
defined benefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial valuation.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. Allassumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they
occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.
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iii) Leaves

Entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to the employees. Leave entitlements can
be availed while in service of employment subject to restriction on the maximum number of
accumulations. The Company determines the liability for such accumulated leave entitlements on the basis
of actuarial valuation carried out by anindependent actuary at the Year end.

i) Income taxes

Current Taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities inaccordance with The Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current
income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred Taxes
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carryingamounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
willbe available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it becomes probable that
future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current and deferred taxes are recognized as income tax benefits or expenses in the income statement
except for tax related to the FVOCI instruments. The Company also recognizes the tax consequences of
payments and issuing costs, related to financial instruments that are classified as equity, directly in equity.

The Company only off-sets its deferred tax assets against liabilities when there is both a legal right to offset
anditis the Company'sintention to settle on anet basis.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for
the year. A deferred tax asset is recognized for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that
the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is
allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is
created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The
Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to
the extent thatitis nolonger probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

J) Earnings per share (EPS)
The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS33 on Earnings per
share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
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for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted
as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing the dilutive
earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per
share orincreases loss per share are included.

k) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
apastevent, itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and
areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the level of provision by
discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to un-winding of discount over passage of time is recognized within
finance costs.

I) Contingentliabilitiesandassets
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity. The Company does not have any contingent assets in the financial statements.

m) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial Assets

Initial Measurement and recognition

Financial assets are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party

to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The classification of financial instruments at initial

recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management's intention when acquiring

them. All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognized

initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:

* Loan Portfolio atamortized cost

* Loan Portfolio at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

* Equity instruments and mutual funds

Loan Portfolio at amortized cost:

Loan Portfolio is subsequently measured atamortized cost where:

* Contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding; and

* are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual cash
flows.
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After initial measurement, these financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the statement of profitandloss.

The measurement of creditimpairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model described
in Note: Impairment of financial assets (refer note 3(e)).

Loan Portfolio at FVOCI:

Loan Portfolio is subsequently measured at FVOCl where:

» contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding; and

» the financial asset is held within a business model where objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

Loans included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in
the statement of profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCl is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is recognized as interest income using the EIRmethod.

Equity instruments and Mutual Funds
Equity instruments and mutual fundsincluded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of profitandloss.

Financial liabilities

Initial Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost. All financial liabilities are recognized
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is de-recognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The
Company also de-recognizes the financial asset if it has transferred the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for de-recognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:
» lthastransferredits contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
or
» ltretains therights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a'pass-through'arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset’), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay
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those cash flows to one or more entities (the ‘eventual recipients’), when all of the following three
conditions are met:

» The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected
equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full
recovery of theamount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

» The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients.

» The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without
material delay.

In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash
equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of
required remittance to the eventual recipients. A transfer only qualifies for de-recognition if either:

» TheCompany has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
or

» The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell
the assetinits entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without
imposing additional restrictions on the transfer. When the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be
recognized only to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also
recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between: (a) the carrying amount
(measured at the date of derecognition) and (b) the consideration received (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modificationis treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the re-cognition of a new liability. The
difference in therespective carryingamountsis recognized in the statement of profitand loss.

n) Fairvalue measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using various
valuation techniques.

Fair value is the price at the measurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer aliability, in
anorderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Company's accounting policies require, measurement of certain financial instruments at fair values
(either on a recurring or non-recurring basis). Also, the fair values of financial instruments measured at
amortized costare required to be disclosed in the said financial statements.

Accordingly, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy described as follows:

Level 1financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices
from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement
date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to
the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable
price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are
derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument'slife.

Level 3 financial instruments - include one or more unobservable input where there is little market activity
for the asset/liability at the measurement date that is significant to the measurement as a whole.

o) Share based payments
Equity-settled share based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share
based payments transactions are set outin Note 41.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured using the fair value method and recognized, together
with a corresponding increase in the “Stock options outstanding account” in reserves. The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the company's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the statement of profitand
loss for the year represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end
of that year andisrecognized inemployee benefits expense.

p) Cashand cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignillcant risk of
changesinvalue.
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SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2020

(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

Particul As at As at As at
articulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1,2018

Cash on hand 8.81 11.81
Balances with banks
On current accounts 460.52 351.83 65.84
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 2.50 2.51 335.75

Balances with banks in current accunts do not earn any interest. Short-term deposits are made for
varying maturity upto three months, depending upon the funding requirements of the Company, and
earninterest at the respective short-termrates.

The Company has not taken any bank overdraft against such deposits, therefore the cash and cash
equivalents for cash flow statements are the same as cash and cash equivalents given above.

Particul As at As at As at
articulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019 April 1,2018

Deposits with remalnlng maturity of less than 12 months 610.84 220.11
Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months 13.94 1,575.27 150.30
Margin money deposits (refer note below) 357.00 255.67 136.78

Fixed deposits and margin money deposits with banks earn interest at fixed rates or floating rates based
ondaily bank depositrates.

Margin money deposits are placed as collateral to avail term loans from banks in connection with
securitization transactions.

Particul As at As at As at
SiuCLars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018

Qutstanding for a period less than six months from the date they are
due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 22.29 13.55 11.94

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally due in short-term. Based on the management's
assessment, noimpairment allowance is considered necessary for trade receivables.

Particul As at As at As at
articulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018

a) Term loans

Joint Liability Group Loans 8,884.41 5,952.72 2,154.85
Individual Loans 44119 164.77 9.58
Less: Impairment loss allowance (153.08) (62.58) (22.37)
b) (i) Secured
(i) Unsecured 9,325.60 6,117.49 2,164. 43
Less: Impairment loss allowance (153.08) (62.58) (22.37)
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(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)
c) (i) Loans in India 9,325.60 6,117.49 2,164.43
Less: Impairment loss allowance (153.08) (62.58) (22.37)

Overview of the loan portfolio of the Company

The Company is primarily in the business of providing micro loans towards income generating activities
with its operations spread out in different parts of India. The Company’s focus is to reach out to the
unbanked section of society and providing financial services to women entrepreneurs.

The table below discloses credit quality of the Company’s exposures (net of impairment loss allowance)
asatreporting date:

Portfolio classificationas at March 31,2020:

| Particwlas | stagel | Stagell | StageWl | Total |

Term Loans
Joint Liability Group Loans 8,668.91 67.49 148.02 8,884.42
Individual Loans 434.74 3.76 2.68 441.18
Less: Impairment loss allowance (39.25) (14.16) (99.67) (153.08)

Portfolio classification asat March 31,2019:

Term Loans
Joint Liability Group Loans 5,946.53 3.73 2.46 5,952.72
Individual Loans 164.66 0.09 0.02 164.77
Less: Impairment loss allowance (62.51) (0.04) (0.03) (62.58)

Portfolio classificationasat April 1,2018:

| Particulas | Stgel | Stagell Sl

Term Loans
Joint Liability Group Loans 2,154.62 0.17 0.06 2,154.85
Individual Loans 9.58 = = 9.58
Less: Impairment loss allowance (22.37) (0.00) (0.00) (22.37)

Gross portfolio movement for the year ended March 31, 2020:

mmwm

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2019 6,111.19 6,117.49

Inter-stage movements

Stage | - - - -
Stage Il (33.23) (33.23) =
Stage Il (69.04) (2.16) 71. 20

Write-offs* (8.77) (8.77)

New assets originated, netted off for repayment and

lons derecognised during the year 3,094.73 36.36 85.79 3.216.88
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 9,103.65 71.25 150.70 9,325.60

* The contractual amount of loans written-off during the period are not subject to enforcement activity/legal proceedings.
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(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

Gross portfolio movement for the year ended March 31, 2019:

| Particwlas | Stagel | _Stagel m

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2018 2,164.20 2,164.43

Inter-stage movements

Stage | = = - -

Stage Il (1.00) 1.00 -

Stage Il (3.29) (0.17) 3.45 (0. 01)
Write-offs* (1.65) (1.65)
New assets originated, netted off for repayment and 3,951.28 2.82 0.62 3,954.72

lons derecognised during the year

Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 6,111.19 6,117.49

* The contractual amount of loans written-off during the period are not subject to enforcement activity/legal proceedings.

ECL movement during the year ended March 31, 2020:

| Paticlrs | Stagel | Stagell | Stegell |  Toal

Balance at the beginning of the year 62.51 0.04 0.03 62.58
Provision made/ (reversed) during the year (23. 26) 14. 12 108.41 99.28
Write-offs (8.77) (8.77)

Note: The increase in ECL of the portfolio was driven by an increase in the amount of loans classified as Stage Il and Stage Ill as a result of
deterioration in economic conditions.

ECL movement during the year ended March 31, 2019:

| Particwas | Stagel | Stagell | Stagell ]| Total |

Balance at the beginning of the year 22.37 0.00 0.00 22.37
Provision made/ (reversed) during the year 40. 15 0. 04 1.67 41.86
Write-offs (1.65) (1.65)

Note: The increase in ECL of the portfolio was mainly driven by an increase in the gross size of the Company's portfolio.

7.1 The Company, pursuant to RBI circular dated March 27, 2020, has passed a policy in its Board of Directors Meeting dated March 27,
2020 to grant moratorium to all its borrowers which were less than 90 days past due as on March 1, 2020. As per the policy, the day past
due status of the borrowers as on the date of the implementation of the moratorium shall continue. The Company has not considered
such extension of moratorium to borrowers by itself to have resulted in significant increase in credit risk.

As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
At fair value through At fair value through At fair value through

profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss

Investment in Mutual Fund
NIL (March 31, 2019: NIL, April 1, 2018: 67,588) in Reliance Reg Savings Fund-Debt 1.71

NIL (March 31, 2019: NIL, April 1, 2018: 68) in Reliance Money Manager Fund 0.17

Above amount includes
Investment in India = - 1-38
Investment outside India
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(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
At fair value through At fair value through At fair value through

profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss

A. Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 12.58

B. Other assets

Loans to employees 57.60
Advance to vendors 40.14
Other advances 3.38

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
At fair value through At fair value through At fair value through
profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss

Advance income-tax (net of provision for income-tax) 62.92 12.84 7.58

As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
At fair value through At fair value through At fair value through

profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Impairment of financials instruments 44,58 17.41 616

Brought forward losses/unabsorbed depreciation - - 14.80

Provision for gratuity and leave encashment 3.90 173 0.94

Difference of written down value of property, plant and equipment 4.90 193 0.74

Others (8.07) 14.45 5.11
MAT credit entitlement - 6.50

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

12: Property, plant and equipment

Office Computers and Right-of-use
Vehicles Data Processing | Asset (refer note
Units 37)

Furniture and

Particulars Fixtures Equipments

As at April 1, 2018 5.61 1.45 0.50 8.84 7.99 24.39
Additions 8.67 1.81 = 11.10 1.87 23.45
Disposals (0.64) (0.31) - (0.24) - (1.19)
Additions 8.52 7.85 3.72 20.31 3.38 43.77
Disposals (0.16) (0.13) - (0.40) = (0.69)

As at April 1, 2018 112 0.32 0.18 3.59 - 5.22
Charge for the period 2.24 0.84 0.10 6.21 6.04 15.43
Write-offs -
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Charge for the period 5.87 2.61 1_13 12.04 4. 35 26.00
Disposals (0.15) (0.11) (0.43) (0.68)
Net carrying amount
As at April 1,2018 4.49 112 0.32 5.25 7.99 19.17
As at March 31, 2019 10.29 1.79 0.22 9.90 3.82 26.02

Intangible assets

T

Gross block (at cost)

As at April 1, 2018 1.50 1.50
Additions 0.38 0.38
Additions

Amortization

As at April 1, 2018 0.71 0.71
Charge for the period 0.56 0.56
Charge for the period

Net Carrying Amount

As at April 1, 2018 0.79 0.79
As at March 312019 0.61 0.61

Particul As at As at As at
articulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1,2018

Unsecured, considered good

Prepaid expenses 10.86 9.32 6.40
Interest only strip receivable 61.62 8.01 0.60
Balance in employee imprest accounts 46.76 4.79 1.63
Others 1.10 0.67 0.74

14: Debt Securities (at amortised cost)

Particul As at As at As at
Gl March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 | April1,2018

Secured

200 (March 31, 2019: 200 and April 12018: 200), 14.55% secured, rated, transferable, 199.04 99.97 200.00
reedemable, non-convertible debentures of face value of Rs. 10,00,000 each

1,500 (March 31, 2019: 1500 and April 1, 2018: NIL), 14.50%, senior secured, rated,

transferable, reedemable, principal protected market linked debentures of Rs.1,00,000 17118 148.65 -
each

400 (March 31, 2019: 400 and April 1, 2018: NIL), 13.80%, secured, rated, listed transferable _
NCD of Rs 10,00,000 each 402.97 40294

340 (March 31, 2019: 340 and April 1, 2018: NIL), 12.85% secured, rated, listed, transferable

NCD of Rs 10,00,000 each 256.00 343.78 =
24,983 (March 31, 2019: NIL and April 1, 2018: NIL) 13.60%, secured, rated, redeemable, 248.63 _ _

non-convertible debenture of Rs.10,000 each

24,983 (March 31, 2019: NIL and April 1, 2018: NIL) 13.60%, unlisted, unsubordinated,
secured, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures of Rs.10,000 each 244.10 = =
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(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

285 (March 31, 2019: NIL and April 1, 2018: NIL) 12.85%, secured, listed, non-convertible

debentures of Rs.10,00,000 each 287.32 - -
Unsecured

NIL (March 31, 2019: 500 and April 1, 2018: 500) 16.5% unsecured, redeemable, unlisted

Optionally Convertible Debentures of Rs.1,00,000 each - 58.74 49.97
200 (March 31, 2019: 200 and April 1, 2018: NIL) 15.75% rated, subordinated, unsecured, 205.93 20017 _

transferable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs.10,00,000 each

200 (March 31, 2019: 200 and April 1, 2018: NIL) 14% rated, listed, senior, unsecured,

redeemable, taxable, non-convertible debentures of Rs.10,00,000 each 109.99 200.08 =
2,50,00,000 (March 31, 2019: NIL and April 1, 2018: NIL) 14.27% rated, listed, unsecured,

subordinated, redeemable, taxable, non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10 each 241.33 _ _
Commercial papers 59.35 49.99 -

Preference shares other than those that qualify as equity

NIL (March 31, 2019: 20,00,000 and April 1, 2018: NIL) 11.12% non-covertible, redeemable,
cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each

Secured term loan

= 20.00 -

From banks 2,128.75 1,921.18 735.40

From others 2,524.09 2,162.71 1,389.08
Bank overdraft (secured)* 451.43 117.95 43.56
Cash credit from bank (secured)* 48.57 0.52 -
Borrowing under securitisation arrangement

From banks 415.88 459.72

From others 1,104.55 1,005.64 395.72
Lease liability (refer note 37) 5.70 6.80 8.04

*Bank overdraft and cash credit from bank is secured by term deposits with banks.

Unsecured term loan
From banks 95.75
From others 29.97

Secured borrowings* 8,488.21 6,769.86 2,771.79
Unsecured borrowings # 742.32 654.48 150.54

Borrowingsinindia 9,230.53 7,424.34 2,922.32
Borrowings outside India - - _

* The Indian rupee loans are secured by hypothecation of book debts and margin money deposits.
# The Unsecured borrowings are in the nature of subordinated liabilities and non-convertible debentures.
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SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED
14A. Terms of principal repayment of borrowings as at March 31, 2020

(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

Due within 1 year Due between 1-2 years | Due between 2-3 years Due beyond 3 years
Original maturity Interest rate No. of No. of No. of No. of Total
installments Amount | staliments Amount | staliments Amount | staliments Amount

1-3 years 13.51%-14.00% 4 88.89 1 22.22 0

1
(@]
1

mn

Above 3 years 14.01%-14.50% 0 - 0 - 0 - 3 250.00 250.00

13.51%-14.00% 1 85.00 1 170.00 (0] = (0] = 255.00
Above 3 years 13.51%-14.00% 1 83.28 1 83.28 1 83.28 0 = 249.83
13.51%-14.00% 1 83.28 1 83.28 1 83.28 (0] = 249.83

13.51%-14.00% 0 = 0 = 1 400.00 (¢} = 400.00
14.01%-14.50% (0] = (0] = 1 150.00 0 - 150.00
Above 3 years 14.51%-15.00% 0 - 1 200.00 0 = (0] = 200.00
15.51%-16.00% 0 = 0 = (0] = 1 200.00 200.00
13.51%-14.00% (0] = 0 = 0o = 1 285.00 285.00

1-3 years 13.51%-14.00% 1 60.00

o
!
©
1
o
1

60.00

10.51%-11.00% 8 10.91 0 = 0 = 0 = 10.91
8 12.75 (0] = (0] = (0] = 12.75

12.01%-12.50% 1 2297 0 = (0] = (0] = 22917
12 50.00 3 12.50 0 = (¢} = 62.50

12 25.00 2 417 0 = 0 = 2917

12 25.00 5 10.42 0 = (¢} = 35.42

12.51%-13.00% 12 75.00 8 18.75 0 - 0 - 93.75
12 100.00 7 58.33 0 = 0 = 158.33

12 50.00 7 297 0 = (¢} = 7917

1-3years 6 25.00 0 = 0 = 0 = 25.00
6 11.02 0 = 0 = (¢} = 11.02

6 17.50 0 - 0 - 0 - 17.50

7 12.80 0 = 0 = 0 = 12.80

10 62.50 (0] = 0 = (0] = 62.50

13.01%-13.50% 12 100.00 6 50.00 0 = 0 = 150.00
12 70.00 6 35.00 0 = 0 = 105.00

12 28.95 10 24.44 (¢} = (0] - 53.39

12 125.00 9 93.75 0 = (0] = 218.75

12 25.00 8 16.67 (0] = 0 = 41.67

12 48.04 9 40.52 0 = 0 = 88.56
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(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

installments installments installments installments
12 50.00 10 41.67 0 = 0 = 91.67
8 76.19 13 123.81 0 = 0 = 200.00
9 12.50 0 = 0 = 0 = 12.50
1 1.25 (0] = (0] = 0 = 1.25
3 6.25 (0] = 0 = (o) = 6.25
10 108.70 0 = 0 = 0 = 108.70
12 53.52 0 = 0 = 0 = 53.52
13.51%-14.00% 12 40.00 6 16.67 0 = 0 = 56.67
12 34.92 6 19.35 (0] = 0 = 54.27
12 23.97 5 11.01 0 = 0 = 34.98
12 148.38 8 106.84 0 = 0 = 255.22
10 19.40 12 26.43 1 2.25 0 = 48.08
12 114.99 12 135.01 0 = 0 = 250.00
5 5.88 0 = 0 = 0 = 5.88
12 35.84 4 14.42 0 = 0 = 50.26
12 17.24 7 11.97 0 = 0 = 29.21
12 25.41 8 211 0 = 0 = 46.52
12 10.06 9 9.19 0 = 0 = 19.25
1-3 years 14.01%-14.50% 12 15.09 9 13.70 (0] = 0 - 28.80
12 75.00 1 68.75 0 = 0 = 143.75
10 1719 12 23.54 2 4.27 0 = 45.00
12 26.16 2 4.76 0 = 0 = 30.92
12 26.16 2 4.76 0 = 0 = 30.91
12 29.88 12 27.87 1 0.10 0 = 57.85
12 52.34 2 9.49 0 0.10 0 = 61.83
10 16.61 0 = 0 = 0 = 16.61
10 69.84 0 = 0 = 0 = 69.84
14.51%-15.00%
10 41.67 0 = 0 = 0 = 41.67
12 25.13 n 26.50 (0] = 0 = 51.63
12 106.01 1 9.56 0 = 0 = 115.57
9 37.50 0 = 0 = 0 = 37.50
12 33.90 10 32.46 0 = 0 = 66.36
12 16.49 12 19.48 0 = 0 = 35.98
15.01%-15.50% 12 16.50 12 19.46 (0] = 0 = 35.95
12 331 12 38.32 0 = 0 = 71.42
12 16.59 12 18.88 0 = 0 = 35.47
12 15155 12 18.07 5 8.26 0 = 41.88
11.51%-12.00% 12 56.07 0 = 0 = 0 = 56.07
Above 3 years 12.51%-13.00% 0 = 0 = 0 = 24 150.00 150.00
13.01%-13.50% 12 83.33 12 83.33 1 6.93 0 = 173.60
13.51%-14.00% n 9.17 0 = 0 = 0 = 9.17
Quarterly
12.51%-13.00% 4 75.00 1 18.75 0 - 0 - 93.75
13 years B5%1400% 2600 ° _ 0 : ° _ 2600
4 100.00 1 25.00 0 = 0 = 125.00
14.51%-15.00% 2 1.67 0 = 0 = 0 = 1.67
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(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

Due within 1year Due between 1-2 years | Due between 2-3 years Due beyond 3 years
Original maturity Interest rate No.of No. of No. of No. of Total
installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount
4

13.51%-14.00% 8888 1 8.33 0 = (0] = 41.67
Above 3 years

13.51%-14.00% 4 30.77 (0] = (0] = 0 = 30.77

Above 3 years 12.01%-12.50% 0 = 0 = 2 106.00 0 = 106.00

8.01%-8.50% 1 84.79 0 = 0 = (¢} = 84.79
1-3 years 10.01%-10.50% 1 277.61 0 = 0 = (¢} = 277.61
12.51%-13.00% 1 89.03 0 - 0 - 0 - 89.03

48.57

©
1

o
1

1-3 years 13.51%-14.00% 1 48.57 0 -

4 61.48 (0] = 0 = 0 = 61.48
12.01%-12.50% 6 25.45 0 = 0 = 0 = 25.45
6 33.54 (0] = (0] = (0] = 33.54
4 65.40 (0] = (0] = (0] = 65.40
12.51%-13.00%
12 135.67 (0] = (0] = (0] = 135.67
13.01%-13.50% 10 137.00 (0} = (0] = (0] = 137.00
5 13.51%-14.00% 1 134.40 0 = (0] = (0] = 134.40
-3 years
12 138.00 4 48.81 (0] = (0] = 186.81
14.01%-14.50% 12 221.58 5) 88.08 (0] = (0] = 309.65
12 138.20 0 = 0 = 0 = 138.20
4 17.95 (0} = (0] = (0] = 17.95
15.01%-15.50%
35.22 (0] = 0 = 0 = 35.22
15.51%-16.00% 4 36.79 (0] = (0] = (0] = 36.79
16.01%-16.50% 1 147.25 (0] o (0] o (0] = 147.25

14.51%-15.00% 0 = 0 = 0 = 1 50.00 50.00

15.01%-15.50% 0 = 0 = 0 = 1 5.00 5.00
Above 3 years

15.51%-16.00% (o] = (o} = (o] = 1 25.00 25.00

16.51%-17.00% (o] = (0] = (0] = 1 45.00 45.00
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SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2020

(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

Particul As at As at As at
Gl e March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 | April1,2018

Expense payable 12.63 24.98 8.38
Employee benefits payable 7.44 3.20 2.25
Payable towards direct assignment 30.79 14.61 1.76
Other liabilities 9.68 109.23

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 5.58 2.24 114
Leave encashment 7.82 3.98 2.28

Provision for expenses 6.20 5.51 1.72
Statutory dues payable 6. 72 18.77 15.87
Advances from vendors 1. 45 8. 19
Other liabilities 0. 12

As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018

Authorized

6,00,00,000 (March 31, 2019: 4,00,00,000, April 1, 2018: 2,50,00,000) equity

TS G [0 Catalh 600.00 400.00 250.00
Issued

3,33,21,728 (March 31, 2019: 2,64,09,830, April 1,2018: 1,36,58,230) equity shares 333.22 26410 136,58

of Rs.10 each fully paid up

Subscribed
3,33,21,728 (March 31, 2019: 2,64,09,830, April 1,2018: 1,36,58,230) equity shares
of Rs.10 each fully paid up

Paid-up
3,08,21,728 (March 31, 2019: 2,64,09,830, April 1, 2018: 1,36,58,230) equity shares
of Rs.10 each fully paid up

333.22 264.10 128.08

308.22 264.10 128.08

25,00,000 (March 31, 2019: NIL, April 1, 2018: NIL) equity shares of Rs.10 each partly
paid-up to the extent of Rs. 2.5 per share

Less: Amount recoverable from SATYA Employee Welfare Trust (10.00) (6.56)

(a) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares of face value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company declares and pays
dividendsin Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

6.25 = =
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(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)
During the year ended March 31, 2018, 17,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 face value have been issued to Mr.
Vivek Tiwari (MD, CEO & CIO) of the Company as Sweat Equity out of which 8,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs
10 face value have been subscribed during previous year and 8,50,000 Equity Shares been subscribed
during financial year ended March 31,2019.

During the year ended March 31, 2018, 1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 face value are issued to M2I
consulting at a permium of 20/- for consideration other than cash out of which 30,000 Equity Shares of Rs
10 face value have been subscribed during previous year and 70,000 Equity Shares been subscribed
during financial year ended March 31,2019.

On July 26, 2019, the Company issued 25,00,000 partly paid-up equity shares of Rs.75 per share to Mr.
Vivek Tiwari, Managing Director, CEO & CIO, on which Rs.2.5 per share is paid till March 31, 2020 and
5,33,333 Equity Shares were allotted to Koshish Marketing Solutions Private Limited at a price of Rs.75 each
(face value of Rs.10 each and a premium of Rs.65 each).

On September 4, 2019, the Company issued 3,76,574 Equity Shares to Dia Vikas Capital Private Limited;
6,42,126 to Gojo & Company, Inc. at price of Rs.75 each (face value of Rs.10 each and premium of Rs.65
each) and 3,44,250 equity shares were allotted to SATYA Employee Welfare Trust at a price of Rs.61each
(face value of Rs.10 each and premium of Rs.51each).

On October 18, 2019, the Company issued 25,15,615 equity shares by way of right issue at a price of Rs.110
each (face value of Rs.10 each and premium of Rs.110 each).

(b) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares issued outstanding at the beginning and at the end
of theyear:

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 26,409,830 264.10 13,658,230 136.58
Issued during the year 6,911,898 69.12 12,751,600 127.52
Outstanding at the end of the year 33,321,728 333.22 26,409,830 264.10

(c) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares subscribed at the beginning and at the end of
the year:

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 26,409,830 264.10 12,808,230 128.08
Issued during the year 6,911,898 69.12 13,601,600 136.02

Outstanding at the end of the year 33,321,728 333.22 26,409,830 264.10

(d) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares paid-up outstanding at the beginning and at the
end of theyear:

Particulars | March3t2000 | Mach3t2onw |
Nurorof srores] — Amoune | Nambor ot sares | amoure |
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 26,409,830 264.10 12,808,230 128.08
Issued during the year 6,911,898 50.37 13,601,600 136.02
Outstanding at the end of the year 33,321,728 314.47 26,409,830 264.10

(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company:

As per the records of the Company, including register of shareholders/members and other declaration
received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the shareholding given below represents both
legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
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(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

| March31,2020 | March3t2om | April 01, 2018
Name of the shareholder
Equity shares
Vivek Tiwari 9,789,700 29.38% 7,014,500 26.56% 4,497,500 32.93%
Gojo & Company, Inc. 8,135,537 24.42% 6,717,949 25.44% = 0.00%
Dia Vikas Capital Private Limited 6,773,475 20.33% 6,396,901 24.22% 3,200,000 23.43%
Maneesha Gupta 1,755,500 5.27% 1,755,500 6.65% 1,755,500 12.85%

As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018

19: Other Equity

Authorized
1,00,00,000 (March 31, 2019: 1,00,00,000 April 1, 2018: 50,00,000) preference

shares of Rs.10 each 100.00 100.00 50.00
100.00 100.00 50.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
27,22,222 (March 31, 2019: NIL, April 1, 2018: NIL) 0.01%, non-cumulative, _ _
o : . 27.22
participating, compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs.10 each.
27.22 - -

(a) Terms/rights attached to compulsorily convertible preference shares

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company issued 27,22,222, 0.01% non-cumulative,
participating, Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) at Rs.135 per CCPS (face value of Rs.10
and premium of Rs.125 per CCPS) to Gojo & Company, Inc. The terms of CCPS are as follows:

Dividend

CCPS carry minimum preferential dividend rate of 0.01% per annum. The preferential dividend is non-
cumulative and shall be paid in preference to any dividend and the preferential dividend shall be due only
when declared by the Board. Each preference shares would be entitled to participate pari passuin any cash
or non-cash dividends paid to the holders of shares of all other classes (including equity shares) or series on
aprorata, as-if-converted basis.

Liquadation preference

Inthe event of liquidation event, the proceeds from the liquidation (less any amounts required by applicable
law to be paid or set aside for the payment of creditors of the Company, if applicable) (the ‘Liquidation
Preference Amount’) shall be paid or distributed such that the holders of preference shares receive, in
preference to any other shareholders, an amount which is the higher of:

(a) Total amount invested in the Company by the relevant holder of the preference shares along with any
arrears of declared and accrued but unpaid dividends calculated to the date of such payment; or

(b) The share of the liquidation preference amount pro-rata to its shareholding in the Company (on a fully
diluted basis) on account of the preference shares, on an as-if-converted basis (the “Preference Amount”).

Any proceeds remaining after full payment of the preference amount shall be distributed among all the
shareholders on a pro rata, as-if-converted basis (excluding holders of the preference shares)

If the proceeds available for distribution to the shareholders are insufficient to pay the amounts as above,
the entire available proceeds would be allocated among the holders of preference shares pro rata to the
respective amounts invested by the holders of preference shares.

Votingrights
Each preference shares shall be entitled to vote, as may be permitted under applicable law, only on matters

relating to the rights of and the terms of the preference shares and any variation thereof.
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Each preference shares shall be convertible into 1(one) equity share at any time at the option of the holder
of the preference shares at the conversion price of Rs.135 per share without the payment of additional
consideration by the holder thereof.

Each preference shares shall automatically be converted into equity shares, at its respective conversion
price thenin effect, upon the earlier of (i) 1(one) day prior to the expiry of 20 (twenty) years from the date of
allotment of such preference shares; or (i) in connection with an initial public offering, prior to the filing of a
prospectus (or equivalent document, by whatever name called) by the Company with the competent
authority or such later date as may be permitted under applicable law.

Particul As at As at As at
articulars March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 April 1,2018

Equity component of compound financial instruments

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures

NIL (March 31, 2019: NIL April 1, 2018: 448) 14% unsecured, unlisted

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Rs.1,00,000 each 44.80

Particul As at As at
SHUCLEALS March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Securities premium account

Balance at the beginning of the year 715.69 130.43
Add: Premium on issue of equity shares 370.00 585.25
Add: Premium on issue of compulsorily convertible preference shares 340.28

Less: Amount recoverable from SATYA Employee Welfare Trust (51.00) (33.44)
Statutory reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 6.56 0.09
Add: Amount transferred from surplus of profit and loss* 15.06 6.47

*In terms of section 45IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the company is required to transfer atleast 20% of its profit after tax to Statutory Reserve. Accordingly, the company
has transferred a sum of Rs 15.06 mn, representing 20% of its profit after tax for the current financial year. The amount transferred to such reserve in the year ended March 31, 2019 has
been made based on the profit after tax for such financial year under the previous GAAP.

Share options outstanding reserve (refer note 41)
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.22 -
Fair value of stock option - charge for the year 11.43

Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Balance at the beginning of the year (81.58) (72.70)
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year 75.29 (2.63)
Add: Other comprehensive income (re-measurement gains/(losses) on

defined benefit plans) (1.26) 0.30
Less: Income-tax effect on other comprehensive income 0.37 (0.08)
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve (20% of profit after tax as required by

Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934) (15.06) (6.47)
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SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2020

(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

For period ended For period ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Measured at amortised cost
Interest income on portfolio loans 1,815.72 882.19
Interest on fixed deposits* 157.80 95.74

*Includes interest income on margin money deposits placed to avail term loans from banks, non-banking financial companies and placed as cash collateral in connection with
securitisation transactions.

Fee and commission income 14.96 11.29

Net gain on derecognition of financials instruments under amortised cost category 96.56 15.60

Financial advisory services - 5.00
Miscellaneous income 7.25

Interest
On debt securities 299.06 101.44
On borrowings (other than debt securities) 819.42 478.51
On subordinated liabilities 20.96 18.20
Other finance cost 19.60 4.33

Impairment on portfolio loans measured at amortised cost 90.50 40.22
Portfolio loans written off 8.77 1.65

Salaries, wages and bonus 415.87 213.47
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 29.87 13.10
Expense for employee stock option plan 11.43 0.22
Staff welfare expenses 7.20 3.46
Gratuity and leave encashment expenses 8.79 3.93

Advertisement expenses 1.55 1.96
Commission and brokerage 0.01 0.03
Business promotion 3.50 0.66
Courier expenses 2.45 1.82
General insurance expenses 1.19 0.75
Legal and professional fee 39.87 20.53
Auditor's remuneration (refer details below) 2.93 1.92
Cashless POS fee 1.00 0.71
Membership fees 3.32 1.78
Meeting and conference 3.42 2.00
Software expenses 25.61 11.69
Postage, internet and telephone expenses 10.15 7.59
Electricity charges 2.46 1.08
Printing and stationeries 718 3.87
Repair and maintainance 11.22 2.65
Branch Office maintainance 7.26 3.81
Rent (refer note 37) 23.66 10.79
Branch establishment expenses 4.70 4.87
Director siting fee 2.51 1.23
Travelling and conveyance 2718 25.50
Rates and taxes 1.96 1.85
Festival expenses 0.82 0.48
Annual meet expenses 12.50 4.85
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(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

Freight and forwarding 1.04 1.32
Donation expenses 3.38 0.33
Cenvat credit disallowed 13.53 11.87
Miscellaneous expenses 2.85 0.03

. For period ended For period ended
MarCh 31' 2020 MarCh 31’ 2019

As auditor:

Audit fee 2.65 1.60
Certification fee 0.20 0.14
Out of pocket expenses 0.08 0.18

A.) Income-tax expense in the statement of profit and loss consists of:

Income-tax:
Current year tax 44.78 13.56
Earlier year tax 0.32 -
Deferred tax credit (9.42) (14.35)

Income-tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income (0.37)

B.) The reconciliation between the provision for income-tax of the company and amounts
computed by applying the Indian statutory income-tax rate to profit before taxes is as follows:

Profit before tax 110.97 (3.42)
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (1.26) 0.30
Profit before tax (re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans) 109.71 (3.12)
Enacted tax rates in India 29.12% 27.82%
Computed tax expense/(savings) 31.95 (0.87)
Effect of :

Non-deductible expenses 4.70 0.44
Difference on account of change in tax rate (1.66) (0.28)
Earlier year tax 0.32

Net profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss 75. 29 (2. 63)
Less: Dividend on preference shares

Net profit as above 75.29 (2.63)
Add: Dividend on preference shares and tax thereon - -

Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares for basic earning per share

Equity shares
Number of shares at the beginning of the year 26.41 12.81
Add: Issued during the year 3.99 8.51

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
Number of shares at the beginning of the year -
Add: Issued during the year

Effect of dilution
Employee stock option

Nominal value per share: Rs.10 (Previous year: Rs.10)
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30: Segment Reporting
The Company's main business is of lending to customers who have similar risks and returns for the purpose of Ind AS
108 on ‘Operating Segments’ notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. All other activities of the Company revolve
around the main business. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 dealing with
OperatingSegments.

31: Related parties under Ind AS 24 with whom transactions have taken place during the year.

I.Otherrelated party inaccordance with Ind AS 24 with whom transactions have taken place
I. Key Management Personnel

(a) Mr.VivekTiwari - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

(b) Mr. Sudhindra Sharma - Chief Financial Officer

(c) Ms. Rachna Khantwal - Company Secretary (with effect from September 19,2018)

(d) Mr. Ankit Tiwari - Company Secretary (upto September 5,2018).

Il. Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
(a) Mr. Girijesh Tiwari - Senior Manager

Ill. Substantial Shareholders
(a) Dia Vikas Capital Private Limited
(b) GOJO and Company, Inc.

IV. Other related party inaccordance with Ind AS 24 with whom transactions have taken place
(a) Koshish Sustainable Solutions Private Limited

(b) Koshish Marketing Solutions Private Limited

(c) SATYA Employee Welfare Trust

Related party transactions during the year:

Transactions | Transactions (Payable)/Receivable

Nature of Transactions Related Party ei‘::l::gM);erzlz :nlﬁ:er::lgMyaer?:'I; As at As at As at
31,2020 31,2019 March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 | April 1,2018

Mr. Vivek Tiwari 16.49 13.60 = = =
Mr. Sudhindra Sharma 6.07 5.12 = = =
1. Remuneration Mr. Ankit Tiwari = 0.30 = = =
Ms. Rachna Khantwal 0.59 0.40 - - -
Mr. Girijesh Tiwari 0.76 0.54 = = =
Mr. Vivek Tiwari 11/(11) 3/(3) = = =
) Advances given/ Mr. Sudhindra Sharma = 0.8/(0.8) = = =
* || (repaymentreceived) Mr. Ankit Tiwari - 0.1/(0.1) g - -
Ms. Rachna Khantwal 0.05/(0.05) - - - -
Share Allotment inluding Mr. Vivek Tiwari 6.25 = - - -
3. premium (partly paid-up
shares)
Dia Vikas Capital Private 28.24 117.88 = = -
Limited
Mr. Sudhindra Sharma = 0.99 - - -
Mr. Ankit Tiwari = 0.14 - - -
Ms. Rachna Khantwal (O - - - -
Share Allotment
4. inluding premium Gojo & Company, Inc. 133.46 409.80 - - -
Koshish Marketing 125.25 = = - -
Solutions Private Limited
Koshish Sustainable 30.00 - - - -
Solutions Private Limited
SATYA Employee 21.00 = = - -
Welfare Trust
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Issue of Compulsorily
5. Convertible Preference Gojo & Company, Inc. 367.50 = = = =
Shares including premium

6 Conversion of Compulsorily  Dia Vikas Capital _ 4.48 _ _ _
. Convertible Debentures Private Limited .
32: Fair Value

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

Particulars As at As at As at As at As at As at
March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 | April 1,2018 ][March 31,2020 | March 31,2019 | April 1,2018

Investments

Loan portfolio 9,172.52 6,054.91 2,142.06 9,402.49 6,209.62 2,211.77

Borrowings* 9,230.53 7,424.34 2,922.34 9,266.56 7,376.92 2,917.87

*Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, other financial assets/liabilities, other non-financial assets/liabilities, payables and
provisions are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

33:FairValue Hierarchy of assets and liabilities
Fair value measurement

|. The carrying amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31,
2020 isasfollows:

Assets
Loan portfolio 9,172.52 9,402.49 9,402.49 9,402.49
Liabilities

Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings* 9,230.53 9,266.56 9,266.56 9,266.56

*Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.

Il. The carrying amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2019 is as
follows:

Assets

Measured at amortised cost

Loan portfolio 6,054.91 6,209.62 6,209.62 6,209.62
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Liabilities

Measured at amortised cost

Particulars

Borrowings* 742434 7,376.92 7,376.92 7,376.92

*Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.

lll. The carrying amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at April 1, 2018 is as
follows:

Assets

Measured at fair value through profit or loss

Investments 1.88 1.88

Measured at amortised cost

Loan Portfolio 2,142.06 2,211.77 2,211.77 2,211.77

Liabilities
Measured at amortised cost

Particulars

Borrowings* 2,922.34 2,917.87 2,917.87 2,917.87

*Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.

Valuation technique used for
Loan portfolio

The scheduled future cash flows (including principal and interest) are discounted using the lending rate
prevailing as at the balance sheet date. The discounting factor is applied assuming the cash flows will be
evenly received in a month. The overdue cash flows upto 90 Days (upto stage 2) are discounted assuming
they will be received evenly in the first month following the balance sheet date. Further, the fair value of
cash flows for Stage Ill loans are assumed as carrying value less provision for expected credit loss.

Borrowings

The fair value of fixed rate borrowings (including debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities)
and subordinated liabilities) is determined by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using
current market interest rate being charged for new borrowings. The fair value of floating rate borrowing,
borrowings recognised towards securitisation deals and lease liability created under Ind AS 116 is deemed
toequalits carrying value.

There have been no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended March 31,2020 and
March 31, 2019.

34:Capital management

The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximize shareholders’ value, safeguard business
continuity, meet the regulatory requirement and support the growth of the Company. The Company
determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic
investment plans. The funding requirements are met through borrowings, retained earnings and operating
cashflows generated.
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As an NBFC-MFI, the RBI requires the Company to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted assets ratio
("CRAR") consisting of Tier | and Tier Il capital of 15% of its aggregate risk weighted assets. Further, the total
of Tier Il capital cannot exceed 100% of its Tier | capital at any point of time. The capital management
process of the Company ensures to maintain a healthy CRAR at all the times.

The Company has a board approved policy on resource planning which states that the resource planning of
the Company shall be based on its Asset Liability Management (ALM) requirement. The policy of the
Company on resource planning will also cover the objectives of the regulatory requirement. The policy
prescribes the sources of funds, threshold for mix from various sources, tenure, manner of raising the funds
etc.

35: Firsttime adoption

The Company has prepared its Ind AS compliant financial statements for year ended on March 31,2020, the
comparative period ended on March 31, 2019 and an opening Ind AS balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 (the
date of transition), as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. This note explains the
principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its previous GAAP financial statements, including
the balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,
2019.

For years ended upto March 31, 2019, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance
with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (previous GAAP).

Exemption availed:

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain
requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions/exceptions:

Estimates

The estimates as at April 1,2018 and as at March 31, 2019 are consistent with those made for the same dates
inaccordance with Indian GAAP apart from the following adjustments:

- Fair valuation of financialinstruments carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Impairment of financial assets based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model.

The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions
atApril 1,2018 the date of transition to Ind AS, and as of March 31, 2019.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the exception related to impairment of financial assets giveninInd AS 101. It has
used reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine
the creditrisk at the date that financial assets were initially recognized and compared that to the credit risk
asatApril1,2018.

Property, plantand equipment andintagible assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and investment properties as recognized in its Indian GAAP financials as deemed cost at
the transition date.
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Reconciliation of equity under Ind AS and previous GAAP m m 1-Apr-18

Total equity as per previous GAAP 912.54 180.25
Loan Portfolio

Processing fee on financial assets reversed on account of EIR model A (48.15) (17.98)
Provision based on ECL model on financial assets B (18.36) (4.47)
Assignment and securitization transaction
Recognition of EIS upfronting on assignment deals (net of reversal) C 8.01 0.60
Impact of re-recognition of securitization transaction in books D 17.90 5.12
Borrowings
Measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost using EIR method E (26.66) (6.30)
Others
Impact of Ind AS 116 F (2.06) -
Non-convertible preference shares considered as borrowings under Ind AS G (20.00) =
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures considered as other equity under Ind AS H = 44.80
Recognition of deferred tax charge | 41.77 28.69
Total equity as per Ind AS 864.99 230.71
e e |
Profit as per previous GAAP 32.37
Loan Portfolio
Measurement of financial assets at amortised cost using EIR method A (30.17)
Impairment on financial instruments B (13.89)
Borrowings
Measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost using EIR method E (20.29)
Others
Re-recognition of securitization arrangement (net) D 12.71
Upfronting of excess interest spread on direct assignment (net) C 7.41
Impact of Ind AS 116 F (2.06)
Interest on preference shares included in other liabilities G (1.35)
Recognition of Deferred tax charge | 13.08
Fair Value of Employee Stock Options J (0.22)
Total Profit as per Ind AS -2.41

Notes to Reconciliation of the previous GAAP and Ind AS:

Loan portfolio

A. Under previous GAAP, loan processing fees received in connection with loans portfolio is recognized
upfront and credited to profit or loss for the year.

Under Ind AS, loan processing fee is credited to profit and loss using the effective interest rate method. The
unamortized portion of loan processing fee is adjusted from the loan portfolio.

B. Under the Ind AS, allowance is provided on the loans given to customers is on the basis of percentage
obtained by evaluating the loss of the previous years and management expectations for future losses
based on quantitative and qualitative evaluation of the financial assets and macro-economic factors.
Under the previous GAAP, the Company has created provision for loans and advances based on the
Guidelines on prudential norms issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Interestincome under Assignment arrangement

C. The company transferred the loan portfolio in a transfer that qualified for derecognition in its entirety
therefore under IndAS the whole of the interest spread (over the expected life of the asset) is recognised
on the date of derecognition itself as interest-only strip receivable and correspondingly recognised as
profit on derecognition of financial asset.

Securitization Arrangement

D. The Company has entered into securitization transactions. The Company has de-recognized the
securitised assets under previous GAAP as the same meets the de-recognition criteria as per previous
GAAP. However, as per Ind AS, as the Company has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards,
the securitized asset has been recognised in the books and a corresponding liability is also recognized. The
transferred asset and the corresponding liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.
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Borrowings

E. Under previous GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings were recognised as
deferred revenue expenditure and charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the tenure of such
borrowings. Under Ind AS, transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial
liability and charged to profit or loss using the effective interestmethod.

Implementation of INndAS 116

F.Ind AS 116 requires lessees to recognize leases (other than short-term leases) on their balance sheets.
Lessees are required to initially recognize a lease liability for the obligation to make lease payments and a
right-of-use asset for the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term. The lease liability is measured
at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The right-of-use asset s initially
measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease incentives received,
the lessee’s initial direct costs (e.g. commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal and dismantling
costs. Lessees accrete the lease liability to reflect interest and reduce the liability to reflect lease payments
made. The related right-of-use asset is depreciated in accordance with the depreciation requirements of
Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. Under the previous GAAP, lease expense in respect of operating
leases (other than short term leases) is booked on a straight-line basis over the tenure of the lease through
the creation of aLease Equalisation Reserve.

Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (OCPS)

G. Under previous GAAP, the Company had recognised balance in OCPS as equity. Based on assessment
of terms associated with such OCPS, the instruments do not meet the condition of an equity instrument as
per Ind AS 32 and accordingly have been classified as financial liability as at March 31, 2019.

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD)

H. Under previous GAAP, the Company had recognised balance in CCD as borrowings. Based on
assessment of terms associated with such CCD, the instruments meet the condition of an equity
instrumentas per Ind AS 32 and accordingly have been classified as other equity as at April 1,2018.

Deferred Tax Asset (DTA)

l. Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on
differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to
account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of
Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not
required under Indian GAAP.In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary
differences. According to the accounting policies, the Company has to account for such differences.
Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained
earnings or a separate component of equity.

Share-based payments

J.Under Indian GAAP, the Group recognised only the intrinsic value for the share based payments plans as
an expense. Ind AS requires the fair value of the share options to be determined using an appropriate
pricing model recognised over the vesting period.

36: Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five
years or more of service is eligible for gratuity, on cessation of employment and it is computed at 15 days
salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service subject to limit of Rs.2,000,000 as per the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Provision for unfunded gratuity liability for all employees is based upon
actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every financial year. Major drivers in actuarial assumptions,
typically, are years of service and employee compensation. In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS) 19 on ‘Employee Benefits’, commitments are actuarially determined using the ‘Projected Unit
Credit’ Method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial assumptions are accounted for in the statement
of profitandloss as other comprehensive income.
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The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of
profit and loss and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the gratuity plan:

Movement in defined benefit obligations

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 224 114
Current service cost 1.91 1.31
Interest on defined benefit obligation 0.17 0.09
Re-measurement (gains)/losses on defined benefit plans 1. 26 (0. 30)
Benefits paid

Balance Sheet

Amount recognised in balance sheet

2. 24 1 14

Present value of obligations 5¥ 58
Fair value on plan assets

Expenses charged to the statement of profit and loss

Particulars m m

Current service cost 1.91 1.31
Interest cost 0.17 0.09

Re-measurement gains/(losses) in the other comprehensive income

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (1.26)

Summary of Actuarial Assumptions

Discount rate 6.60% 7.65%
Expected return on plan assets NA NA
6.00% p.a. for next 2 6.00% p.a. for next 3

Rate of Increase in compensation levels years and 4.00% p.a. years and 4.00% p.a.
thereafter thereafter

Retirement age (years) 58 58

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the balance sheet date are
as shown below:

Discount rate (+0.5%) (5.34) (2.14)
Discount rate (-0.5%) 5.84 2.34
Salary Inflation (+0.5%) 5.84 2.34
Salary Inflation (-0.5%) (5.35) (2.15)
Withdrawal Rate (+10%) (5.38) (2.14)
Withdrawal Rate (-10%) 5.78 2.34

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Year 1 0.02
Year 2 0.02
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Year 3 0.49
Year 4 0.72
Year 5 0.82
After year 5 3.14

Discount rate: The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligation is determined by reference
to market yield at the balance sheet date on governmentbonds.

Salary escalation rate: This is Management’s estimate of the increases in the salaries of the employees
over the long term. Estimated future salary increases takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

37:Leases
Company asalessee

The company has lease contracts for office and residential spaces taken on lease. The lease terms are
between 1to 10 years.

The Company also has certain lease with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the ‘short-
termlease’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide notification dated March 30, 2019, has notified Ind AS 116 -
Leases with effect from April 1, 2019 for all Companies. Further, as per ITFG issued by ICAl on Ind AS 116, for
Companies implementing Ind AS from accounting period beginning on or after April 1, 2019, this standard
shall be applicable from the transition date (i.e. April 1, 2018). Accordingly, the Company has implemented
Ind AS 116 with effect from April 1, 2018 by following the modified retrospective approach.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and the movements during the period are as
follows:

Particulars m m

Balance at the beginning of the year 3.82 7.99
Additions made during the year 3.38 1.87
Depreciation charge for the year (4.35) (6.04)
Balance at the end of the year 2.85 3.82

The carryingamounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 6.80 8.04
Additions made during the year 3.36 1.87
Interest accretion for the year 0.91 0.96
Payments made during the year (5.37) (4.07)
Balance at the end of the year 5.70 6.80

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is between 12.59% and 12.73%, with maturity in 2020-2021.

The following are the amounts recognized in profitandloss:

Depreciation expense in respect of right-of-use asset 4.35 6.04
Interest expense in respect of lease liabilities 0.91 0.96
Expense relating to short-term leases (included on other expenses) 23.66 10.79
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 28.92 17.79

The Company's total cash outflows for leases was Rs.29.03 mn during year ended March 31,2020 (Rs.14.86
mn during the year ended March 31,2019).
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38: Amount payable to micro smalland medium enterprises

There are noamounts that need to be disclosed in accordance with the Micro Smalland Medium Enterprise
DevelopmentAct, 2006 (the ‘MSMED’) pertaining to micro or small enterprises.

Asat March 31,2020, March 31,2019 & April 1,2018, no supplier has intimated the Company about its status
as micro or small enterprises or its registration with the appropriate authority under MSMED.

39: Risk Management and financial objectives

Risk is an integral part of the Company’s business and sound risk management is critical to the success. As
a financial intermediary, the Company is exposed to risks that are particular to its lending and the
environment within which it operates and primarily includes credit, liquidity and market risks. The
Company has a risk management policy which covers risks associated with the financial assets and
liabilities. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Directors.

The Company has identified and implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to assess, monitor
and manage risk throughout the Company. The risk management process is continuously reviewed,
improved and adapted in the context of changing risk scenario and the agility of the risk management
process is monitored and reviewed for its appropriateness in the changing risk landscape. The process of
continuous evaluation of risks includes taking stock of the risk landscape on an event-driven basis.

The Company has an elaborate process for risk management. Major risks identified by the businesses and
functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

39.1CreditRisk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur from defaults by Borrowers under loan agreements. In order to
address credit risk, the Company have stringent credit assessment policies for client selection. Measures
such as verifying client details, online documentation and the usage of credit bureau data to get
information on past credit behaviour also supplement the efforts for containing credit risk. The Company
also follows a systematic methodology in the opening of new branches, which takes into account factors
such as the demand for credit in the area; income and market potential; and socio-economic and law and
order risks in the proposed area. Further, client due diligence procedures encompass various layers of
checks, designed to assess the quality of the proposed group and to confirm that they meet our criteria.

The Company is an urban, semi-urban and rural focused NBFC-MF| with a geographically diversified
presence in India and offer income generation loans under the joint liability group model, predominantly to
women from low-income households in urban, semi-urban and rural areas. Further, as it focuses on
providing micro-loans in urban, semi-urban and rural areas, the Company's results of operations are
affected by the performance and the future growth potential of microfinance in India. The Company's
borrowers typically have limited sources of income, savings and credit histories and the loans are typically
provided free of collateral. The borrowers generally do not have a high level of financial resilience, and, as a
result, they can be adversely affected by declining economic conditions and natural calamities. In addition,
the Company relies on non-traditional guarantee mechanisms rather than tangible assets as collateral,
which may not be effective in recovering the value of loans.

In order to mitigate the impact of credit risk in the future profitability, the Company creates impairment
loss allowance basis the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the outstanding loans as at balance sheet
date. Refer Note 3(e) for details.

39.2 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not meet its financial obligations. Liquidity risk arises
due to the unavailability of adequate funds at an appropriate cost or tenure. The objective of liquidity risk
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per
requirements. The Company consistently generates sufficient cash flows from operating and financing
activities to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. The Company's resource mobilization
team sources funds from multiple sources, which inter-aliaincludes banks, financial institutions and capital
markets to maintain a healthy mix of sources. The resource mobilization team s responsible for diversifying
fundraising sources, managing interest rate risks and maintaining a strong relationship with banks,
financial institutions, other domestic and foreign financial institutions and rating agencies to ensure the
liquidity risk is well addressed. Further, the maturity schedule for all financial liabilities and assets are
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regularly reviewed and monitored. The Company has a Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy and ALM
Committee to review and monitor the liquidity risk and ensure the compliance with the prescribed
regulatory requirement. The ALM Policy prescribes the detailed guidelines for managing the liquidity risk.

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020:

6 months 1to3 3to5 Over Total
tolyear | years years 5 years ota

Borrowings* 761.08 397.81 622.58 1,692.90 2,741.38  3,602.71 764.61 49156  11,074.64
Other financial liabilities 60.54 = = = = = = = 60.54
Loan portfolio 46.50 3.80 1,215.93  2,110.50 3,662.36  4,489.15 = - 11,528.24
Other financial assets 653.10 2.23 21.87 173.51 574.25 237.89 = = 1,662.85

*Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.
The above maturity pattern is based on the undiscounted contractual cash flows under the respective arrangements basis which such assets and liabilities
have been recognized.

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2019:

6 months 1to3 3to5 Over Total
to 1year years years 5 years ota

Borrowings* 544.39 362.99 383.74 1,380.40 1,793.94  3,265.58 935.95  410.87 9,077.86
Other financial liabilities 152.02 = = = = = = = 152.02
Loan portfolio 486.71 446.32 300.05 1,253.90 2,110.68  2,951.29 = - 7,548.95
Other financial assets 448.53 1.95 115.23 156.03 1,056.39 711.66 - - 2,489.80

*Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.
The above maturity pattern is based on the undiscounted contractual cash flows under the respective arrangements basis which such assets and liabilities
have been recognized.

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as at April 1, 2018:

6 months 1to3 3to5 Over Total
tolyear | years years 5 years ota

Borrowings* 172.80 187.02 143.49 437.76 838.51  1,246.96 290.96  293.74 3,611.25
Other financial liabilities 12.39 = = = = = = = 12.39
Loan portfolio 127.28 144.56 130.99  408.55 812.72  1,036.73 0.13 - 2,660.96
Other financial assets 702.18 155.78 34.94 217.46 32.60 283.34 = = 1,426.30

*Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.
The above maturity pattern is based on the undiscounted contractual cash flows under the respective arrangements basis which such assets and liabilities
have been recognized.

39.3 Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market factor. Such changesin the values of financial instruments may result from changesin
the interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. The Company is exposed primarily to interest
rate risk which has been discussed below:

(a) Interestraterisk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changesinmarketinterestrates.

The Company is subject to interest rate risk, principally because it lends to clients at fixed interest rates and
for periods that may differ from its funding sources, while the Company's borrowings are at both fixed and
variable interest rates for different periods. The Company assesses and manages its interest rate risk by
managing its assets and liabilities. The Company's Asset Liability Management Committee evaluates asset
liability management, and ensures that all significant mismatches, if any, are being managed appropriately.

The Company has an Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy, approved by the Board of Directors, for
managing interest rate risk and policy for determining the interest rate to be charged on the loans given.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to areasonably possible change in the interest rates on the
portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the profit before tax is affected
through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

m For year ended March 31, 2020 For year ended March 31, 2019

0.50% increase 4.07 (1.33)
0.50% decrease 4.07 1.33

40:Transfer of financial assets
a.Securitisation transactions:

During the period, the Company has entered into securitisation arrangement with various parties. Under
such arrangement, the Company has transferred a pool of loan portfolio, which does not fulfil the
derecognition criteria specified under Ind AS 109 as the risk and rewards with respect to these assets are
not substantially transferred.

Following such transfer, the Company’s involvement in these assets is as follows:
-Asaservicer of the transferred assets
-To the extent of credit enhancements provided to such parties

The value of financial assets and liabilities as on:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1,2018

Carrying amount of associated assets 1,464.82 1,370.87 381.93
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 1,520.50 1,465.36 395.72
Fair value of associated assets 1,464.82 1,370.87 381.93
Fair value of associated liabilities 1,520.50 1,465.36 395.72

The carrying value of securitized loans approximate their fair value as the loans once sold cannot be transferred again.

b. Assignment transactions:

The Company has transferred a part of its loan portfolio (measured at amortised cost) vide assignment
deals executed with various parties, as a source of finance. As per the terms of deal, the derecognition
criteria as per Ind AS 109 (including transaction of substantially all the risks and rewards relating to assets
being transferred to the buyer) being met, the assets have been derecognised.

The management has evaluated the impact of the assignment transactions executed during the year onits
business model. Based on the future business plan, the company's business model remains to hold the
assets for collecting contractual cash flows

The table below summarises the carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets and the
gain/(loss) on derecognition:

_ For year ended MarCh 31' 2020 For year ended MarCh 31' 2019

Carrying amount of derecognised financial assets 852.21 140.71

Gain/(loss) from derecognition 96.56 15.60

Since the Company transferred the above financial assets in a transfer that qualified for derecognitioninits
entirety, therefore the whole of the interest spread (over the expected life of the asset) is recognised on the
date of derecognition itself as interest only strip receivable and correspondingly recognised as profit on
derecognition of financial assets.

41: Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

The company has provided an equity settled share based payment scheme to its employees. The details of
such share based payment scheme are as follows:
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Number of Vesting perlod
m

SATYA ESOP 2018 Grant | 9,95,200 25% vests every year subject to continuance of service
Exercise period is 3 years from the date of vesting of options.
The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is Rs.11.43 mn.
(a) The following table lists the input to the Black-Scholes Model used for the options granted by
the Company:

e B

Date of Grant 26-Mar-19
Date of Board/Compensation Committee approval 22-Oct-18
Number of options granted 9,95,200
Method of settlement Equity
Graded vesting period
Day following the expiry of 12 months from grant 25%
Day following the expiry of 24 months from grant 25%
Day following the expiry of 36 months from grant 25%
Day following the expiry of 48 months from grant 25%
Exercise period 3 years from the date of vesting of options
Vesting conditions Minimum period of one year between Grant of Options

and Vesting of Options; Vesting Period in any case shall
not exceed 5 (Five) years from the Grant Date; Employee
must be in service at the time of vesting and and must
neither be serving his notice for termination of
employment with the Company nor be subject to any
disciplinary proceedings pending against him on the

Vesting Date.
Weighted average of remaining contractual life in years 4.49
Year | 2.98
Year |l 3.99
Year lll 4.99
Year IV 5.99

(b) The details of activity under SATYA ESOP 2018 with an exercise price of Rs.45 for the year ended
March 31,2020 have been summarised below:

oy,

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 9,95,200

Options granted during the year -

Options lapsed during the year 1,39,450
8,55,750

Options outstanding at the end of the year*

*There are 2,14,500 options exercisable at the end of year.

(c) Details of stock options granted by the Company:

The weighted fair value of stock option granted during the year was Rs.27.74. The Black-Scholes Model has
been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following:

e = s

Share price on the date of grant (in Rs.)

Exercise price (in Rs.) 45
Historic volatility (%) 37.44%
Life of the options granted in years 2.50-5.50
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Risk free interest rate (%) 6.85%
Expected dividend rate (%) 0.00%

42: Disclosure of investing and financing transactions that do not require the use of cash and cash

equivalents
Premium added
Openi on conversion
pening Cash flows of preference [ Conversion Other Closing Balance
Balance shares into
equity shares

For the year ended March 31,2020

Name of instrument

Equity share capital (including securities premium) 939.79 80.37 319.00 = = 1,339.16
Compulsorily convertible preference shares (including = 27.22 340.28 = = 367.50
securities premium)

Right-of-use assets 3.82 = = = (0.97) 2.85
Borrowings* 7,424.34 1,843.40 - (37.21) 9,230.53

* Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.

Premium added
Opening on conversion
Cash flows of preference
Balance shares into
equity shares

Equity share capital (including securities premium) 258.52 84.66 551.81 44.80 = 939.79
Compulsorily convertible debentures 44.80 - (44.80) - -
Right-of-use assets 7.99 - - - (4.17) 3.82
Borrowings* 2,922.34 4,509.25 - (7.25) 7,424.34

For the year ended March 31, 2019

Name of instrument

Conversion Closing Balance

* Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.

43: Additional information required by Reserve Bank of India Master Direction DNBR. PD.
008/03.10.119/2016-17

(a) Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

CRAR (%) 25.47% 20.40%
CRAR-Tier | Capital (%) 19.63% 14.93%
CRAR-Tier |l Capital (%) 5.84% 5.47%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier Il capital 125.72 125.50

Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments S S

(b) Exposure to real estate sector

gy o | o |

I. Residential Mortgages
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or - -
will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented;

Il. Commercial Real Estate
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office
buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family - -
residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction,
etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits.
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Ill. Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other
securitised exposures -

Residential - -
Commercial Real Estate - -

B. Indirect exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank
(NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs).

Total = =

(c)The Company has no loans outstanding as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 that are secured
against gold.

(d) The Company has no exposure to capital market.

(e) Asset liability management:
Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2020:

Upto 6 months 1to3 3to5 Over Total
1month to 1year years years 5 years ok

Borrowings # 645.88 327.24 477.24 1,392.15 2,359.03 2,942.23 560.00 450.00 9,153.77
Advances * 34.34 2.39 570.75 1,610.94 2,981.82 3,869.91 = - 9,070.17
Otbher financial assets 43.52 - - - 49.42 20.76 - - 113.70

# Net of lease liability recognized under Ind AS 116 in respect of leases (other than short-term leases).

* Net of provision for expected credit loss on Stage Il loans.

The above maturity pattern is based on the undiscounted contractual cash flows under the respective arrangements basis which such assets and liabilities
have been recognized.

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2019:

Upto 6 months 1to3 3to5 Over Total
1month to 1year years years 5 years ore

Borrowings # 441.02 290.02 286.95 1,119.86 1,432.85 2,705.69 681.94 350.00 7,308.33
Advances * 326.09 338.13 189.71 952.12 1,717.47 2,485.91 - = 6,009.42
Other financial assets 69.19 = = = 16.52 21.71 = = 107.42

# Net of lease liability recognized under Ind AS 116 in respect of leases (other than short-term leases).

* Net of provision for expected credit loss on Stage Il loans.

The above maturity pattern is based on the undiscounted contractual cash flows under the respective arrangements basis which such assets and liabilities
have been recognized.

(f) No instances of fraud have been reported during financial year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31,
2019.

(g) The Company has not undertaken any transaction in derivatives during financial year ended March 31,
2020 and March 31,2019.

(h) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during year ended March 31,
2020:

m m Rating agency éilﬁg'}:;:: Rating assigned Valid up to Borrowing limit

Long-term bank facilities CARE 3-Feb-20 CARE BBB-; Stable Refer Note 1 500.00
2 Long-term bank facilities ICRA 4-Feb-20 [ICRA]BBB-; Stable Refer Note 1 3,500.00
3 Securitization ICRA 6-May-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 17-Nov-20 235.29
4 Securitization ICRA 30-Aug-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 17-Apr-21 277.09
5 Securitization ICRA 25-Feb-20 [ICRAJA-(SO) 17-Jul-21 358.46
6 Securitization ICRA 5-Mar-20 [ICRAJA(SO) 13-Nov-21 235.13
7 Securitization ICRA 5-Aug-19 [ICRAJA+(SO) 27-Feb-21 132.70
8 Securitization ICRA 6-Dec-19 [ICRAJA-(SO) 27-Jun-21 241.65
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9 Securitization ICRA 6-Dec-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 17-Jul-21 224.74
10 Securitization ICRA 27-Dec-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 17-Jul-21 224.75
1 Securitization ICRA 26-Feb-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 12-Dec-20 412.40
12 Securitization ICRA 27-Mar-19 [ICRA]JA-(SO) 21-Jan-21 344.04
13 Securitization ICRA 6-Jun-19 [ICRA]JA-(SO) 14-Jan-21 102.97
14 Securitization ICRA 13-Mar-20 [ICRAJA-(SO) 17-Dec-21 212.07
15 Securitization ICRA 15-Jan-19 [ICRA]A-(SO) 22-Nov-20 111.29
16 Securitization ICRA 24-May-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 12-Dec-20 97.74

Note 1: The rating is subject to annual surveillance till final repayment/redemption of rated facilities.

Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during year ended March 31,
2019:

Long-term bank facilities CARE 7-Sep-18 CARE BBB-; Stable Refer Note 1 500.00
2 Long-term bank facilities ICRA 7-Sep-18 [ICRA]BBB-; Stable Refer Note 1 2,000.00
3 ygge%c':ﬂ\;eesrt;)brfgramme ICRA 7-Sep-18 [ICRA]BBB-; Stable Refer Note 1 940.00
4 Securitization ICRA 15-Jan-19 [ICRAJA-(SO) 22-Nov-20 111.29
5 Securitization ICRA 6-May-19 [ICRA]JA(SO) 17-Nov-20 2,35.29
6 Securitization ICRA 26-Feb-19 [ICRAJA(SO) 12-Dec-20 4,12.40
7 Securitization ICRA 27-Mar-19 [ICRA]JA-(SO) 21-Jan-21 3,44.04
8 Securitization ICRA 5-Aug-19 [ICRA]JA+(SO) 27-Feb-21 132.70
9 Securitization ICRA 6-Jun-19 [ICRAJA-(SO) 14-Jan-21 102.97
10 Securitization ICRA 24-May-19 [ICRA]JA(SO) 12-Dec-20 97.74
il Securitization ICRA 22-Jan-18 [ICRAIBBB(SO) 24-Jul-19 124.56
12 Securitization ICRA 4-Jun-18 [ICRAJA(SO) 17-Jan-20 198.51
13 Securitization ICRA 5-Apr-18 [ICRAJA-(SO) 17-Jan-20 83.23
14 Securitization ICRA 10-Jun-18 [ICRA]JA(SO) 17-Apr-20 195.80

Note 1: The rating is subject to annual surveillance till final repayment/redemption of rated facilities.

(i) Disclosure of complaints:
No. of complaints

0 0

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

No. of complaints received during the year 360 859
No. of complaints redressed during the year 359 859
No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 1 0

(j) Concentration of advances, exposures and non-performing assets:

Concentration of advances*

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 0.76 0.49
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances 0.08% 0.08%
Concentration of exposures*

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers 0.76 0.49
Percentage of exposure to twenty largest borrowers to total exposure 0.08% 0.08%
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Concentration of non-performing assets
Total exposure to top four non-performing assets 0.03

* Represents amount outstanding as per contract with customers.

(k) Sector-wise non-performing assets:

Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector

Agriculture and allied activities 0.00%
MSME 0.00%
Corporate borrowers 0.00%
Services 0.00%
Unsecured personal loans 1.62%
Auto loans 0.00%
Other personal loans 0.00%

* Represents Stage lll loans.

(I) Movement of non-performing assets (NPAs):

Net NPAs to net advances (%) 0.56%

0.01

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.04%
0.00%

0.00%

0.04%

1.  Balance at the beginning of the year 2.48
2. Additions during the year 156.99
3. Reductions during the year (8.77)
4. Balance at the end of the year 150.70

0.06
4.07
(1.65)

2.48

1. Balance at the beginning of the year 2.45
2. Additions during the year 48.58
3. Reductions during the year =

4. Balance at the end of the year 51.03

0.06
2.40

2.45

1.  Balance at the beginning of the year 0.03
2. Provisions made during the year 108.41
3. Write-off/excess provision written back (8.77)
4. Balance at the end of the year 99.67

0.00
1.67
(1.65)

0.03

(m) The Company has not made any drawdown from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2020 and

March 31,2019.
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(n) Investments:

1. Value of investments
(i) Gross value of investments
(@) InIndia - -
(b) Outside India - -
(i) Provision for depreciation
(a) InIndia - -
(b) Outside India - -
(iii) Net value of investments

(@) Inindia - -
(b) OQutside India - _

2.Movement of provisions held towards deprecation

Opening balance - -
Add: Provision made during the year - -
Less: Write off/ write back - -

Closing balance - -

(o) Detailsrelating to securitisation:

During the year, the Company has sold loans through securitisation. The information on securitisation
activitiesisasunder:

Total number of loans securitized 60,303 62,002
Total book value of loans securitised 1,620.20 1,479.39
Total book value of loans securitised (including over collateral) 1,773.89 1,632.22
Sale consideration received for loans securitized 1,620.20 1,479.39

Credit enhancements provided and outstanding (gross):
Cash collateral 216.8 135.46

Outstanding value of loan securitized 1,751.76 1,551.53

1. No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions during the year

2. Total amount of securitised assets as per the books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC as on the 1,751.76 1,551.53
date of balance sheet

3. Total amount of exposures retained to comply with minimum retention requirement (‘MRR’) as on = =
the date of balance sheet

a) Off balance sheet exposures
- First loss 216.80 135.46
- Others - -

b) On balance sheet exposures
- First loss (cash collateral and over collateral) 286.94 180.66
- Others - -

4. Amount of exposures to securitization transactions other than MRR:
a) Off balance sheet exposures - -
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss = =
- Others = =
i) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss = =
- Others = =
b) On balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss = =
- Others = =
i) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss = =
- Others = =
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(p) Details of assignment transactions undertaken

No. of accounts sold 42,576 10,983
Aggregate value of accounts sold 1,019.86 205.51
No. Aggregate consideration* 1,019.86 205.51

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred - -
in earlier years

Aggregate gain/(loss) over net book value = =

* The above mentioned purchase consideration doesn't include the interest spread (over the expected life of the asset) recognised on the date of
derecognition as interest-only strip receivable.

(q) The Company has not sold financial assets to securitisation/reconstruction companies for asset
reconstruction during the year ended March 31,2020 and March 31, 2019.

(r) The Company has not purchased/sold non-performing financial assets during the year ended March 31,
2020 and March 31,2019.

(s) Unsecuredloan and advances — Refer Note 7

(t) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators:

The Company is registered with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (financial regulator as described by the
Ministry of Finance)

(u) No penalties have been imposed on the Company by RBI and other regulators during the year ended
March 31,2020 and March 31,2019.

(v) Provisions and contingencies (shown under expenses in statement of profit and loss)

Provision for income-tax (including income-tax effect on other 35.31 (0.77)
comprehensive income)

Impairment loss allowance 90.50 40.22
Provision for gratuity (including re-measurement gains/(losses) on 3.34 1.10
defined benefit plans)

Provision for leave encashment 3.40 1.70

(w) The Company has no unhedged foreign currency exposure as at March 31,2020 and March 31,2019.

(x) Information on Net Interest Margin

Average interest charged (A) 23.40% 23.99%
Average effective cost of borrowing (B) 13.59% 14.06%
Net Interest margin (A-B) 9.81% 9.93%

1. Interest income considered for computation of “average interest charged” excludes loan processing fee
collected from customers in accordance with para 54 (vi) of the RBI Master Directions. As per Ind AS 109,
suchloan processing fee forms part of interestincome in the Ind AS financial statements.

2. Average loan outstanding considered for computation of “average interest charged” is gross of the
impairment allowance and unamortized portion of loan processing fee. As per Ind AS 109, such allowance is
adjusted from the loan balance in the Ind AS financial statements.
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44:Prudential floor forimpairment loss allowance:

Provision Difference between
required as per [ Ind AS 109 provisions
IRACP norms* and IRACP

Asset Gross carrying | Loss allowance q
classification amount as per as required Ne;:‘iﬁ'z;ng
under Ind AS 109 Ind AS under Ind AS 109

Asset classification
under RBI norms

Stage | 9103.65 39.25 9,064.40 7471 (35.46)
13.58

Standard assets
Stagelll 7125 14.16 57.09

Sub-Standard Stage lll 150.70 99.67 51.03 116 98.51
Doubtful Stage lll

Upto 1year Stage Il

1to 3 years Stage lll

More than 3 years Stage lll

Loss assets Stage lll

*The provision required as per IRACP norms has been calculated on the aggregate loan portfolio after derecognizing the securitised assets which meets the
de-recogpnition criteria under the previous GAAP.

45: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at March 31,2020:

Particulars Within 12 months After 12 months

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 471.83 = 471.83
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 787.77 194.01 981.78
Trade receivables 22.29 = 22.29
Loan portfolio 5,258.93 3,913.59 9,172.52
Investments = = =
Other financial assets 92.94 20.76 113.70

Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets (net) - iﬁ;%ﬁ z%%ﬁ
Property, plant and equipment - 43.76 43.76
Intangible assets - 0.75 0.75
/ Other non-financial assets 116.55 3'79 120'34

Financial liabilities
Borrowings* 5,245.16 3,985.37 9,230.53

Other financial liabilities 60.54 60.54

Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 1.83 11.57 13.40
Other non-financial liabilities 13.04 = 13.04

Annual Report 2019-20 170



»
| Ha=T gfET

N N9

»

(Rupees in millions unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital - 304.47 304.47
Other equity 1,413.22 1,413.22

*Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at March 31,2019:

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 362.20 = 362.20
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,216.39 614.55 1,830.94
Trade receivables 13.55 = 13.55
Loan portfolio 3,5650.19 2,504.72 6,054.91
Investments = = =
Other financial assets 85.71 21.71 107.42

Non-financial assets

Current tax assets (net) -

Deferred tax assets (net) - l%gg lggg
Property, plant and equipment - 26.02 26.02
Intangible assets - 0.61 0.61
Other non-financial assets 21.83 0. §6 22 .79

Financial liabilities
Borrowings* 3,627.37 3,796.97 7,424.34
Other financial liabilities 152.02 = 152.02

Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 0.88 5. 34 6.22
Other non-financial liabilities 25.73 25.73

Equity share capital = 25754 257.54
Other equity 607.45 607.45

*Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at April 01,2018:

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 413.40 = 413.40
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 260.68 246.51 507.19
Trade receivables 11.94 = 11.94
Loan portfolio 1,230.96 911.10 2,142.06
Investments 1.88 = 1.88
Other financial assets 41.63 11.88 53.51
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Deferred tax assets (net) - 2;?2 2;;2
Property, plant and equipment = 19' 17 19' 17
Intangible assets = 0.79 0.79
Other non-financial assets 9.37 o7 9'37
Total non-financial assets 9.37 55.29 64.66
Total assets 1,969.86 1,224.78 3,194.64
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Borrowings* 1,443.06 1,479.28 2,922.34
Other financial liabilities 12.39 = 12.39
Total financial liabilities 1,455.45 1,479.28 2,934.73
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 0.32 3.10 3.42
Other non-financial liabilities 25.78 = 25.78
Total non-financial liabilities 26.10 3.10 29.20
EQUITY
Equity share capital - 128.08 128.08
Other equity - 102.63 102.63
Total equity - 230.71 230.71
Total liabilities and equity 1,481.56 1,713.08 3,194.64

*Represents debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated liabilities.

46:Impact of COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 virus continues to spread across the globe including India, resulting into a
significant decline and volatility in financial markets and a significant decrease in global and local India’s
economic activities. OnMarch 24,2020, the Indian Government announced a 21days lockdown which was
further extended twice across the nation as a strict measure to contain the spread of the virus. Due to the
continuous lockdowns the Company’s loan collections since March 2020 were significantly disrupted as
the physical movement of its staff and holding of center meetings was not possible. To deal with this
disruption and in accordance with RBI guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated March 27,
2020 and April 17, 2020, the Company has granted moratorium of three months on the payment of all
instalments falling due between March 1, 2020 to May 31, 2020 to all eligible borrowers. There have been
fewer loan disbursements since the initiation of the lock down and the timeline for its resumption and
normalization will be affected by several factors including, but not limited to, period and severity of
lockdown continuation and availability of fresh funds to the Company. An inherent part of the Company’s
business model is to raise borrowing for onward lending to its customers. The total borrowing of the
Company asat March 31,2020 are Rs.7,069.23 mn.

The Company has received moratorium in respect of its borrowing amounting to Rs.3,147.89 mn
accordance with RBI guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated March 27, 2020 and April
17, 2020. The management has performed a detailed assessment of its monthly cash inflows and outflows
for next 12 months and concluded that it will be able to meet its obligations even its monthly collections
remain below normal due to continuation of lockdown. In its assessment, the Company has also considered
an equity injection of Rs. 680 mn which has already been committed by the shareholders.

The Company has recorded an expected credit loss provision of Rs.153.08 mn at March 31, 2020 in respect
of its loans and advance. In accordance with the guidance from ICAI, extension of the moratorium to
borrowers by the Company pursuant to the RBI guidelines relating to COVID 19 Regulatory Package dated
March 27, 2020 and April 17, 2020 by itself is not considered to result in a SICR for a borrower, however the
entity needs to evaluate whether the borrowers to which moratorium is granted will remain regular once
the moratorium period gets over. The Company has recorded a macro-economic overlay of Rs.25.5Tmn as
partof its ECL, to reflectamong other things an increased risk of deterioration in macro-economic factors
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caused by Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. Given the unique nature and scale of the economic
impact of this pandemic, its timing being close to the year-end, and no reliable data being available
regarding the impact of various regulatory packages, the macro-economic overlay estimate is based on
various highly uncertain and unobservable factors. In accordance with the guidance in Ind AS 109, the
management overlay estimate takes into account reasonable and supportable information without
incurring significant cost.

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of SATYA MicroCapital Limited
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number : 101049W/E300004

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

per Amit Kabra Vivek Tiwari Ratnesh Tiwari

Partner Managing Director, CEO & CIO Director

Membership No.094533 DIN: 02174160 DIN: 07131331
Sd/- Sd/-
Rachna Khantwal Sudhindra Sharma
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. : A43785

Place: Gurugram Place: New Delhi

Date: May 20, 2020 Date: May 20, 2020
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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE TWENTY-FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of SATYA
MICROCAPITAL LIMITED will be held on Thursday, 27th day of August, 2020 at 2:00 P.M at 519, 5th Floor, DLF
Prime Towers, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi-110020, India, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. ADOPTION OF ANNUALAUDITED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS AND REPORTS THEREON
To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31,2020 including Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss
and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORINPLACE OF THOSE RETIRING BY ROTATION
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Saneesh Singh (DIN: 02254868), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3.APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORIN PLACE OF THOSE RETIRING BY ROTATION
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Gandhi (DIN: 02234298), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORINPLACEOF THOSE RETIRING BY ROTATION

To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Ratnesh Tiwari (DIN: 07131331), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. TO APPOINT MR. NAVEEN SURYA (DIN: 00094514) AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE
COMPANY

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 149, 150, 152, 160 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013
and as per Articles of Association of the Company and pursuant to applicable provisions, if any, Mr. Naveen
Surya (DIN: 00094514), appointed vide resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 29.08.2019 as a
Non-Executive Director (Additional Director) of the Company, who has submitted a declaration that he
meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and in
respect of whom the Company has received notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act,
2013 from a member signifying his intention to propose him as a candidate for the office of the Director of
the Company, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a
period of five years from 29.08.2019 or till such earlier date as may be determined by any applicable
statutes, rules, regulations or guidelines and he shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

6. TO APPOINT MRS. SUREKHA MARANDI (DIN: 06952573) AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE
COMPANY

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 149, 150, 152, 160 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013
and as per Articles of Association of the Company and pursuant to applicable provisions, if any, Mrs.
Surekha Marandi (DIN: 06952573), appointed vide resolution passed by the Board of Directors on
28.02.2020 as a Non-Executive Director (Additional Director) of the Company, who has submitted a
declaration that she meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and in respect of whom the Company has received notice in writing under Section 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013 from a member signifying her intention to propose her as a candidate for the office
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of the Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company
to hold office for a period of five years from 28.02.2020 or till such earlier date as may be determined by
any applicable statutes, rules, regulations or guidelines and she shall not be liable toretire by rotation.”

. TOINCREASETHELIMITU/S 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND RULES FRAMED THEREUNDER
(OFFERS ORINVITATIONS FORNON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES)

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as aSpecial
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Sections 42 and 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule
14(2) of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s), amendment(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the consent
of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred
to as the “Board” which terms shall be deemed to include any committee duly constituted by the Board or
any committee, which the Board may hereafter constitute), to issue/offer/invite for subscription of
secured/unsecured, rated/unrated, listed/unlisted non- convertible debentures (“Debentures”) by way
of private placement, in one or more tranches, from time to time, to any category of investors eligible to
invest in the Debentures, aggregating upto Rs. 15,00,00,00,000 /- (Rupees One Thousand Five Hundred
Crores only) on such terms and conditions and at such times whether at par/premium/discount, as may
be decided by the Board to such person or persons including one or more company(ies), body
Corporate(s), statutory corporation(s), commercial Bank(s), Lending Agency(ies), Financial Institution(s),
insurance company(ies), foreign portfolio investor(s), mutual fund(s) and individual(s), as the case may be
or such other person/persons as the Board may decide so for a period of one year from the date of
approval of the shareholders, within the overall borrowing limits of the Company, as approved by the
members of the Company from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in connection with the above, the Board be and is hereby authorised to doall
such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary, desirable, proper or expedient for the
purpose of giving effect to this Resolutions and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company or the Company Secretary of the Company be
and are hereby severally authorized to issue a Certified Copy of the Resolution.”

. INCREASE IN POWER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR CREATING CHARGE OVER MOVABLE AND
IMMOVABLE PROPERTIES OF THE COMPANY U/S 180(1)(a) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded pursuant to
section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which terms
shall be deemed to include any committee duly constituted by the Board or any committee, which the
Board may hereafter constitute), to pledge, mortgage and/or charge in all or any part of the moveable or
immovable properties of the Company and the whole or part of the undertaking of the Company of every
nature and kind whatsoever and/or creating a floating charge in all or any movable or immovable
properties of the Company and the whole of the undertaking of the Company to or in favour of Banks,
Financial Institutions, any other lenders or debenture trustees to secure the amount borrowed by the
Company or any third party from time to time for the due payment of the Principal together with interest,
charges, costs, expenses and all other monies payable by the Company or any third party in respect of
such borrowings provided that the maximum extent of the indebtedness secured by the properties of the
Company does not exceed Rs. 35,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Thousand Five Hundred Crores Only)
atany time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do
such acts, deeds, things and execute all such documents, undertakings as may be necessary for giving
effect to the above resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company or the Company Secretary of the Company be
and are hereby severally authorized toissue a Certified Copy of the Resolution.”
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TO INCREASE THE BORROWING POWER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS U/S 180(1)(c) OF THE
COMPANIESACT, 2013

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded pursuant to
section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, to the Board of Directors of the company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which terms
shall be deemed to include any committee duly constituted by the Board or any committee, which the
Board may hereafter constitute), to raise or borrow from time to time such sum or sums as they may deem
appropriate for the purposes of the company notwithstanding that the monies already borrowed and the
monies to be borrowed (apart from temporary loans obtained from company’s bankers in the ordinary
course of business) will exceed the paid-up capital of the company and free reserves not set apart for any
specific purpose provided that the total amount upto which monies may be borrowed by the Board of
Directors shall not exceed Rs. 35,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Thousand Five Hundred Crores Only) at
any time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do
such acts, deeds, things and execute all such documents, undertakings as may be necessary for giving
effect to the above resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company or the Company Secretary of the Company be
and are hereby severally authorized toissue a Certified Copy of the Resolution.”

10.ALTERATION OF THE MAIN OBJECTS CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE

1.

COMPANY

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT tpursuant to the provisions of Section 13 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with applicable rules and regulations made there under, (including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such
approval(s), sanction(s) and permission(s) of Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), Registrar of Companies, NCT
of Delhi & Haryana (“ROC”) and other regulatory and appropriate authorities, as may be required in this
regard and in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, consent of
the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for effecting the alterations in the Main Objects
clause of the Memorandum of Association (“the MOA”) of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered
by addition of the following new clause 5 after the existing Main Object clause lll (A) 4 as under:

“To carry on the business of Insurance Corporate Agent as per the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority of India (‘IRDAI’)”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and Company Secretary be and are hereby severally
authorized to engage or represent the Company before IRDAI and other relevant authorities for filing the
application and in respect of all matters relating to the registration, filling of returns, assessments and all
other matters and to sign or authenticate all the necessary applications, papers, forms, letters and
documents required to be submitted to the IRDAI, RBl and various authorities for seeking registration, and
to do all such acts and deeds to give effect to the above said resolution without requiring the Board to
secure any further consent or approval from the members of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT a copy of the foregoing resolutions certified to be a true copy under the
signature of any one of the Directors of the Company be furnished to any statutory authority or any other
person as may be required from time to time.”

TOINCREASETHE AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITALOF THE COMPANY

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 61 read with Section 64 and other applicable
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provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment
thereof) and the rules framed there under, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to
increase the Authorised Share Capital of the Company from existing Rs. 70,00,00,000 (Rupees Seventy
Crores) divided into 6,00,00,000 (Six Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees ten only) each and
1,00,00,000 (One Crore) Preference shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each to Rs. 100,00,00,000 (Rupees
One Hundred Crore) divided into 7,00,00,000 (Seven Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Tenonly)
eachand 30,000,000 (Three Crore) Preference shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered
by substituting the existing Clause V thereof by the following new Clause V as under:

V. The Authorised Share capital of the company is Rs. 1,00,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Crore)
divided into 7,00,00,000 (Seven Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and
3,00,00,000 (Three Crore) Preference shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company or Company Secretary of the Company, be and
are hereby severally authorised to file, sign, verify and execute all such e-forms, papers or documents, as
may be required and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary and incidental for
giving effect to this Resolution.”

ALTERATIONINTHE CAPITALCLAUSE OF MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 61and 64 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof) and the rules
framed there under, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for substituting Clause V of
the Memorandum of Association of the Company with the following clause:

V. The Authorised Share capital of the company is Rs. 1,00,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Crore)
divided into 7,00,00,000 (Seven Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and
3,00,00,000 (Three Crore) Preference shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company or Company Secretary of the Company, be and
are hereby severally authorised to file, sign, verify and execute all such e-forms, papers or documents, as
may be required and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary and incidental for
giving effect to this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED

Sd/-
Rachna Khantwal

Place: Delhi Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Dated: July 31, 2020 M. No- A43785
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NOTES

1. AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT
EXCEEDING FIFTY (50) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE
TOTALSHARE CAPITALOFTHE COMPANY

2. The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 22 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, (“Rules”) setting out all material facts in
respect of the business specifiedin this notice and the reasons thereto is annexed hereto.

3. The proxy form duly completed must reach the registered office not later than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting. A body corporate being a member shall be deemed to be personally
present at the meeting if represented in accordance with the provisions of Section 113 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The representative so appointed, shall have the right to appoint a proxy.

4. Relevant documents referred to in the proposed resolutions are available for inspection at the Registered
Office of the Company during business hours on all days except Saturdays, Sundays and Public holidays
up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

5. Members may please note that no gifts/ gift coupons shall be distributed at the venue of the General
Meeting

6. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail
addresses for receiving all communications including Annual Report, Notices, Circular, etc. from the
Company in electronic mode.

7. In view of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing norm to be followed and the
continuing restriction on movement of persons at several places in the country and pursuant to General
Circular Nos.14/2020, 17/2020 and 20/2020 dated 8th April 2020, 13th April 2020 and 5th May 2020,
respectively, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars”) and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May 2020 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (“SEBI Circular”) and in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the VC facility is also
being given to the members to attend the 25th AGM of the Company, which does not require physical
presence of members atacommon venue.

8. Members will be able to attend the 25th AGM through VC Facility by accessing the below link:
https:/satyamicro.webex.com/satyamicro/j.php?MTID=mdee1162278684120134348500a%ab272
or by webex login: Meeting number (access code): 166 013 8262; Meeting password: pDZPempK737

9. Please note that Members connecting from mobile devices or tablets or through laptops etc. connecting
via mobile hotspot, may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fior LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED

Sd/-
. Rachna Khantwal
Place: Delhi Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Dated: July 31, 2020 M. No- A43785
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 5

Mr. Naveen Surya who was appointed as Additional Director of the Company pursuant to the provision/of
Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company effective from
29.08.2019 holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and is eligible for appointment as-a
Non-Executive Director in the capacity of Independent Director.

Mr. Naveen Suryais not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of Companies
Act, 2013 and has given his consent to act as Independent Non-Executive Director. His brief profile has been
mentionedin Annexure A in the notice.

Accordingly, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board
recommends the resolution in relation to appointment of Mr. Naveen Surya as Non-Executive Director in the
capacity of Independent Director, for the approval by the members of the Company.

Except Mr. Naveen Surya, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives are concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution.

Item No. 6

Mrs. Surekha Marandi who was appointed as Additional Director of the Company pursuant to the provision of
Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company effective from
28.02.2020 holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and is eligible for appointment as a
NonExecutive Director in the capacity of Independent Director.

Mrs. Surekha Marandi is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of
Companies Act, 2013 and has given her consent to act as Director. Her brief profile has been mentioned in
Annexure Ainthe notice.

Accordingly, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board
recommends the resolution in relation to appointment of Mrs. Surekha Marandi as a Non-Executive Director
in the capacity of Independent Director, for the approval by the members of the Company.

Except Mrs. Surekha Marandi, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives are concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution.

Item No. 7

As per the provisions of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), including any statutory
modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force, read with the Companies (Prospectus
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, a company offering or making an
invitation to subscribe to Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCD”) on a private placement basis, is required to
obtain the prior approval of the shareholders by way of a Special Resolution, which can be obtained once a
year for all the offers and invitations for such NCDs during the year.

The disclosures required pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014 are set out hereinbelow:

a) Particulars of the offer including date of passing of board resolution: This special resolution is being
passed in terms of the third proviso to Rule 14(1) of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014 for the issuance of NCDs, from time to time, for the period of 1(one) year from the date hereof
and accordingly this question is not applicable at present. The particulars of each offer shall be
determined by the Board of Directors (including any committee duly authorized by the Board of Directors
thereof), from time to time;
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b) Kinds of securities offered and price at which security is being offered: This special resolution is
restricted to the private placement issuance of non-convertible debentures by the Company which may
be secured/unsecured/subordinated, rated/unrated, listed/unlisted with the terms of each issuance
being determined by the Board of Directors (including any committee duly authorized by the Board of
Directors thereof), from time to time, for each issuance;

c) Basis or justification for the price (including premium, if any) at which offer or invitation is being made:
Notapplicable;

d) Name and address of valuer who performed valuation: Not applicable;

e) Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities: As may be determined by the
Board of Directors from time to time but subject to the limits approved under Section 42 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 of uptoRs. 15,00,00,00,000 /- (Rupees One Thousand Five Hundred Crores only);

f) Material terms of raising such securities, proposed time schedule, purposes or objects of offer,
contribution being made by the promoters or directors either as part of the offer or separately in
furtherance of objects; principle terms of assets charged as securities: This special resolution is being
passed in terms of the third proviso to Rule 14(1) of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014 for the issuance of NCDs, from time to time, for the period of 1(one) year from the date hereof
and accordingly this question is not applicable at present. The particulars of each offer shall be
determined by the Board of Directors (including any committee duly authorized by the Board of Directors
thereof), from time to time.

The Directors recommend the resolution for members’ approval as aSpecial Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise in this Resolution.

ltem No.8 & 9

Being into the business of Micro Finance, the Company requires more funds from various lenders of repute
to run its operations smoothly and consistently. Therefore, it is required by the Company to raise the limit of
indebtedness against the property from Rs. 3,000 Crores to Rs. 3,500 Crores. Pursuant to section 180(1)(c)
of the Companies Act, 2013 a Company will require members’ approval if the money borrowed together with
the money already borrowed by it exceeds aggregate of paid up share capital of it and free reserve, apart
from temporary loans obtain from its bankers’ in the ordinary course of business. In light of it, the present
limit of borrowing as approved by members is Rs. 3,500 Crores at any time which is required to be enhanced
pursuant to the business/working capital requirements of the Company.

Further, pursuant to section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 at present the Company can incur upto
Rs.3,500 Crores at any time, as maximum indebtedness against the property whether movable or
immovable which can be pledged, mortgage and/or charged and the whole or part of the undertaking of the
Company of every nature and kind whatsoever and/or creating a floating charge in all or any movable or
immovable properties of the Company and the whole of the undertaking of the Company to or in favour of
Banks, Financial Institutions, any other lenders or debenture trustees to secure the amount borrowed by the
Company or any third party from time to time for the due payment of the Principal together with interest,
charges, costs, expenses and all other monies payable by the Company or any third party in respect of such
borrowings.

Therefore, the Board in its meeting dated July 31, 2020 has approved the enhancement in borrowing limit
pursuant to section 180(1)(c ) of the Company Act, 2013 from Rs. 3,000 Crores to Rs. 3,500 Crores and
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recommend the same for your approval.

Therefore, your consent is required pursuant to section 180(1)(a) and section 180(1) (b) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution except to the extent of their shareholding (if any) inthe
Company. The Board of Directors recommends the passing of the resolution as Special Resolution.

Item No. 10

In order to expand the business of the Company, considering the present scenario and for smooth
functioning and expansion of the Company, new business objects need to be included apart from the
existing business objects. Considering the future business plans, one new object is added to existing
Memorandum of Association of the Company.

In order to make the main object clause of the Memorandum of Association comprehensive and concise, itis
proposed to insert the new object clause 5 in the Memorandum of Association, after the existing Main
Objectclauselll (A) 4, as stated in the resolution above.

The approval of the members of the company is required, by way of special resolution pursuant to section 13
of the Companies Act, 2013, accordingly the Board recommended the relevant resolution for the approval of
members.

None of the Directors of the Company or key managerial personnel or their relatives is, in any way,
concerned or interested in the resolution.

Item No. 11

With a view to capitalise the Company it is proposed to increase the existing Authorised Share Capital of the
Company fromRs.70,00,00,000 to Rs1,00,00,00,000.

Pursuant to Section 61and 64 of the Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the shareholders of the Company
is required to the proposed increase in the authorised share capital. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of
the Company, vide its resolution passed at the meeting held on May 20, 2020 has proposed to increase the
authorised share capital of the Company and seeks the approval of the members for the same.

None of the Directors of the Company are in any way, concerned or interested in the resolution, except to the
extent of their Shareholding in the Company, if any.

Item No. 12

In order to reflect the increase authorised share capital of the Company, and in order to conform to the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company
must be amended.

As per Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Alteration of Memorandum of Association of the
Company requires the approval of shareholders and accordingly the Board now seeks the approval of the
Shareholders for the same.

None of the Directors of the Company are in any way, concerned or interested in the resolution, except to the
extent of their Shareholding in the Company, if any.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For SATYA MICROCAPITAL LIMITED

Sd/-
. Rachna Khantwal
Place: Delhi Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Dated:July 31, 2020 M. No- A43785
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

Members or their Proxies are requested to present this Slip in accordance with the Specimen Signatures
registered with the Company, at the entrance of the Meeting Hall, for admission.

Name of the attending Member/ Proxy(s)
(inBLOCKLETTERS).

| hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Thursday, 27th day of
August, 2020 at2:00 P.M at the registered office of the Company 519, 5 Floor, DLF Prime Towers, Okhla
Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi-110020.

Member’s Signature Proxy’s Signature

*Applicable for Members holding shares in Physical form.
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FORM NO. MGT-11
PROXY FORM
[PURSUANT TO SECTION 105(6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND RULE 19(3)
OF THE COMPANIES (MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION) RULES, 2014]

Name of the Company: SATYA MICROCAPITALLIMITED
Registered Office: 519, 5th Floor, DLF Prime Towers, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi-110020

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-mail Id

Folio No /Client ID

DP ID

|/We, being the member(s) of

shares of the above named Company.

Hereby appoint:

BT IS IS IR R

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company held on 27th day of August, 2020 at 2:00 P.M at the registered office of the Company at
office 519,5th Floor, DLF Prime Towers, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi-110020 and at any
adjournment thereof inrespect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.:

1.

N OO N WN

9.

Adoption of Annual Audited Financial Statements for financial year 2019-20 together with the
Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon;

. Appointment of Director in place of Director retiring by rotation;

. Appointment of Director in place of Director retiring by rotation;

. Appointment of Director in place of Director retiring by rotation;

- Appointment of Mr. Naveen Surya as Non-Executive Independent Director;

- Appointment of Mrs. Surekha Marandi as Non-Executive Independent Director;

Increase in the limit u/s 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder (Offers or
Invitations for Non-Convertible Debentures);

. Increase in the Power of Board of Directors for Creating Charge over Movable & Immovable

Properties of the Company u/s 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013;

Increase in the Borrowing Power of Board of Directors u/s 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013;

10.Alteration of the main objects clause of the Memorandum of Association of the company;

1.

Increase in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company;

12. Alteration in the Capital Clause of Memorandum of Association.

Signed this
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Affix
Revenue
Stamps

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting
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www.satyamicrocapital.com/

info@satyamicrocapital.com

519, 5" Floor, DLF Prime Towers, Okhla Industrial Area,Phase-1, New Delhi-110020, India
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